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Financial Highlights
M5

For the year ended 31 March

HE3A31ALLEE
2025 2024
20254 20244
HK$'000 HK$'000 % Change
FET TET EH)H DL
Revenue k&= 227,632 421,309 (45.97)
Revenue less cost of inventories W BB HFEEFEER A
consumed 171,905 319,102 (46.13)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable RABERE NEIEER
to the owners of the Company wmA) (E518) (31,972) 28,845 (210.00)
Earnings/(loss) per share sREF (B8
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) - BEARREE B (2.8) 2.5 (212.00)
KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS BRFSLER

As at/For the year ended

31 March
M3H318 HEZBILEE
2025 2024
20255 20244
Gross profit margin (%) EFE(%) 75.5 75.7
Net (loss)/profit margin (%) 4 (38) S FIE(%) (14.0) 6.8
Return on total assets (%) 48 FE B 3 2 (%) (40.3) 15.7
Return on equity (%) &% AR B 3 Z-(%) (367.5) 70.6
Current ratio (times) MENELE (8) 0.8 0.8
Quick ratio (times) REELE (18) 0.7 0.8
Gearing ratio (%) (Note) BEEABILER%) (M) N/A REH 35.4
Interest coverage (times) FMEBEILX (B) N/A &R 22.5

Note: Gearing ratio equals to interest-bearing debts divided by total equity

attributable to owners of the Company as at the year end.

EEEELEXRENGBEBRUFEREARTER
AL 4BER
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The Group is a Hong Kong and People’s Republic of China (“PRC")
based full-service restaurant entity specializing in Cantonese dining
and banquet services, particularly wedding banquets. In the fiscal
year ending 31 March 2025, the traditional Chinese restaurant
industry in Hong Kong faced a notable decline. This downturn
stemmed from two key factors: the growing preference of Hong
Kong residents to dine in mainland China, where traditional
restaurants provide more comprehensive services at competitive
prices, and the younger generation’s shift toward affordable,
quick-service dining options such as fast-food chains or delivery
platforms — a trend amplified by post-COVID-19 behavioral
changes. Additionally, the expansion of cross-border transportation
infrastructure further encouraged Hong Kong residents to spend
in mainland China. Amid these shifts in consumer preferences,
the Group's restaurant business experienced an inevitable
contraction. For the fiscal year ending on 31 March 2025, turnover
restrained by approximately HK$193.7 million, marking a 46.0%
decrease from around HK$421.3 million in the previous year to
approximately HK$227.6 million.

The following table sets out the movement of the number of
restaurants we operated during the financial years indicated:

EOEMRE

AEEREBRPEARKENEA (PE) —E2E
RBNERERE RHEBXNEBHRBREGRS

THEHREE - REZE2025FE3831HLEMREE &
BEAPEBETEABRBEE T B B —HREKERERN
MEREAR | 8FRMAHEAE R 1E S E A i
BE IBENEHBEEUERFNNERREHER
HEBRY UREE—RERREEHEERINETF
AEERETRMREREIZE—COVID-19B11TAEE
METE Bt BIERBEMRRIENIERE
— S EBEEERIFEANMBEE-BESEER
FRES AEBPEZEF A BRI EIRT I
4B B E2025FE383 1B LM BERE » S XN
193.7A 88t Rl —ENLN421 38 BB TR
46.0%E 49227 6B BB TT o

TREYIBFNFAIRREECERNEEHEEE:

Year ended 31 March

BEIRMBLEE
2025 2024
20254 20244
Number of restaurants at the beginning of the year ~ E#IBYHEIZEE 6 9
Number of newly acquired restaurant during the year ERFTUEE EIZMNEE 2 -
Number of closed restaurants during the year (note)  FARRIEEENEE () (2) 3)
Number of restaurants at the end of the year FRIBEEE 6 6

In response to evolving consumer preferences, the Group
introduced two new Eastern and Western concept restaurants in
March 2025. These venues emphasize cost-effective and efficient
service models, modernized dining experiences, and streamlined
operations designed to appeal to younger demographics, improve
table turnover efficiency, and accelerate cash flow cycles. The
Company anticipates these initiatives to drive incremental
revenue growth and support broader market expansion. Further
openings of similar concept restaurants are under consideration
by late 2025. Concurrently, the Group will conduct a strategic
assessment of its core operations across regional markets to refine
sustainable growth strategies. This includes identifying cross-
industry investment opportunities and diversifying geographical
footprints to bolster long-term resilience. To strengthen its position
in the Hong Kong and PRC full-service banquet sector, the Group
will explore innovative business frameworks, such as strategic
collaborations with third-party restaurant operators, to enhance
competitive differentiation and market penetration.

6 Welife Technology Limited 4 4 ERHS BRAE]

RHEENEEEREBE R AEEIR2025934
W T ST BYBR 5 M 78 75 B S AR o B RSP 98
ARESHRBREL - RACHBERERRIEE
WEZ > EERSIFEN BREEZFAEBUER MR
RERBH AABDBEFRFTREBREFHVRAEER
T FFBEEZHNTIHIER  F2025F & HMIEEE

EE— */FFaﬁuziETMEEE,_\E’J}E@ [EIEF » AR E R H
BEE T BN OETETHRRTG URETRF

%%iEE&%OE@EE&EE%@%&QH%Q’ DU I
R MR RES - REEHATARTEEZT
T_LEAHEE‘NT%EWM_L’$$@H%T RAHES
R NMAF=FEEEEEETHRGE LIRS
REERCKRTIHLER



Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue decreased by 46.0% from approximately
HK$421.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2024 to
approximately HK$227.6 million for the year ended 31 March
2025. Such decrease in revenue was mainly due to the growing
preference of Hong Kong residents to dine in mainland and the
younger generations shift toward affordable quick-service dining
options, which led to a decrease in the number of customers and
banquet services provided by the Group.

Cost of food and beverages

The Group’s cost of food and beverages decreased by
approximately 45.5%, from approximately HK$102.2 million
for the year ended 31 March 2024 to approximately HK$55.7
million for the year ended 31 March 2025. The decrease was
in line with the decrease in revenue during the year ended 31
March 2025. The cost of food and beverages as a percentage of
revenue increased from 24.3% for the year ended 31 March 2024
to approximately 24.5% for the year ended 31 March 2025 as
the revenue decreased in accordance with the shift of consumer
preference during the year.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group's gross profit decreased by approximately 46.1% from
approximately HK$319.1 million for the year ended 31 March 2024
to approximately HK$171.9 million for the year ended 31 March
2025. The decrease was in line with the decrease in revenue during
the year ended 31 March 2025. The gross profit margin decreased
from 75.7% for the year ended 31 March 2024 to 75.5% for the
year ended 31 March 2025 mainly due to the decrease in revenue
as a result of change in consumer preference.

Other gains and losses, net

The Group's net other gains and losses decreased by approximately
98.2% from approximately HK$7.8 million for the year ended 31
March 2024 to HK$0.1 million for the year ended 31 March 2025.
The decrease was mainly due to the gain on lease remeasurement
of none and the decrease of the impairment loss on right-of-use
assets.

B PR A e o T

HA 5[0l B8

g

AEBWBAEE2024F3831H EFEEMNL421.3
BEBTREL46.0%EEHF2025F3831HIEEERN
#4227 6B BB - WRBLVIIEEHNEEERM
KEEERERMEE  EFE—EREKERN
HRERZE  BENRAFHERAERBRENEZR
BHER L

B

NEEBENNABRE E2024F3831BLEEEND
102.2BBAETR/DA45 5% EEH E2025F3831H
IEFENMNSS.7TE BB oz BE E2025543H
BTHIEEENKRGERDER B MAGWREN S
DEEREE2024F3831HIEFEER24.3%ENEE
202593831 HIEFEMNN24.5%  ThHEIRBEES
PIE B R o s M U e ©

EFREMNE

AEBEEFNBHEE2024F3831H IEFERIAI319.1
BEBTHLA46.1%EEHE2025F3831HIEFE
MA171.98 BB T szp/ L BE E2025F38318 L
FENWER/DER - EFEREE2024F3831H
IEFEENTS 7% R/ D EEHE2025F3831HIEFEN
75.5%  FERPNHERTESH BT L

Hihm K E518588
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Staff costs

The Group's staff costs decreased by approximately 21.0%, from
approximately HK$146.6 million for the year ended 31 March 2024
to approximately HK$115.7 million for the year ended 31 March
2025. Such decrease was mainly due to decrease in headcount
and employing less part-time employee for restaurants operations
and banquet services as a result of the shift of consumption
preference. The staff costs as a percentage of revenue increased
from approximately 34.8% for the year ended 31 March 2024 to
approximately 50.8% for the year ended 31 March 2025 mainly
due to decrease in revenue.

Property rentals and related expenses

The Group's property rentals and related expenses decreased by
approximately 30.3%, from approximately HK$22.4 million for the
year ended 31 March 2024 to approximately HK$15.6 million for
the year ended 31 March 2025 mainly attributable to the decrease
in demand for property rental upon the increase in willingness
of Hong Kong local residents, to spend on north during the year
ended 31 March 2025 when compared to last year.

Depreciation

The Group’s depreciation of property, plant and equipment
decreased to approximately HK$4.4 million for the year ended 31
March 2025 as compared to HK$7.8 million for the year ended
31 March 2024 mainly due to the decrease in the total number
of restaurants in operation during the year ended 31 March 2025
when compared to last year.

The Group’s depreciation of right-of-use assets decreased to
approximately HK$26.9 million for the year ended 31 March 2025
from HK$45.1 million for the year ended 31 March 2024 mainly
due to the decrease in the total number of restaurants in operation
during the year ended 31 March 2024 when compared to last year.

Finance costs

Finance costs decreased to HK$2.2 million for the year ended 31
March 2025 as compared to HK$6.8 million for the year ended 31
March 2024 due to (a) the decrease in lease liabilities during the
year; and (b) the decrease in the total number of restaurants in
operation during the year ended 31 March 2025 when compared
to last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Profit/(loss) for the year

The profit for the year decreased by approximately HK$60.8
million, from profit of HK$29.0 million for the year ended 31
March 2024 to a loss for the year of approximately HK$32.0
million for the year ended 31 March 2025 mainly due to the
combined effect of the factors discussed above

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The Group's objectives in managing capital are to safeguard its
ability to continue as a going concern.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, which
includes bank borrowings, net of bank balances and cash and
equity attributable to owners of the Group, comprising issued
share capital and reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure of the Group periodically
and may take different measures, including the payment of
dividends, the issue of new shares and raising of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

The Group’s liquidity requirements primarily relate to the working
capital needs (mainly for procurement of food and beverages
from suppliers, staff costs, property rents and various operating
expenses), providing catering and banquet services and working
capital needs for loss making period, and the principal source of
funds is mainly from working capital generated internally from the
Group's operation, bank borrowings and the net proceeds received
from the Listing.

As at 31 March 2025, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
(including time deposits with maturity over three months) were
approximately HK$22.7 million (2024: HK$76.3 million). As at 31
March 2025, the Group’s total current assets and current liabilities
were approximately HK$48.7 million (2024: HK$104.0 million) and
approximately HK$64.6 million (2024: HK$127.1 million), while
the current ratio of the Group was approximately 0.8 times (2024:
approximately 0.8 times). During the year, approximately HK$1.4
million were incurred for acquiring property, plant and equipment
for renovating existing restaurants (2024: HK$2.2 million) and
approximately HK$14.4 million were used for repayment of bank
borrowings (2024: HK$22.9 million). Excluding the current lease
liabilities, the net current liability was HK$9.0 million (2024:
HK$24.5 million) and the current ratio as at 31 March 2025 was
0.9 times (2024: 1.3 times).

B PR A e o T

FEREF (E5E)

FENEAREE2024F3831H IEEEREH£29.0
BEATHN608EEEBTEEHE2025F3831H
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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As_at 31 March 2025, the Group’s total borrowings amounted
to approximately HK$0 million (2024: HK$14.4 million). The
borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong dollars and repayable
on demand which carried floating interest rate of 1-month HIBOR
plus 1% per annum.

The gearing ratio is calculated based on the interest-bearing debts
divided by total equity attributable to owners of the Company
as at 31 March 2025 and multiplied by 100%. During the fiscal
year 2025, the Company made full repayment of bank borrowing
additionally, as at 31 March 2024, the Group’s gearing ratio was
35.4%. The Directors, taking into account the nature and scale
of operations, capital structure of the Group and the necessity for
maintaining sufficient financial resources to support the operations,
considered that the gearing ratio as at 31 March 2025 was
reasonable.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The capital expenditure during the year under review was primarily
related to expenditures on additions and renovation of property,
plant and equipment for the Group’s new restaurants and
maintenance of existing restaurants.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the transactions of the Group are denominated in Hong
Kong dollar and the Group is not exposed to any significant foreign
exchange exposure.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

On 8 July 2022, the Company has entered into a Business
Development Consultancy Agreement (the “Consultancy
Agreement”) with Jasons Holdings (Shenzhen) Company Limited
(RRBER CRYID A BRATE) (“Jasons”), pursuant to which
Jasons will be remunerated in the manner to be agreed between
the Company and Jasons.

On 14 July 2023, in relation to the remuneration for the
Consultancy Agreement, the Company entered into a
remuneration agreement with Jasons (the “Remuneration
Agreement”), pursuant to which the consultancy fee (i.e.
HK$9,400,000) (the “Consultancy Fee”) to Jasons shall be
settled by way of allotment and issue of 45,000,000 shares
("Consideration Shares”) at the issue price of HK$0.227 for each
Consideration Share. The application to issue the Consideration
Share had subsequently be withdrawn by the Company on 17
November 2023.

10

Welife Technology Limited 4 4 ERHS BRAE]

2025938310 AEENEERNABBEEET
(2024%F 1 14488 ETT) - UETHENENER
EREBERZIEBEBIRITEEIRENM % FH
FEFEHB o

EESBLEERNDRETEEFRU2025F3831H
KNBHEE NEGERRZE BRMUI00%TE R
20258 EE » AR A BB BMEZBIRITERU SN 1R
202438310 AEENEESBELEA354%
ERIKEHERBRE S REBNE R SRR ERT
THRMBEERUALTSESNNEN EFRAN
2025F3A3  HNEEABLEXBE SR

BFRRX

EEFEANEFRAX TR RATERNITERER
RiEERBEEMAERBTYE BB KRKRH
fs<

51 EE LB

AEBMABHRR LB THERFERLEASE
fAIERINERR

HARR

11202267888 » A RABERRBIER (RN BRA
8 (MRRBY) ST —MEHERBBZ (B
&) REZWH AREBEREBELDEARREN
ER A VESHEN -

2023578140 BB HRZENFMMS > XA F
BARBIT L FH N E (TEFEHE) ’}FLH: BRI
& (B19,400,000/7t) (TEERME)) B UBCEE R &1T
45,000,0008% 8815 (MRX{ER&IR)) A = AT B1T1E
BEBRRERMN0.2278BT - HE » RABN20234F
118 17BHEBTRERDIEE-



Management Discussion and Analysis

On 28 June 2024, the lawyer of Jasons has issued a petition to
wind up the Company, on the basis of the alleged failure by
the Company to repay its debts amount of HK$9,400,000. The
winding up hearing of which shall take place on 16 April 2025.

On 10 March 2025, the Company received a winding up petition
filed by Jasons against the Company under the Companies
(Winding Up and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (Chapter 32
of the Laws of Hong Kong) in the High Court of Hong Kong, on
the basis of the alleged failure by the Company to repay its debts
amount of RMB9,400,000. The Petition was scheduled to be heard
on 16 April 2025. Subsequently, the hearing is adjourned to 11
June 2025.

As per the opinion from the Company’s lawyer, given the factual
dispute as to the authenticity of the Remuneration Agreement and
the services provided by Jasons, it is unlikely for Jasons to be able
to wind up the Company without first clarifying the factual issues.
Therefore, the management of the Company considered that the
Consultancy Fee should not be recognised in the consolidated
financial statements for the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2025
at this stage.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had approximately 220
employees (2024: 261 employees).

The Group offers competitive wages and other benefits to our
restaurant employees, and makes salary adjustments in response
to the local labour market conditions. Our staff costs primarily
consisted of salaries, allowances, and other benefits, contributions
to retirement benefits scheme and Directors’ emoluments.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’'s share option scheme was adopted pursuant to the
resolution passed on 25 January 2019 to give the eligible persons
(as mentioned in the following paragraph) an opportunity to
have a personal stake in our Company and help motivate them to
optimise their future performance and efficiency to our Group and/
or to reward them for their past contributions, to attract and retain
or otherwise maintain ongoing relationships with such eligible
persons who are significant to and/or whose contributions are or
will be beneficial to the performance, growth or success of our
Group, and additionally in the case of executives, to enable our
Group to attract and retain individuals with experience and ability
and/or to reward them for their past contributions.

B PR A e o T
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Eligible participants of the share option scheme include (a) any
executive director of, manager of, or other employee holding
an executive, managerial, supervisory or similar position in any
member of our Group, any full-time or part-time employee, or
a person for the time being seconded to work full-time or part-
time for any member of our Group; (b) a director or proposed
director (including an independent non-executive director) of any
member of our Group; (c) a direct or indirect shareholder of any
member of our Group; (d) a supplier of goods or services to any
member of our Group; (e) a customer, consultant, business or joint
venture partner, franchisee, contractor, agent or representative
of any member of our Group; (f) a person or entity that provides
design, research, development or other support or any advisory,
consultancy, professional or other services to any member of
our Group; (g) an associate of any of the persons referred to in
paragraphs (a) to (c) above; and (h) any person involved in the
business affairs of the Company whom our Board determines to be
appropriate to participate in the share option scheme.

No share options has been granted since the effective date of the
share option scheme and there are no outstanding share options as
at 31 March 2025.

CHARGES ON GROUP'S ASSETS

As at 31 March 2024, the deposit placed for a life insurance policy
amounting to approximately HK$16.4 million (2023: HK$16.2
million) was pledged to secure the Group's bank borrowings. The
bank borrowings has fully repaid to the bank during the year
ended 31 March 2025.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

As at 31 March 2025, the Group did not hold any significant
investments.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

During the year under review, the Group had no material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROPOSED ISSUE OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 9 January 2023, the Company entered into a conditional
subscription agreement (the “"CB Agreement”) with Longling
Capital Ltd (the “Subscriber”), pursuant to which the Subscriber
has conditionally agreed to subscribe for and the Company has
conditionally agreed to issue to the Subscriber convertible bonds
(the “Convertible Bonds”) in an aggregate principal amount
of HK$44,000,000. Based on the initial conversion price of the
Convertible Bonds of HK$0.80 per conversion Share, a total of
55,000,000 conversion Shares will be allotted and issued upon
exercise of the conversion rights attaching to the Convertible
Bonds in full, representing (i) approximately 4.78% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at the date of this report, and (i)
approximately 4.56% of the total number of Shares in issue as
enlarged by the allotment and issue of the 55,000,000 conversion
Shares upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds.

The gross proceeds and net proceeds (after deducting related
expenses) from the issue of the Convertible Bonds are estimated to
be approximately HK$44 million and HK$43.8 million, respectively.
The Company intends to apply the net proceeds to the restaurant
business development and general working capital of the Group.

On 21 April 2023, the Company and the Subscriber entered into a
supplemental agreement to the CB Agreement, pursuant to which
the long stop date of the CB Agreement has been extended to
31 July 2023 (or such other date as may be agreed between the
Company and the Subscriber) in writing (the “Long Stop Date”).

The Board further announced on 18 July 2023 that as it is expected
that the conditions precedent under the CB Agreement will not be
fulfilled by the Long Stop Date, the Subscriber and the Company
have mutually agreed that the CB Agreement will lapse and be of
no further effect after the Long Stop Date. Hence, the subscription
of the Convertible Bonds will not proceed. The Board is of the
view that the termination of the CB Agreement will not have
any material adverse effect on the financial position and business
operations of the Group. For further details of the proposed issue
of the Convertible Bonds, please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 10 January 2023, 31 January 2023, 21 April
2023 and 18 July 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANCY
AGREEMENT AND REMUNERATION
AGREEMENT

On 24 June 2022, the Company and Jasons Holdings (Shenzhen)
Company Limited* (RRBER CFYI) BRAE) (“Jasons
Holdings”) entered into a strategic cooperation framework
agreement (the “Strategic Cooperation Framework
Agreement”) for a term of five years from 24 June 2022 to 23
June 2027, with a view to jointly exploring different modes of
business cooperation.

On 8 July 2022, in furtherance to the Strategic Cooperation
Framework Agreement, the Company and Jasons Holdings
entered into a business development consultancy agreement (the
“Business Development Consultancy Agreement”).

For further details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 24 June 2022.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Saved as disclosed above, no significant events affecting the
Company and its subsidiaries occurred since 1 April 2025 and up
to the date of this announcement.

Save as disclosed above, the Group has no significant events took
place after the end of the period.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float of at least 25% of the issued
Shares from the Listing Date to the date of this report.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS

The net proceeds from the Listing (after deducting underwriting
fees and the listing expenses to be borne by the Group) (the “Net
Proceeds”) was approximately HK$92,734,000. Up to 31 March
2025, the Company has utilised approximately HK$87.7 million
of the Net Proceeds for the purposes as set out in the Prospectus,
representing approximately 94.6% of the Net Proceeds.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

An analysis of the utilisation of the Net Proceeds as at 31 March
2025 is set out below:
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Revised Revised
allocation allocation
of unused of unused Amount
Allocation of Net Proceeds Net Proceeds utilitized as at Estimated timeline
Net Proceeds according to on3March  on 18 October 31 March Unused Net ~ for utilization of the
Use of Net Proceeds FEREEERAR the Prospectus 2021 2022 2025 Proceeds  unused Net Proceeds

R01E R02E

3A3EAHA  10B18EXBA 20255

RERRERMSHE FIERERE  FREEE 3B KBAFBE  ADARGHE
BENAEER WREIAE  MEBTE BRLE BRE PEREHDANR
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BAL Thx Thx Thx TEx TEx
Opening restaurants (Note) BB (W) 76.1% 70,557 22,655 5,000 = 5,000 30 November 2025
2025118308
Renovation of existing restaurants ByReEe 14.1% 13,063 5 5 5 S
Promoting brands EERE 5% 4633 1,843 = = =
Additional working capital, strategic ~ EJMNEBES KBRER
investment and other general Hit—REERR
corporate purposes 4.8% 4,481 30,000 17,655 (17,655) -
Total @t 100.0% 92,734 54,498 22,655 (17,655) 5,000

Note: The Board proposed to allocate approximately HK$5 million to open
new restaurants catering different other cuisines with the objective
of accommodating the changes of the catering and dining industry
which, in turn, would allow the Company to capture new customers.

The unused Net Proceeds are placed into authorised financial
institutions and/or licenced banks in Hong Kong. As at the date
of this report, there was no change of the business plan from that
disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 31 January
2019.

DIVIDENDS

Having assessed the cash flows and working capital required in
view of the current challenging business environment and low-
season in the first-half of the financial year of the Group, the
Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
financial year ended 31 March 2025 (2024: Nil).
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Report of the Directors
HEEWE

The-Board is pleased to present the annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2025.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal businesses of its subsidiaries are operating Chinese
restaurants in Hong Kong and the PRC.

The discussion and analysis of the Group’s business, financial
results and future prospects is set out in the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual report.

There are certain principal risks and uncertainties faced by the
Group.

Risk relating to commercial real estate rental market

All of the restaurants of the Group are operated on leased
properties. If the Group is not able to enter into new lease
agreements or renew existing leases on commercially acceptable
terms, the Group's profitability, market share and growth may be
adversely affected.

Risk relating to increase in procurement costs for food and
beverages

The profitability of the Group depends significantly on its ability to
anticipate and react to changes in procurement costs of food and
beverages. The availability and prices of food supplies can fluctuate
and be volatile and are subject to factors beyond our control.

Reputation Risks

The Group operates the business under four brand names, namely,
“Palace (J&/iF) ", “Royal Courtyard (J£383) " and “Sea Moon Cuisine
(BBEEE)". If the Group fails to maintain and protect its
intellectual property, or if any third party misappropriates, dilutes or
infringes the Group's intellectual property, the value of the Group’s
brands may be harmed, which may prevent the Group’s brand from
achieving and maintaining market acceptance.

Even if the use of identical or similar trademarks, brands, and
logos by an infringing restaurant do not confuse customers, the
distinctive nature of the Group’s brand image could be blurred.
Any failure to protect or safeguard the intellectual property rights
of the Group could materially affect its business, financial condition
and results of operations.
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Compliance Risks

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in jurisdictions
in which the Group operates, the Group is required to obtain
or renew the licenses and permits for operating its restaurant
business, including general restaurant licence, liquor licence, water
pollution control licence and other approval or permits, including
endorsement to serve certain foods. Going forward, if the Group
fails to obtain or renew all the necessary licenses or permits
for its operation in a timely manner, it may be subject to fines,
suspension of operation for a while and/or cease operation in the
worst scenario, which could materially and adversely affect the
profitability of the Group.

The restaurant licensing compliance committee has been set up
to oversee the Group’s licensing compliance matters and the
implementation of the relevant policies. The committee will also
report to the Board at least four times a year.

As far as the Board is aware, the Group has complied with
the relevant laws and regulations that may cause a significant
impact on the business and operation of the Group in the event
of a material breach or non-compliance. During the year under
review, there was no material breach or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
(“ESG") POLICIES AND PERFORMANCES

The Group is committed to ensure that all business activities are
economically, socially and environmentally sustainable. It has
identified various ESG areas and has taken measures to control
the environmental and social impacts during its operations.
Through an effective control of our operations, compliance with
ESG requirements can be further assured. Please refer to the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 40 to 84
of this annual report for details of our environmental policies and
performance.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2025 are set
forth in the consolidated financial statements on page 37 of this
annual report.

The dividend policy is stated in the section headed “Dividend
Policy” on page 37 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2025.

Report of the Directors
HEERS

AR ER
REFEBREEMEZEERNMAERERIER
AEBRERNERBRKFFA > DRI KEEEE
B RSB RRMER EE K SREERRKE
Wit ESRFF Al BRI M E T RYINERES -REXR
oA EBRERBRESNERMBEESENTR
ResFo AEE DB IR HEEE—REE
R/ 3 (RIBER R IERE Mol e B A EBNE
FMEENEMERTHEE -

FEBERILABRREGREZE S UEELEE
BREREEMERABRNEBRRB R -ZZEET
ROEFESFFHROEARKS -

BEFEMA AEEEETHEEREEABRNA
GRBEAMAEREEENEF REEBRNERT
EEREROER -REBFE  ~EEIREIR
BRFRREZENERERAFGRIBR

BRI - kEs (MRIE- G RER)
BR R &R

AEBMBADRGELH HEREFEEL A%
BHABERE - RADHSERE HERER
W > I BB IREE I S IR R B
2o KA BIEBH MR BB LUE — S RBETE
B HEREARE ARAADBEREERRR
HIE HSRAEREIOTAERNY BE e
RERRE o

FEREE

AEEBE2025F3831HIEFENERHNATER
BIVENGREMBREK

IR EBERE N AFRFEIVEREHER —&°

EEENERMEE2025F3831H IEFEEIREREA
o

iat
15/

=z

Annual Report 2025 %5 17



Report of the Directors
HEEWE

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the five years, as
extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements or
the Prospectus, is set out on page 180 of this annual report. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

The issued share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2025 was
1,150,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each.

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the Reporting Year are set out in note 27 of the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association (the “Articles”) or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the shareholders of the Company by reason of
their holding of the Company’s securities. Intending holders
and investors of the Company's shares are recommended to
consult their professional advisers if they are in any doubt as to
the taxation implications (including tax relief) of subscribing for,
purchasing, holding, disposing of or dealing in the shares. It is
emphasised that none of the Company or its Directors or officers
will accept any responsibility for any tax effect on, or liabilities of,
holders of shares in the Company resulting from their subscription
for, purchase, holding, disposal of or dealing in such shares.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Reporting Year.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2025 are set out on note
35 to the consolidated financial statements and page 177 of this
annual report.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2025, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution was approximately HK$82,284,000 calculated in
accordance with the Articles and the Companies Act, Cap.22 of
the Cayman Islands, including share premium and other reserves
less accumulated loss. As at 31 March 2023, the Company had no
reserve available for distribution.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the Reporting Year, the Group made total charitable
contributions amounting to approximately HK$2,140,000 (2024:
HK$468,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The customers of the Group mainly consist of walk-in customers
of the general public. As such, the Directors consider that it is not
practicable to identify the five largest customers of the Group, and
the Group did not rely on any single customer during the Reporting
Year.

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the total purchases from
our Group's five largest suppliers in aggregate accounted for
approximately 46.4% (2023: 46.4%) and our largest supplier
accounted for approximately 12.2% (2023: 12.2%) of our Group's
total purchases.

None of the Directors, their respective close associates or any
shareholders (who, to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more
than 5% of our Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in
any of the Group's top five suppliers during the year under review.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS
AND CUSTOMERS

The Group maintains a good relationship with its employees and
provides a competitive remuneration package and continuous
trainings to retain and motivate the employees.

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain a
good relationship with its suppliers and customers to sustain
its operation. The Group strives to provide one-stop wedding
banquet services and diversified services and menu offerings to the
customers.

During the Reporting Year, there was no material and significant
dispute between the Group and its employees, suppliers and/or
customers.
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Report of the Directors
HEEWE

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Reporting Year and as at
the date of this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tam Kar Wai (resigned on 17 May 2024)
Mr. Yeung Ka Ho (appointed on 22 May 2024
and resigned on 29 November 2024)
Mr. Chu Pui Him (appointed on 29 November 2024)
Mr. Leung Yin Cheuk (appointed on 29 November 2024)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Hu Zhi Xiong (Chairman) (resigned on 17 May 2024)
Mr. Fok Siu Keung (appointed on 22 May 2024)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen (appointed on 22 May 2024)

Mr. Chui Man Lung, Everett (appointed on 22 May 2024
and resigned on 29 November 2024)

Mr. Wong Che Sang (appointed on 22 May 2024)

Ms. Zhao Ming (appointed on 7 March 2025)

Ms. Yin Shilu (appointed on 14 May 2025)
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Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time
being shall retire from office by rotation.
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According to Article 84(1) and (2) of the Articles, Mr. Chu Pui Him,
Mr. Leung Yin Cheuk, Mr. Fok Siu Keung, Mr. Wong Che Sang, Ms.
Zhao Ming and Ms. Yin Shilu will retire as Directors by rotation,
and being offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND EERSHRETEBHEEES
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and the Senior
Management are disclosed in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 85 to 86 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has
a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save for the related party transactions disclosed in note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements of this annual report, no
Director or connected entity of a Director had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of the Company’s subsidiaries was a party during
the Reporting Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than Directors’ service contracts and employment contracts
with the Group’s senior management in full-time employment,
no management contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business
of the Group were entered into or existed during the Reporting
Year.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Apart from the contracts disclosed under the section headed
"Continuing Connected Transactions” below, no contract of
significance to which the Company or any of its holding company
or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the
end of the Reporting Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, the Directors, among others, shall
be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or may
incur or sustain by or about the execution of their duty in their
offices or in relation thereto.

The Company has taken out and maintained appropriate insurance
coverage for the Directors against liabilities to third parties that
may be incurred in the course of performing their duties as at the
date of this report.

Report of the Directors
HEERS

EFHRBEL

BERZENEERRBEARG LERBEINEEE
BARANBEURRB AR —FRRIEME A
BEfE CRERRERID BIRFB S

EENRS ZHR SN ED

PRAFHRE SV B RRMEIPTIRERRE S X5
SV MEERUEFCHEBRNAATIEEM
MBARNKREFERNT UL HAEREBMS B
ERZAARG ZHUGHNTERABEERE
A

BEAH

BREERBOAEERSREEELZBEANE
BENIN RBESFERETIUNFRERERE
RNENERRDEBERZEERITHEN -

EXREHN

FR T XIHEBRAER 7 — BT IR BN S AN RS
FESREFER UEARTIEETAZERAS
YMBAR RN MESNEPEZNEZE
BEREmMEARGH-

EHESTREIRS

RIRAIR T (AP B KRR ERTRE N
522 18RI B S B AR S E B S B B
B ERAINE K RE RIS AABNEE
EERURERRERLZAMEAS

AABTEMEREMAENARSARBETRERS
RIBRNE=Z A EEETEERFRER

Annual Report 2025 %5 21



Report of the Directors
HEEWE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

none of the Directors and chief executives or their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the SFO), which were (a)
required to be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or (b) required to be recorded in the
register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO;
(c) required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”).

At no time during the period was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
or the chief executives or their spouses or children under 18 years
of age to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2025, so far as is known to any director or chief
executive of the Company, the interests or short positions of the
persons, other than Directors or chief executive of the Company,
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company, as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO, were as follows:
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Approximate

Number of  percentage of
Name of shareholder Capacity/nature of interest shares (Note 1) shareholding
R TE 5% EEnE e E (MizE1) WMAOFRE AL
Brilliant Global Assets Limited Beneficial owner (Note 2) 340,000,000 (L) 29.57%
EmEA A (sF2)
Happy Century Global Limited Beneficial owner (Note 3) 189,500,000 (L) 16.48%
EnEA A (5E3)
Notes: MIEE
1. The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the shares 1. F&ILIRTRZALTRARQR RAREER LB KRG

and underlying shares of the Company or the relevant associated
corporation.

2. These shares were held by Brilliant Global Assets Limited. The entire
issued shares of Brilliant Global Assets Limited are owned by Mr,
Chen Sugiang.
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3 These shares were held by Happy Century Global Limited. The entire
issued shares of Happy Century Global Limited are owned by Mr. Lo
Chor Cheong Colin.

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2025, no person had
registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company that was recorded in the register required
to be kept pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company’s share option scheme was adopted pursuant to the
resolution passed on 25 January 2019 to give the eligible persons
(as mentioned in the following paragraph) an opportunity to
have a personal stake in our Company and help motivate them to
optimise their future performance and efficiency to our Group and/
or to reward them for their past contributions, to attract and retain
or otherwise maintain on-going relationships with such eligible
persons who are significant to and/or whose contributions are or
will be beneficial to the performance, growth or success of our
Group, and additionally in the case of executives, to enable our
Group to attract and retain individuals with experience and ability
and/or to reward them for their past contributions.

Eligible participants of the share option scheme include (a) any
executive director of, manager of, or other employee holding
an executive, managerial, supervisory or similar position in any
member of our Group, any full-time or part-time employee, or
a person for the time being seconded to work full-time or part-
time for any member of our Group; (b) a director or proposed
director (including an independent non-executive director) of any
member of our Group; (c) a direct or indirect shareholder of any
member of our Group; (d) a supplier of goods or services to any
member of our Group; (e) a customer, consultant, business or joint
venture partner, franchisee, contractor, agent or representative
of any member of our Group; (f) a person or entity that provides
design, research, development or other support or any advisory,
consultancy, professional or other services to any member of
our Group; (g) an associate of any of the persons referred to in
paragraphs (a) to (c) above; and (h) any person involved in the
business affairs of the Company whom the Board determines to be
appropriate to participate in the share option scheme.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Schemes and any other schemes by the
Company shall not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the Listing Date unless shareholders’
approval has been obtained.
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Report of the Directors
HEEWE

The-maximum number of shares issuable under the share options
to each eligible persons in the Schemes within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
Directors. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive Director of the
Company, or to any of their associate, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the closing price of the securities at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders” approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the Directors, and may commence from the date
of the offer of the share options and ends on a date which is not
later than 28 days from the date of the offer of the share options
or the expiry dates of the Schemes, if earlier. The exercise price of
the options is determined by the board of Directors in its absolute
discretion and shall not be less than whichever is the highest of:

(a) the nominal value of a share;

(b)  the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
dally quotations sheets on the offer date; and

(c) the average closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediate preceding the offer date.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years from 15 February 2019, after which no further options
will be granted or offered.

No share option has been granted since the effective date of the
share option scheme and there are no outstanding share options as
at 31 March 2025.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme was
100,000,000 shares, which represented 10% of the Company’s
issued share capital, and the remaining life of the Share Option
Scheme was about 4 years and 8 months.
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Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the Reporting Year
was the Company, or any of its holding companies or subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangement to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from the sections headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company or any Associated Corporations”,
“Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares
and Underlying Shares of the Company” and “Share Option
Schemes” above, at no time during the Reporting Year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or
their respective associates nor was the Company and any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors, or
their respective associates to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

None of the controlling shareholders or the Directors of the
Company and their respective associates is interested in a business
apart from the Group’s business which competes or is likely to
compete, directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business during the
Reporting Year.

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors are
satisfied that the Company has maintained the prescribed
minimum public float of at least 25% of the Company’s issued
shares under Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules as at the date of this
annual report.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at
31 March 2025 are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The details of the Company's corporate governance practices are
set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on
pages 27 to 40 of this annual report.
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REPORTING PERIOD

d in the section headed “Management Discussion
sis” of this annual report, the Board is not aware of
ignificant event requiring disclosure that has taken place
subsequent to 31 March 2025 and up to the date of this annual
report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) assists the Board
in providing an independent review of the effectiveness of the
financial reporting process, internal control and risk management
systems of the Group, overseeing the audit process and performing
other duties and responsibilities as may be assigned by the Board
from time to time. The annual results of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2025 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee, which consists of four independent non-executive
Directors of the Company, namely Ms. Yin Shilu, Mr. Wong Che
Sang Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen and Ms. Zhao Ming, with Ms.
Yin Shilu as the chairlady of the Audit Committee.

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited (“"HLB") will retire, and being
eligible, offer themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. A resolution for its reappointment as
auditor of the Company will be proposed. The financial statements
have been audited by HLB.

On BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Chu Pui Him

Executive Director

Hong Kong

27 May 2025
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The Board believes that sound corporate governance is essential for
the long-term success and continuing development of the Group.
Therefore, the Board is committed to maintaining good corporate
standards and procedures, so as to enhance the accountability
system and transparency of the Group, and to safeguard the
interests of the shareholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Company's corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The Company has complied with all the code provisions
set out in the CG Code during the Reporting Year, except for the
deviations explained below.

Code provision

Corporate Governance Report
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Reasons for the non-compliance and improvement actions took or to be taken

As the Company intends to solicit a suitable insurer at reasonable commercial terms and
conditions, therefore has not arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action

The Company has not appointed a chief executive officer as role and functions of chief
executive officer have been performed by all the executive Directors collectively. The Board
believes that this arrangement enables the Company to make and implement decisions
promptly, and thus achieve the Company’s objectives effectively and efficiently in response
to the changing environment. The Board will continuously assess whether any changes are

SFAMRX FERBERAREEH R ERMZAETH

C.1.8
against its Directors for the year ended 31 March 2025.

C.1.8 ARARFRUSENEEFERRIFFEEREBREAE] BB RLEBZE2025F3831
ALEFEHHHESRNERFALHBERNRE

Cc.2.1
necessary.

Cc.2.1

AABLWEETRER  DETRERNACRBERDLBATESHABT HS
FRA I EHERATENREFHREAR #THARRSEEREADNE R

NS ZENRRE EFEERFETLET AL EFLERNEE-

The Company will continue to review and upgrade its corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG code.

MODEL CODE OF SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct for securities transactions. The Company had made
specific enquiry with the Directors and all of the Directors
confirmed that they have complied with required standards as set
out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2025 and
up to the date of this annual report.

FRBRREBERRREAHCEEGERUEREY
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Corporate Governance Report
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for formulating overall strategies,
setting of performance targets, evaluating business performance,
monitoring and controlling the management performance
including designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement.
The Board is also responsible for ensuring sound and effective
internal control systems are maintained. Please refer to the section
headed “Risk Management and Internal Control” in this Corporate
Governance Report for further details. The management is
delegated with the authority and responsibility by the Board for the
day-to-day management and operations of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility of: (i)
developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board; (ii) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Company’s Directors and senior
management; (iii) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; (iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring codes
of conduct and compliance manuals (if any) applicable to the
Company’s employees and Directors; and (v) reviewing the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

During the year under review, the Board reviewed and monitored
the training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and company secretary of the Company in compliance
with the CG Code and the Listing Rules. Further, the Board
reviewed and monitored the Group’s policies and practices, and
noted that the Group had complied with the relevant legal and
regulatory requirements in all material respects during the year
under review. Lastly, the Board has reviewed the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and the disclosure of this Corporate
Governance Report.
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BEFNBREFENEFTEREZETERNLER

Attendance of each Director at the Board and committee meetings

during the Reporting Year is summarized as follows: St
Board Audit Remuneration  Nomination
Training Meeting Committee Committee Committee
Courses (Note v) (Note v) (Note v) (Note v)
EXgg32 BNLZEE HHWERE RAZEE
1B FIERE GE GED (PEv) (P5Ev)
Executive Directors: HITEE !
Mr. Tam Kar Wai ExREE
(resigned on 17 May 2024) (1202455817 &#E) vi N/ARER N/ARER NAT B NATREE
Mr. Yeung Ka Ho (appointed on B8RS4
22 May 2024 and resigned on (1820245822 H BT
29 November 2024) 1202411 B29B 8HE) v 2/4 NATER NATE R N/AT R
Mr. Chu Pui Him (appointed on  %Rifizkc4E (722024511529
29 November 2024) AEZ() v 1n NAREF N/AR B N/AR B
Mr. Leung Yin Cheuk (appointed 2 E 844 (R2024&11829
on 29 November 2024) HEZE) v 1”n N/ATRE N/AR B N/AR B
Non-executive Director: EHITES:
Mr. Hu Zhi Xiong HERRLE
(resigned on 17 May 2024) (122024558 17H BHE) vi N/ARIER NARER NAT B NATEER
Mr. Fok Siu Keung ERRkE
(appointed on 22 May 2024) (R202455822 B E R ) iv 5/5 N/ARIER NATIEF NATIEE
Independent non-executive ~ BIIFRITES !
Directors:
Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen EHHLE
(appointed on 22 May 2024 (1R2024F5B22HEERE
and resigned on Bi2025%F 1088 BHE)
8 October 2025) iv 4/5 212 3/4 3/4
Mr. Chui Man Lung, Everett GGk
(appointed on 22 May 2024 (1120245522 BEER A
and resigned on K520245 118298 D)
29 November 2024) v 4/4 0/0 373 3/3
Mr. Wong Che Sang BEELE
(appointed on 22 May 2024) (R2024F5822BEE ) iv 5/5 212 4/4 4/4
Ms. Zhao Ming HsL T
(appointed on 7 March 2025) (12025F3R7THEZF) iv 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0
Ms. Yin Shilu FEBLtT
(appointed on 14 May 2025) (1R2025F58 14HEZRF) N/ARE R N/ATE R N/AR B N/AREE
Notes: Mok -

Attending seminars and/or conference and/or forum

ii. Attending courses organised by professional bodies

HERSNER, NEHRAmE
i HEHEERBEBNRE

ii.  Attending courses organised by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified  iii. HFERESZAQATEBIER

Public Accountants

iv.  Reading relevant materials iv. FEMEREN
V. Number of meetings attended/number of meetings held V. HEERHE RRERYUE
vi.  The Company cannot ascertain for these ex-Directors Vi. BRRABBEREZFRIES
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board considered that it possesses a balance of skills, various
experience, capabilities and expertise suitable for and relevant
to the Company’s businesses for providing sound judgment on
strategic issues and effective supervision and guidance of the
management. The Board includes experts in catering, food and
beverage area and professional in legal, accounting and finance.

In addition, the Board consisted of four independent non-executive
Directors as at the date of this Report, representing more than
one-third of the Board. As such, there is a strong independent
element in the Board to provide independent judgment. Each
of the independent non-executive Directors has given an annual
confirmation of independence to the Company pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. As at the date of this annual report,
the Company is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent in accordance with the relevant
requirements under the Listing Rules.

Up to the date of this annual report, the Board comprises seven
Directors, including two executive Directors, one non-executive
Director and four independent non-executive Directors. The board
members are listed below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tam Kar Wai (resigned on 17 May 2024)

Mr. Yeung Ka Ho (appointed on 22 May 2024 and
resigned on 29 November 2024)

Mr. Chu Pui Him (appointed on 29 November 2024)

Mr. Leung Yin Cheuk (appointed on 29 November 2024)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Hu Zhi Xiong (Chairman) (resigned on 17 May 2024)
Mr. Fok Siu Keung (appointed on 22 May 2024)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen (appointed on 22 May 2024)

Mr. Chui Man Lung, Everett (appointed on 22 May 2024)
and resigned on 29 November 2024)

Mr. Wong Che Sang (appointed on 22 May 2024)

Ms. Zhao Ming (appointed on 10 March 2025)

Ms. Yin Shilu (appointed on 14 May 2025)

The biographical information of the Directors is set forth on pages
85 to 86 of this annual report.
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APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Chu Pui Him and Mr. Leung Yin Cheuk have entered into
service contracts with the Company for an initial term of one year
from their respective dates of appointment, which is renewable
upon expiry, subject to compliance with the Listing Rules and
termination in accordance with the provisions of the service
contract or by either party giving the other not less than three
months’ prior written notice.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors have entered into a service contract with the
Company for a fixed term of one year from their respective dates
of appointment, subject to compliance with the Listing Rules
and termination in accordance with the provisions of the service
contract or by either party giving the other not less than one
month’s prior written notice.

According to Article 84 of the Articles, one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if the number of Directors is not a multiple
of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation, provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once
every three years.

According to Article 83(3) of the Articles, any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the
first general meeting of Members after his appointment and be
subject to re-election at such meeting and shall then be eligible for
re-election.

In the upcoming AGM, Mr. Chu Pui Him, Mr. Leung Yin Cheuk,
Mr. Fok Siu Keung, Mr. Wong Che Sang, Ms. Zhao Ming and
Ms. Yin Shilu will retire and be subject to re-election.
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DIRECTORS® CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

The Group noticed the importance of continuing professional
development for the Directors. The Directors are always kept
updated on the changes in the statutory, regulatory, market and
business environment of the Group. The Company will continue
to provide briefing and professional development opportunities for
Directors, if necessary.

BOARD MEETINGS

Pursuant to Code provision C.5.1 of the CG Code, Board meetings
should be held at least four times each year. During the Reporting
Year, the Board has convened five board meetings.

All Directors will receive written notice at least 14 days prior to
regular board meetings. For all other Board meetings, reasonable
notice will be given. The Directors can attend the meetings either
in person or through electronic means of communication in
accordance with the Articles. All minutes of the Board meetings
were properly recorded for the Board's consideration.

To facilitate discharging the duties of the Director, all Directors
can freely communicate with the management for enquiring and
obtaining further information if required. The Directors also have
unrestricted access to the Company secretary who is responsible
for facilitating and advising the Board/committee procedures to
comply with regulatory and statutory requirements. Any Director,
should he/she wish, can seek independent professional advice at
the expense of the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of good corporate governance practices, the
Board established three committees, namely the Audit Committee,
the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
on 25 January 2019 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
The terms of reference of the three committees are posted on the
Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s
website at https://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/welifetech/.
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Audit Committee

During the Reporting Year, the Audit Committee comprised
four members who are all independent non-executive Directors,
namely Ms. Yin Shilu, Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen, Mr. Wong Che
Sang and Ms. Zhao Ming. Ms. Yin Shilu is the chairlady of the
committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to make
recommendations to our Board on the appointment and dismissal
of external auditors, to review financial statements and provide
advice in respect of our financial reports, internal control procedure
and risk management system of the Group, oversee the audit
process, develop and review our policy, and perform other duties
and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

The Audit Committee has convened two meetings during
the Reporting Year with attendance by external auditors. The
attendance record of each member of the Audit Committee can be
viewed from the table on page 29.

Up to the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee had
reviewed (i) the “Report to Those Charged with Governance”
prepared by the external auditor; (ii) the Group’s annual results
and annual report for the year ended 31 March 2025; (iii) the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and risk management;
and (iv) the terms of engagement and remuneration of the external
auditor for its provision of audit and non-audit related services.

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this Report, the Remuneration Committee
comprised three members who are all independent non-executive
Directors, being Mr. Wong Che Sang, Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen,
Ms. Zhao Ming. Mr. Wong Che Sang is the chairman of the
committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include:

(i) making recommendations to the Directors regarding the policy
and structure for the remuneration of all of the Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policies; (ii)
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of the Directors and senior management; (iii) reviewing
and approving the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; and (iv)
considering and approving the grant of share options to eligible
participants pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.
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The-Remuneration Committee has convened four meeting during
the Reporting Year.

Up to the date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee
had reviewed and made recommendations on the remuneration
package of the Directors and the senior management.

Directors’ Emoluments

The emoluments payable to Directors is determined by the Board
with reference to recommendations given by the Remuneration
Committee to the Board taking into account the Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group. A
summary of the Directors’ remuneration is set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management
Pursuant to Code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration payable to members of senior management
(excluding the Directors) by band for the year ended 31 March
2025 is set out below:

HNZE TN REFESRAEREZ-

EEXFREM FNEEEERIAMEFTRD
REEBNFMNTERHEREZZ

EENZ

BNEENME N RESS2EEHFHEEEE S
EERB REARRURTEEEZERAEET
RHNEEZZMEC EZWEMBHN A FH
RE B WAMEE100

EEREGREZEHH

RREFEE R TRIBTRIFSCEBE1.50% 82025
FIAHLEFERUSHREERNRE (FEEES)
AYFr BN IR 4B R ESIU0 T

Number of
individuals
Bands of remuneration EM4E R A&
Nil to HK$1,000,000 =% 1,000,00078 7T 1

Details of Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
individuals to be disclosed under Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules
are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statement of
this annual report.

Nomination Committee

As at the date of this Report, the Nomination Committee
comprised three members who are all independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Wong Che Sang, Mr. Char Shik Ngor
Stephen, Ms. Zhao Ming. Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include: (i)
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board annually and
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the corporate’s strategy; (ii) identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships; (iii) assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors; and (iv)
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of Directors and succession planning for directors,
in particular the Chairman of the Company.
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The Company has adopted the board diversity policy on 25 January
2019 (the "Board Diversity Policy”). The purpose of the Board
Diversity Policy is to set out the basic principles to be followed
to ensure that the Board has an appropriate balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives necessary to enhance
the effectiveness of the Board and to maintain high standards
of corporate governance. Under the Board Diversity Policy, the
selection of Board candidates shall be based on a range of diversity
perspectives with reference to the Company’s business model and
specific needs, including but not limited to, gender, age cultural
background, educational background, and professional experience,
which are the measurable objectives for implementing the Board
Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee is also responsible
for reviewing the Board Diversity Policy, developing and reviewing
measurable objectives for implementing the policy and monitoring
the progress on achieving these measurable objectives. The review
of the Board Diversity Policy and the measurable objectives shall be
carried out at least annually to ensure the continued effectiveness
of the Board. The Nomination Committee has primary responsibility
for identifying suitably qualified candidates to become members
of the Board and shall give adequate consideration to the Board
Diversity Policy in selection of Board candidates. Board nomination
and appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis based
on the Group’s business needs from time to time with adequate
consideration of the diversity of Board members.

The Nomination Committee has convened four meeting during the
Reporting Year.

Up to the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee
had reviewed (i) the board composition, size and structure, (ii) the
independence of independent non-executive Directors and (iii) the
appointment or re-appointment or succession of Directors. After
due consideration, the Nomination Committee has concluded
that based on the Company’s existing business model and specific
needs, the current composition of the Board satisfies the Board
Diversity Policy for the year under review.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

During this Reporting Year, Mr. Wong Tat Keung acted as the
company secretary of the Company, and resigned on 17 May 2024
subsequently. Mr. Lam Man Kit was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 22 May 2024.

Mr. Lam Man Kit is the company secretary of the Company. He
is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. As he is the external service provider to the
Group, his primary corporate contact person at the Company is
Mr. Chu Pui Him, an executive director of the Company.

During the year under review, Mr. Lam Man Kit has taken not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited who will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting of the Company.

For the Year, the remuneration paid to the Company’s auditor, HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, is set out as follows:

NEME

REAREEEN BERLCEZSETARATINAE
WME BB 2024F58 178 F M BEEe R
2024522 R T AR RN A ME -

MXBELREREABDZRAME BB FLRE
SHEMAGERNEREBEMAEEE - AR
REEBRNIINBRBEES  ARARTINEER
BB AR T ARRITER R L

REBFEE  MXELREES MR DR E/NER
el Sl

22 ECl
BREMBERREHEEGHNEEHAERATS
B R A A RERRBEAS LB BHE
Hik AR EEREE-

RAEFE BEABZBMEESSMEBAAR
REZATZFBNESIMNT

Amount

Services rendered Frig AR 75 kot
HK$'000

TFETT

Audit service 1Z B AR 7% 960

DIRECTOR’ S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors understand and acknowledge their responsibility
for preparing the consolidated financial statements for each
financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group. However, the above statement should
be read in conjunction with, but distinguished from, the
independent auditors’ report in the section headed “Independent
Auditors’ Report” on pages 87 to 93 of this annual report which
acknowledges the reporting responsibilities of the Group’s auditor.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, there are no uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Therefore the Directors continue to adopt the going concern
approach in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
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To further confirm accountability, the announcement containing
the full year financial results is signed by the executive Directors,
Mr. Chu Pui Him and Mr. Leung Yin Cheuk, for and on behalf
of the Board to confirm that it is to the best of the Board’s
knowledge, nothing has come to the attention of the Board which
may render such results to be false or misleading in any material
respects. The Board approves the financial results after review
and authorizes the release of the results on the websites of the
Company (https://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/welifetech/) and the
Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) to the public.

Statement of the Company’s external auditors’ responsibilities in
respect of the consolidated financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report of this report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy and the declaration
and recommendation of dividends are subject to the decision of
the Board after considering the Company’s ability to pay dividends,
subject to Shareholders’ approval were applicable. As originally
stated in the Prospectus, the Board recommend dividends of
approximately 30.0% of the profit and total comprehensive income
after tax available for distribution of the Group to the Shareholders
in the coming financial years. However, the Directors will take
into consideration, among other things, the financial results,
operations, liquidity and capital requirements of the Group, general
business conditions and strategies, future business plans of the
Group and legal restrictions when determining whether or not to
recommend and declare dividends. The Board will also review and
reassess the dividend policy and its effectiveness on a regular basis
or as required.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the
internal control and risk management systems (the “Systems”) of
the Group. The Systems are designed for safeguarding the assets of
the Group, assuring the proper maintenance of accounting records
and ensuring compliance with relevant laws and regulations. It
provides reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Group has established an internal audit function to
monitor and review the finance, operation, compliance and risk
management in compliance with the internal control manual and
relevant laws and regulations. The assessments will be presented
to the Board and the Audit Committee for their review and
assessments of the internal control system and risk management of
the Group.
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, Mr. Chu Pui Him and Mr. Leung Yin
sible to oversee of obtaining restaurant license in
with certain laws and regulations. During the Reporting
nd up to the date of this annual report, our Executive
irectors have reviewed of obtaining and renewing the restaurant
licenses for new and/or existing restaurants of the Group and
assured the compliance results to the Board.

During the Reporting Year, the Board has also engaged an
independent internal auditor to review the Systems of the Group.
The scope, the assessment results and the proposed improvement
recommendations were reported to the Audit Committee.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s Systems and considered that the
Group's Systems is effective and adequate. The Systems of the
Group will be constantly reviewed and optimised to coincide with
the strategy and development of the Group.

The Group admits its responsibilities under the provisions of Part
XIVA of SFO and the Listing Rules relating to the disclosure of
inside information to the public. Policies, procedures and internal
controls had been set up for handling and disseminating inside
information to ensure confidential and noticed to the public in a
timely manner.

The procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information are as follows:

1. the Group conducts its affairs in a manner which complies
with the disclosure requirement under the Listing Rules as
well as the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
published by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong
Kong;

2. the Group has restricted access to inside information;
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3. the Group has established procedures to announce or
publish the inside information such as financial results. The
finance team are responsible for monitoring the changes
and developments in their respective areas of operation
and reporting any potential or suspected inside information
events to the Board. Based on the information obtained
from internal reporting, the Board assesses whether any of
the information constitutes inside information which needs
to be released to the public. Should public disclosure be
required, the Board will determine the scope and the timing
of disclosure. If and when appropriate, the Board may seek
independent professional advice to ensure that the Company
complies with the disclosure requirements. The Company
discloses information to the public generally and non-
exclusively through channels including websites of its own
and the Stock Exchange, with an aim to achieve fair and
timely disclosure of information; and

4.  the Group has established and implemented procedures
for communicating the third party. Only executive Directors
and designated person are authorised to communicate with
parties outside the Group.

GENERAL MEETINGS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The AGM is the primary forum for communication between the
Board and the shareholders. At the AGM, the Directors (including
the non-executive Director and independent non-executive
Directors) attend the meeting to answer the queries from the
shareholders and the external auditor of the Group is invited to
the AGM to answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the auditors’ report, the accounting
policies and auditor independence.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Voting by Poll

Resolutions put to vote at the general meetings of the Company
(other than on procedural and administrative matters) are taken
by poll. Procedures regarding the conduct of voting by poll are
explained to the shareholders at the commencement of each
general meeting, and questions from shareholders regarding
the voting procedures are answered. Results of voting would be
declared at the meeting and published on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company, respectively.
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Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, the Board may whenever
it thinks fit call extraordinary general meetings (“EGM"). Any
one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the secretary of the Company, to require an EGM to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders’ Nomination of Directors

Pursuant to Article 85 of the Articles and the "Procedures for
Shareholder to propose a person for election as a director”
published by the Company on the Company's website, any
Shareholder may lodge a notice in writing (the “Notice”) to
nominate a person for election as a director of the Company at
the Company’s head office or the Company’s Hong Kong branch
share registrar and transfer office, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong.

The period for lodgment of the Notice shall commence on the day
after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of
such general meeting.

Procedures for Shareholders’ Other Proposals and Enquiries
Shareholders may lodge other proposals at a general meeting in
writing and forward the same to the Company’s head office.

For other enquires, shareholders may send their written enquires
or requests to the Company’s head office. The company secretary
shall forward shareholders’ enquiries and concerns to the Board
and/or relevant Board committees of the Company, where
appropriate, in order for the Board to respond to such enquires.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

To ensure transparent and comprehensive disclosures to investors,
the Group delivers information of the Group to the public through
various communication platforms, namely general meetings, the
Company’s website (https://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/welifetech/),
announcements and financial reports. Investors are encouraged
to share their views or enquiries to the Company in writing to the
Company'’s head office.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

1. ABOUT THIS REPORT

1.1

1.2

1.3

14

Reporting Scope

This is the seventh Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG") report published by the Company.
By reporting the policies, measures, and performances
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “"Group”) in ESG aspects, it allows
our stakeholders to better understand the progress
and development direction of the Group in relation to
sustainability issues.

Operations that had no significant environmental and
social impacts contributed were excluded from the
reporting scope.

Reporting Period

This ESG report covers the Group's overall
environmental and social performances of the business
operations of its offices in Hong Kong, from 1 April
2024 to 31 March 2025 (the "Reporting Period”),
unless otherwise stated.

Reporting Guidelines

The requirements of Rule 13.91 and the reporting
framework set forth in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide” (the “"ESG Reporting
Guide”) which is set out in Appendix 27 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) serve as the reporting guidelines of this
report.

Reporting Principles

The reporting principles of this ESG report are governed
by “materiality” and “quantitative”. With respect to
“materiality”, we ensure that ESG issues discussed
in this report are sufficiently important and material
to investors and stakeholders including clients,
communities, employees, institutions, governments,
non-governmental organizations, shareholders,
subcontractors, suppliers and industry associations.
With respect to “quantitative”, Key Performance
Indicators (“KPI") required by the ESG Reporting Guide
are measurable such that the effectiveness of our ESG
policies and management systems can be evaluated and
validated continuously.

B g REREmS

1. BARAIRS

1.1

1.2

1.3

14

WREEHE

AR TENSLHRE - HERE
A MRE-HERER) KRS -ZBERS
TR KREMBAR (HHETHEE)) £
RIE-HEREAFENER ElRkE
B ERNEETRAEEEAFAEERE
EESENERKERTTA

BEARBRRMEGZENEFTLEMA
HREEE-

REHA

MRIESARA RIRE - H I REARS
HEREBEANEREN2024F481H
2025538310 (TEREH)) £7%E
ENEREIRIE R E R

wmEES

ERBMAERZFAARAT (TH3ZF)) &
FEHRAWER_+tRHEGRE - HE
KREaHREES) (RE-HEREEGR
H1551) PE139MRARE KB EHER
ThARERRERES] -

HRERA
FRB-HEREABRSHERERAR
B2 I RIBEIMBEE - IEEM

B HAIREARS P RAVIRE 1L
EhELABEHNREERFNE (B
ER & EBE B BUT  FFEBUFAE
BORR-DEH - HEBKRTERS) M
EBRNDEEREARBELIME R
B HEREAREIESIRENRRESR
ER (HRBERIER) B9 oK
BT RERRE - HLEREARRNE
BRENERE-

41

Annual Report 2025 %5



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B g RERERE
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1.5

1.6

The Group is determined to be a responsible enterprise
and is committed to perfecting its business and
improving the local community. In order to determine
what issues are relevant and material to our business
with respect to sustainability, the Group is aware that
the key is to understand what issues our stakeholders
are most concerned about. We define our stakeholders
as people who affect our business or who are affected
by our business. In our daily business, we actively
exchange information with our stakeholders through
our transparent platform while we are devoted to
continuous improvement of our communication
system. In addition, we are committed to maintaining
a long-term partnership with our stakeholders and
are actively engaged in addressing their concerns with
timely follow-up actions. The Group is working to
create a sustainable growth for the benefit of all our
stakeholders.

Reporting Framework

With reference to the ESG Reporting Guide and
the Group’s business operation, the presentation of
this ESG report divides the relevant aspects and KPI,
which are considered to be relevant and material to
the Group, into four subject areas: Environmental
Protection, Employment and Labour Practices,
Operating Practices and Community Investments. An
independent expert was engaged to provide assurance
to the content of this ESG Report and verify the
relevant disclosure of KPIs in this report.

A complete index in compliance with the ESG Reporting
Guide is also available at the end of this report
for reference. Except for provisions that the Group
considers are inapplicable to its operations, for which
explanations have been given on the rightmost column
in the said index, this report is compliant with all the
“comply or explain” provisions set out in the ESG
Reporting Guide.

Data Collection

Data in this report are extracted from the Group's
internal management system and statistics, and part of
the data collected in previous years. Unless otherwise
stated, HKD is used in this report as its functional
currency.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

2. ABOUT WELIFE TECHNOLOGY

2.1

2.2

Group Profile

We are a full-service restaurant group in Hong Kong
and the PRC offering Cantonese dining and banquet
services including wedding banquet service.

As at 31 March 2025, the Group operated six
restaurants in Hong Kong, including three Chinese full-
service restaurants operating under the brand “Palace
(J2/F) ", one restaurant operating under the brand
“Sea Moon Cuisine (BB E&EE) " at China Hong
Kong City and two Cha Chuan Tong restaurants in
Hong Kong.

Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality

The Group values input and feedback of its
stakeholders as they bring potential impacts to
the Group’s business. Shareholders, management
and employees of the Group have been involved in
annual general meetings, staff meetings, stakeholder
surveys, daily email and telephone communications
to share views regarding the Group's operations and
performances. The Group has specifically engaged
internal stakeholders to gain further insights on ESG
material aspects and challenges through stakeholder
surveys in the Reporting Period.

We take stakeholders’ expectations into consideration
in formulating our businesses and ESG strategies
by utilizing diversified engagement methods and
communication channels, shown as below.
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Stakeholders

Requirements and expectations

ERKRPE

=<

Description

i

Government

BT

Suppliers
HAER

Shareholders/Investors

BwKREE

Media & Public
BREKR AR

44

Compliance with Listing Rules

Bsr EHARAY

Comply with business regulations and
taxes

BT RHEERRNE

(@)  Fair competition/quality and price;
NEHRE/BERES;

(b)  Stable payment terms
TRIE B9 FRARRR

(@)  Financial performance
MHRIR

(b)  Corporate governance
TESA

() Market image
MGER

Corporate governance, environmental
protection, and human rights
TEEA IRRRER AR

Welife Technology Limited #4145 ERIE B IRAE]

Regular Information Reporting

TEHIE KR 3

Accept guidance and supervision;
BRI RER;

Operation in accordance with law;
and

ROERLE ; &

File tax returns and pay tax in
accordance with the laws.

REBRIRANTIR

Conduct suppliers assessment
regularly and/or prior the expiry

of contract under a rigorous and
regulated system
EBEEAZEENFIET TR
/R B HA T T AR P 5T

Conduct general meetings;
CHRBRRAE ;

Comply with market rules;
BITHIHBHRE

Publish annual and interim reports;
and

BMERKRPR ; &

Publish regular announcements in
the Stock Exchange.
BRI PRE BRSNS ©

Improve community livelihood;
HEHEE 5

Implement eco-friendly measures to
reduce, reuse and recycle resources
to minimize environmental impact;
and

Bt B A REWEIRIR
REH UERSERVHIRENF
2, &

Disclose the development strategy
and corporate governance.

REZRBBEREEER
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B g REREmS

Stakeholders Requirements and expectations Description
& BERKRHAE it
Customers (@)  Product quality o Promptly respond to customer
ZR EnEs complaints;
(b)  Customer complaint handling MRCIEE P& ;
EREIFEE e Address customer feedback and
(c)  Customer privacy protection opinions; and
EREIRE BARPRRERRR ) &
° Sincerely protect customer privacy.
B fRFEZ A AR
Employee (@) Good salary and benefits o Install facilities and arrange cleaning
(= RIFNH & REF] to improve the working and
(b)  Fair promotion and career comfortable environment;
development ZEXERZHEZ  UETE
NRESARBEERE IRIBR IR HETEIRIE ;
() Good and safe working ° Organize training and workshops;
environment ABIE RS ;
RBZ2MITIFIRIE o Establish communication channels;
and
BUEBBRE &
o Sound compensation system.
2 Ry Er B o
Society Corporate Responsibility o Community charity; and
e EST HEZEE &

o Sustainable development strategy.

IR R ERS
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2.3

e management of the Company
ort, engage in and are concerned with all
ssues related to ESG through the management
f daily operations and take appropriate actions
whenever applicable. ESG- related risks are identified
through the risk control procedures and the identified
material aspects are strictly managed through the
Group’s policies and guidelines. Management of the
aspects have been described in separate sections below.
Through the continuous improvements related to ESG
issues, the Group has been reducing the potential
risks that may derive from environmental, social and
economic developments and to review the policies on
a regular basis in order to enlarge the benefit of the
stakeholders. The Group will continue to identify areas
of improvement for the concerned aspects and keep
close communication with its stakeholders to share
and exchange ideas for advancing the Group's ESG
management.

Stakeholders’ Feedback

The Company welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on
our ESG approach and performance. Please give your
suggestions or share your views with us via mail to our
head office.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE POLICY

At Welife Technology Limited, ESG is viewed as a business
philosophy that creates sustainable value for all our
stakeholders including but not limited to shareholders,
employees, business partners, customers, suppliers,
Government bodies and community members. By
embracing opportunities and managing risks derived from
environmental, social, and economic developments, our
ESG policy defines our long-term approach to specific
issues in two cornerstones: Environmental and Social, which
is instrumental in enabling our business to operate in a
sustainable manner. The Group is committed to the long-
term sustainability of our business development and the
communities in which we operate.

3.1 Environmental Policy

We value the importance of environmental protection
and the impact of the environment on the well-being
of communities. The Group pursues the following
initiatives on the environmental protection policy:

o To give due consideration to environmental issues
in our corporate decision-making process and
actively minimize the impact of our business
operations on the environment;

° To continue to improve our environmental
performance and comply with applicable
environmental laws and standards;

o To reduce energy consumption and improve
energy efficiency, conserve resources, use
renewable or recyclable materials, minimize
the use of paper and dispose of waste in an
environmentally responsible manner; and

o To raise staff awareness of environmental issues
through education and training and by posting
the Go Green Initiatives in the pantry, washrooms
of workplaces and restaurants for all staff.
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der our staff as valuable wealth of the Group
the foundation for the development of the Group.
We also believe in giving back to the communities in
which we operate. The following are our policy on
social aspects:

o To foster a supportive and quality working
environment by upholding employment practices
that treat our staff fairly and equally;

. To safeguard the rights and interests of our staff
by strict compliance with the applicable laws and
never harm their interests;

o To provide our staff opportunities for training and
development;

o To ensure a healthy and safe workplace and
facilitate meaningful communication within the
Group;

o To maintain a high standard of integrity,
transparency and accountability in our operations,
improving our services based on evolving
market demands, and promoting sustainable
development to our stakeholders; and

o To support local initiatives that create effective
and lasting benefits to the community through
corporate philanthropy and mobilizing our staff to
participate in volunteer work.

This Policy shall be communicated to the Group’s
stakeholders, including but not limited to its
employees, shareholders, suppliers, business partners
and customers, and made available to the public, in
particular the investing public.

The Group is committed to the continual development

of this Policy and its integration into the Group's
operations and will review this Policy on a regular basis.
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ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

Go Green Initiatives

While the impact of global sustainability issues such as
climate change, plastic pollution, ecological and ethical
footprints is increasingly prominent, the Group is aware that
consumers are gradually becoming more sensitive to those
issues which start to influence the purchasing decisions of
average consumers. Where previous customers would rarely
question how a product was made or what it was made
of, corporates are now expected to clearly state where
products come from and how the ESG policies inform their
choice of processes, materials and deployment of human
resources. The change of consumer mentality is progressively
transforming purchasing decisions.

As such, it has never been more important for the Group to
implement good ESG practices into our business model. We
are committed to instilling the consciousness of resources
conservation, deeply indoctrinated the low-carbon concept
and environmental protection into the work and life of every
employee. We continue to seek business partners who share
our philosophy, commitment to environment conservation
and compliance with the applicable environmental laws and
regulations.

Although change is always difficult and requires careful
management, we firmly believe that these initiatives will
become part of our competitiveness and are capable of
reflecting our commitment to offering our customers the best
quality of services with the least adverse impact on our planet
and to building a greener and healthier environment together
with all the members of the community.

Corporate Environmental Policy and Compliance

Tremendous efforts in recent years have been made by
the Hong Kong government and numerous corporates in
the city to promote the construction of a green and low
carbon environment and ecological civilisation for the
community. The Group, as a member of this community,
is committed to upholding high environmental standards
and to disseminating the concept of sustainable and green
development via reducing waste discharge, carbon footprint
and resource consumption, devoting human and financial
resources for environmental conservation and promoting a
harmonious and sustainable development among people,
society and the environment.
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at is principally engaged in offering
ining service and banquet services in Hong
our operation in general does not consume extensive
ural resources, nor does it produce a significant amount
of greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions. Nevertheless, we
endeavour to protect this planet and to build a sustainable
future for our next generations. The Group formulated
relevant rules and regulations for the sound and effective
management of energy consumption, greenhouse gas
("GHG") emission, as well as discharge of domestic waste
and sewage and other pollutants, which are highlighted
below.

o Actively promote a culture of environmental
sustainability among customers, workforce, and
supplier, encouraging their participation in green
initiatives;

o Comply with applicable environmental protection laws
and regulations;

o Define appropriate goals, objectives and targets on a
regular basis for our ESG management approach;

o Continuously improve the ESG management system and
maintain rigorous standards; and

. Communicate our environmental performance to
stakeholders and seek their involvement wherever
applicable.

During the Reporting Period, the Group complied with
relevant laws and regulations relating to air and GHG
emissions, discharge into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste. The Group did not
violate any environmental protection laws or regulations of
the region where we operate, nor was it subject to significant
fines, non-monetary penalties and litigation relating to
environmental protection.
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4.1

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Emissions

Governance on Air and Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”)
Emissions

Environmental protection has always been one of
the fundamental values of the Group. In the course
of achieving the Group's business objectives and
maximizing value creation for its stakeholders,
the Group strives to achieve a balance between
its operation needs and the environment by using
resources wisely and minimizing pollutants from
its business operation. The Group recognizes its
responsibility to contribute towards environmentally
sustainable development as reflected by its policy
statement:

o Towards full compliance with environmental
legislation and other applicable regulations;

o Environmentally clean and use energy efficiently;
and

o Prevent pollution by applying effective waste
management and environmental friendly work
practice.

The Group has also formulated related environmental
initiatives to promote sustainability within its
business. The Group upholds the principles of
emission reduction and resource efficiency in its
environmental management approaches. This is
achieved by implementing measures that promote
energy efficiency, wastes reduction and other green
initiatives. The Group is also committed to educating its
employees in raising their awareness of environmental
protection and complying with relevant environmental
laws and regulations. Within its policy framework,
the Group continually looks for opportunities to
pursue environmentally friendly initiatives, enhance
its environmental performance by reducing energy
consumption and the use of other resources.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with laws
and regulations concerning air and GHG emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of non-
hazardous waste, including but not limited to the Waste
Disposal Ordinance of Hong Kong (Chapter 354 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Air Pollution Control
Ordinance of Hong Kong (Chapter 311 of the Laws of
Hong Kong).
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of emission sources from the Group during
porting period were mainly diesel consumed by
Group-owned vehicle, use of electricity and disposal
of paper to landfill. The Group's business does not
involve in consumption of packaging materials,
production-related air, water, and land pollutions which
are regulated under national laws and regulations.
In addition, the Group's core businesses in financial
services, car operating lease services and property
technology services do not contribute to significant
environmental or natural resources impact comparing
to businesses in other sectors. Most importantly, the
Group still strives to minimize its adverse environmental
impact from its business operation.

Air emissions

A total of 1,222 liters of diesel was used for the Group-
owned vehicles in the Reporting Period, contributing to
0.02 kg of sulphur oxides, 0.59 kg of nitrogen oxides
and 0.04 kg of particulate matter.
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0.59F TR ALY %0.04F s FEHRIY)

Greenhouse gas emissions B ERASHEIL
Scope of Greenhouse AERE Emission’
Gas Emissions Emission Sources (in tCO2e)
BEE!
(AW — | 1B h%
et El BERUIR =)
Scope 1 EE1
Direct Emission Diesel consumed by Group-owned Vehicle 3.53
I=E2200¢ REB BB ABEHENSEM
Scope 2 giE2
Indirect Emission Use of Electricity 2,900.41
EEEz 1 BIEA
Scope 3 EiE3
Other Indirect Emission Paper Consumption 16.78
H BB HRHFE
Total st 2,920.72
Note: MI5E -
1. Emission factors were made reference to Appendix 1. BRIBBEEBAIN BERGEE2EERE

27 of the Main Board Listing Rules and their referred
documentation as set out by Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited, unless stated otherwise.
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Measures to Mitigate Emissions

The Group has set up teleconference facilities and uses
online meetings the in office to avoid business trips
whenever possible. When options are available, the
Group also opts for direct flights to reduce unnecessary
carbon emissions.

Waste Management

Waste Management Policy

Waste reduction is the focus of our emission control
efforts. The Group’s principal waste management policy
endeavours to achieve a green and paperless operation
and a minimal generation of food waste during our
operation wherever possible and practical. The Group,
through the following measures and objectives, strives
to achieve the target of reducing the amount of waste
generated and aims at waste management from the
source.

. We endorse the “4-R Principles — Reduce, Reuse,
Replace and Recycle” as our key policy of waste
management;

o During the Reporting Period, the Group
participated in the "Food Wise Hong Kong
Campaign” driven by the Environmental
Protection Department to promote awareness of
the community on the food waste reduction in
Hong Kong so as to lessen the long-term burden
on landfills;

o We reduce the amount of waste disposed such
as paper usage, plastic bottles, cooking oil and
remained amenities;

o We extend our commitment to using sustainable
products into every aspect of the business —
including the furniture;

o We generally do not provide plastic straws and
plastic stirring rods to customers unless plastic
straws are specifically requested;

o We encourage all employees to reduce paper
usage through duplex printing, paper recycle and
frequent use of electronic information systems
for material sharing or internal administrative
documents;
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o We encourage the increased use of reusable
products, such as envelopes, and better
separation of waste streams for recycling;

o We maintain 100% recycling rate of used toner
cartridges by collecting and sending all used
cartridges to recycling agents;

o We encourage minimum consumption of paper
towels;

o We strengthen our employees’ awareness in
environmental management, waste reduction
and waste recycle, encourage them to be
equipped with appropriate skills and knowledge
with respect to the practice of sustainable
development; and

o We closely keep up with the latest government
initiatives and policies in relation to waste
management, waste reduction and recycling
campaigns in order to allocate resources and
formulate strategies in a timely manner.

Hazardous Waste

Given our business nature, the Group does not directly
produce hazardous waste throughout our operations.
To reduce the environmental impact of chemical
agents, our cleaning contractor uses environmentally
friendly detergents and cleaning products. In addition,
we encourage waste recyclers to collect electronic
waste such as old computers from us wherever
practical, ultimately reducing both the monetary and
environmental costs involved in the disposal of these
electrical parts that may become hazardous waste.

Non-hazardous Waste

Non-hazardous waste generated by the Group are
mainly food waste or alternatively known as kitchen
waste, paper towels and napkins. Designated
containers are used for separation and temporary
storage of disposed food waste before collected by
authorized waste collection contractors. The Group
has been a partner of the “Food Wise Hong Kong
Campaign” promoted by the HKSAR Government since
2015 and undertakes to continue its dedication to food
waste reduction.
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Food waste, used cooking oil and grease trap waste
are properly separated and collected by authorised
service provider of waste collection. The Group assigned
personnel for food waste management and regularly
review the effectiveness of the food production,
processing and final disposal procedures adopted.
“Food Wise” signs are available at the Group's banquet
halls to promote the culture of eating wisely. Statistics
of food waste disposal are gathered and analysed on a
monthly basis, so as to evaluate the effectiveness of our
food waste management.

Moreover, the Group has policies in place to reduce
its waste generation through the implementation
of certain controls at its supply sources in order to
manage the amount of waste generated. For example,
the Group has established a central kitchen and has
implemented cost control mechanisms to achieve
better control of its food purchase. The Group actively
monitors the consumption of food ingredients for each
restaurant and will make adjustment to its procurement
of food ingredients if necessary. These measures help
minimise excessive consumption of food ingredients
and reduce food waste. In addition, the Group is also
an advocate for low-carbon dining and waste recycling,
as well as reducing the use of disposal tableware.

Wastewater Discharge

The Group's operation consumes a significant amount
of water for sanitary and dining restaurants In relation
to the Group’s wastewater management, the Group
carries out oil separation and pre-treatment of
wastewater before discharge. The Group also contracts
a sewage service to properly handle its domestic
sewage. During the Reporting Period, the Group was in
compliance with the Water Pollution Control Ordinance
("“WPCO") (Chapter 358 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Besides educating its employees, the Group also
engages in regular assessments of its utility services. In
particular, the Group regularly checks for water-seepage
or leaking pipelines. if such problems are identified,
the Group will ensure that the defective parts causing
the seepage or leakage are replaced and repaired on
a timely basis. During the Reporting Period, the Group
has had no issue of sourcing its water.
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FY2025

Intensity

Unit 2025 (per restaurant)

20250 EE B

B 20255 (S REER)

Non-hazardous Waste mEBEEY tonnes M 174.41 28.02

Annual Report 2025 %5 55



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B g RERERE

4.2 Use of Resources 42 EIRFEHR

Minimizing Energy Consumption

The Group considers the conservation of natural
resources to be an indispensable component to
promoting a sustainable business, and strives to
minimize the energy consumed at all levels in its
operations by identifying and imposing measures to
increase energy and resource efficiency.

Through actively adopting a variety of environmentally
friendly measures, the Group is able to facilitate the
efficient use of its resources, including but not limited
to, energy, paper, water and other raw materials.
Further, the Group has implemented policies to raise
awareness in relation to the conservation of electricity
and has adopted energy saving measures in its daily
operation as illustrated in the ESG Report. Throughout
the years, the Group put forth a strong emphasis on
minimizing the usage of mentioned materials during
our daily operations. The following table shows the
figures of material consumption in the Group's business
operations.

BB R FETFHFE
FEERRREREREIRENFE
EFH R ERAVAERER D W B BEE K
B AERRERURVER > R 1&
RIBEMB L HEEREEEERER
HFE

BEBIBIRIN S BIRRIE I A EEBES
REEERNARIA BFEERRE
BETR ~ MRSR ~ AR ELAth R AZ L o B SN > SR
B HEREAREHAT™ AEEEEN
BERLUIBEMERH  UEHBEEPR
ENENAEIE I - ZF LR AEBIFEER
HHEEERFERDEHR LA T
IR EBEBEENM SRR

FY2025
Intensity
Unit 2025 (per restaurant)
2025 B E
B 20254 (S RABEE))
Electricity BN kwh F E.BF 4,176,517 696,086
Purchased Gas INEERIAR kg T3 302,312 50,385
Unleaded Petrol RS0 L AF N/A REHR N/A REHR
Paper IR kg T3 3,170 528
Water 7k m3 37 75 K 159,857 26,643
Diesel 501 L AF 1,222 203
Energy
Direct Consumption
Consumption (in kWh)
AEIRIHFE
Energy Consumption Sources REIRHFER HiZHE (A FRF5ET)
Diesel 4 1,222
Liter AFt 12,219
Electricity BN 4,176,517
kWh F ELBF 4,176,517
Total “ast 4,188,736
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Energy Use Efficiency Initiatives

The Group actively adopts electricity conservation and
energy saving measures as well as other measures such
as:

o Providing on-off and zoning control of ventilation
system in the workplace according to the
operation schedule when those rooms are not in
operation;

o Encouraging employees to switch off IT devices,
such as computers and monitors when not in use;

o Installing LED lighting systems in our restaurants
and offices;

o Encouraging employees to use modern
telecommunication system to avoid unnecessary
travel arrangement;

o Placing “green” reminders on office equipment
to further enhance employees’ environmental
awareness; and

o Encouraging employees to adopt the aforesaid
energy saving practices.

Water Use Efficiency Initiatives

The water used by the Group is mainly accounted for
the consumption of sanitary and dining restaurants.
During the Reporting Period, the Group has actively
adopted various measures to educate the staffs to
save water from daily life. In order to establish proper
attitude towards the use of water in the office, the
Group has posted water saving signs at prominent
places to remind employees to control the water flow
when washing hands, minimise tap water flow and
switch off the tap after use.

Furthermore, with respect to wastewater management,
waste water is pre-treated with oil separation
before discharge. Sewage service is contracted out
to a qualified service provider for proper handling.
Furthermore, the Group conducts regularly inspection
of its banquet halls” water facilities to ensure no water
leakage. The Group ensures all domestic sewage
is properly discharged into the urban sewage pipe
network for subsequent sewage treatment. During the
Reporting Period, the Group complied with the WPCO.
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our business nature, the Group does not
ave manufacturing facilities and does not consume
significant amounts of packaging materials. However,

the Group is dedicated to engaging suppliers to
reduce packaging materials, to adopt an eco-friendly
packaging design and to explore alternative eco-friendly
material to replace conventional packaging.

(i) Eco-friendly packaging design

Simple packaging — excessive packaging is
not recommended and packaging should be
available for recycling with the fundamental
principle of protecting the content from
damage;

Reusable design concept — the reuse of
packaging materials should be promoted
through careful design of the packaging and
its material (such as reusable red pocket);
and

Gift-packaging integration — wherever
possible, the packaging should be
incorporated as a part of the gift so as to
raise their utilization and minimize waste
generation (such as thermal bags used
for the storage of Chinese-style sticky rice
dumplings).

(i) Eco-friendly packaging material

Recyclable packaging materials, especially
for those containing recycled constituents
(such as recycled paper) or environmentally
certified products (such as FSC paper) and
minimizing the use of non-environmentally
friendly materials with low recyclable values
(such as PVC plastic or plastic foam);

Eco-friendly or fully biodegradable
packaging materials (such as biodegradable
bag for take- away); and

Biodegradable bathroom amenities
packaging.
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4.3 Environment and Natural Resources

Resource Conservation

The Group is committed to building a cleaner
environment when carrying out our business, actively
managing adverse impacts on the environment and
natural resources by adopting green purchasing food
in our dining service. In addition to compliance with
relevant environmental laws and regulations to properly
preserve the natural environment, the Group has
integrated the concept of environmental protection into
its internal management and daily operation with an
objective of achieving environmental sustainability.

During the Reporting Period, the Group implemented
“Sustainable Dining Policy” to preserve the Earth’'s
resources and to avoid purchasing unsustainable
food. In conformity with the ‘Sustainable Seafood
Guide’ issued by the World Wildlife Fund and Marine
Stewardship Council, we purchased seafood that has
been sustainability-labelled and certified from socially
and environmentally considerate suppliers.

During the Reporting Period, the Group encouraged
customers to use alternative dishes to substitute shark
fin at all of its banquet halls to ensure that the Group
provides food that is not only in the best quality but
also environmentally sound.

The Group strives to take steps to minimize negative
environmental impacts of the Group's operations.

In the course of complying with relevant environmental
laws and regulations to preserve the natural
environment, the Group has also integrated the
concept of environmental protection into its internal
management and daily operations, with the ultimate
goal of achieving environmental sustainability in the
long-term. In addition to strategic waste management
and conserving resources, the Group aims to procure
food that has been sourced from socially and
environmentally considerate suppliers.

In the future, the Group will endeavour to continue its
commitment in environmental protection and strive to
build a greener and healthier environment to fulfil its
responsibilities as a member of society.
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4.4

Climate Change

Climate change may increase the frequency and
intensity of extreme events. Many countries are
considered amongst the most environmentally
vulnerable nations in the world. Natural disasters,
such as cyclones, floods and droughts are not
new and local farmers have adapted to working
with highly variable climate and weather extremes
through farming practices, traditional knowledge and
experience derived knowledge. However, any changes
outside of their sphere of knowledge and experience
can have significant implications for agricultural
production. Climate projections for the 21st century
and beyond, suggest an increase in events outside
of current experience with heatwaves, droughts and
floods increasing in frequency and intensity, cyclones
increasing in intensity, extreme high tides and storm
surges continuing to threaten low-lying islands and the
continuing sea level rise threatening contamination of
groundwater.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has not
been significantly impacted by climate-related issues
while the Group understands that climate-related
issues are harmful to the environment and have been
rigorously regulated by the United Nations’ Framework
Convention. The Group recognises the importance of
identifying climate change risk in order to mitigate
the associated impacts on its business operations. As
a result, the Group has continuously evaluated any
impact arising from natural disaster and has taken
measures to mitigate its impacts.

SOCIAL MATTERS

5.1

Employment and Labour Practices

The Group fully understands that our corporate
development and long-term growth are largely driven
by the continued quality services delivered by our
experienced and competent workforce. As such, it is
of paramount importance for us to proactively manage
our talent pipeline and career development for the
employees. The Group is determined to uphold an
open, fair, just and reasonable recruitment and human
resource policies, with respect to equal opportunities,
diversity and anti-discrimination.
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We encourage differences and individuality in
employees, with the philosophy that diversity can bring
new ideas, dynamics and challenges to our operations.
We discourage all forms of discrimination on gender,
age, family status, sexual orientation, disability, race
and religion. Our employment policy encourages hiring
of talented people with physical or mental disabilities.
We are committed to supporting our employees to
maintain a family-friendly work environment because
we respect their roles and responsibilities in their
families. We strive to make sure employees and
business partners comply with laws and regulations,
follow ethical business practices and respect equal
opportunities in employment. We bring in new recruits
and equip them with necessary skill sets to develop a
long-term rewarding career with us.

During the Reporting Period, we strictly observed
the applicable laws and regulations and follow our
employment policies relating to recruitment and
promotion, compensation and dismissal, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare, by
providing competitive remuneration packages and
internal promotion opportunities, so as to recruit and
retain experienced employees.

All of the Group’s employees were based in Hong
Kong. The Group will continue to strictly observe
the applicable laws and regulations and follow its
employment policies relating to recruitment and
promotion, compensation and dismissal, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination and other benefits and welfare. Further,
the Group also aims to improve employee morale by
providing competitive remuneration packages, internal
promotion opportunities and performance-based
bonuses.

Employment

During the Reporting Period, the Group re-structured
its workforce in response to the COVID-19 pandemic.
The Group complied with the Labour Law of Hong
Kong and relevant employment laws and regulations
throughout the Reporting Period, including the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter
485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) by participating in the
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme
(the "MPF Scheme") for our eligible employees.
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In addition, during the Reporting Period the Group
was also in compliance with the Minimum Wage
Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the Laws of Hong Kong,
the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws
of Hong Kong and the Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance (Chapter 282 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
through the offering of competitive wages, medical
insurance, disability and invalidity coverage, maternity
leave and other forms of compensation to the Group’s
employees.

Equal Employment Practices

The Group puts significant emphasis on the welfare of
employees whom it considers the Group'’s most valuable
assets and the foundation of its business development.
Hence, the Group strives to attract and retain talents
and reconcile economical imperatives with well-
beings, aiming at reinforcing satisfaction, loyalty and
commitment of human capital, as well as treating our
staff fairly and equally.

The Group has adopted comprehensive human
resources manual which includes policies and
procedures applicable to all staff. The Group offer
employees competitive and fair remuneration
packages with discretionary year-end bonus that are
commensurate with their experience, performance
and job responsibilities. Annual review of salaries
has been proceeded based on employees’ overall
work performance, attitude, job knowledge, job
responsibilities, punctuality, qualifications, pay scale,
the Group’s operating results, the prevailing inflation
rate and other conditions in the market. All employees
are treated fairly regarding recruitment, training
and development, appraisal of work performance,
promotions, rest periods, remuneration and benefits.

During the Reporting Period, the Group strictly
complies with the relevant laws and regulations relating
to employment, including but not limited to the
Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong, the Minimum
Wage Ordinance of Hong Kong, the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance of Hong Kong and
the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance of Hong Kong.
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Transfer, Promotion and Dismissal

The Group provides opportunities for internal transfers
under employees’ request, provided that there is an
opening in the transferee department. It is also subject
to appraisal evaluation of the employee’s qualification
and approval by the head of the transferor and
transferee department. Annual performance appraisal
serves as an effective tool for department heads to
evaluate employees’ capabilities, work performances
and contribution to the Group in accordance with
the Group’s policies and procedures, setting the basis
for any salary adjustments and internal promotions.
Whenever possible, promotion opportunities will first
be offered to talented employees before sourcing
candidates outside of the Group. Employees are
also welcomed to discuss their career development
with their respective department head or the Human
Resources Department.

An employee who wishes to resign should tender
notice in writing to the Group as stipulated in his or
her letter of appointment. Staff dismissals are based
on the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of Laws of
Hong Kong) or relevant local laws and regulations, as
well as the requirements stipulated in the employment
contracts.

Equal Opportunity

The Group provides a fair, equal opportunity, respectful
and pleasant work environment to employees.
All practices are designed to ensure processes of
recruitment, employment, assignment, training,
promotion, compensation and offers are based on
employees’ qualifications, experience and/or the terms
and conditions, regardless of employees’ race, color,
religion, national origin, sex, age, marital status, sexual
orientation, disability, political affiliation, personal
appearance, family responsibilities, matriculation or any
other characteristic protected under local law.
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Total Employees and Turnover ESEERmXIET
As of 31 March 2025, the Group employed 220 staffs HE2025%3831H  AEBEHIERF220%
in total. As an illustration, the workforce statistics by BE - 1EaERE  UBHKE R BZEFELE
employment type and gender, are illustrated in pie B R BB 2 BB T4 st B > MU E
graphs while the workforce statistics by age group and B T AR R Rt & B 2 BB T 4% 5T
geographical region are disclosed as bar charts: B
Employment Type and Gender 1EFAE R R MR
EMPLOYEE BREAKDOWN BY EMPLOYMENT TYPE EMPLOYEE BREAKDOWN BY GENDER
REFENSSHNESSE BERBSHEE D
Part-time
E it Male
4% sM
55%

Full-time Female
25 pegics
96 % 45%

EMPLOYEE BREAKDOWN BY AGE GROUP
RERENIDHNES D E
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% of Employee Age Group
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Employee Age Group
BEEF&HER
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About half of the Group's workforces are female KEBYN—FETALE RIMEE
with almost all of the staff being full-time employees. THEEBER - AEES% U ENET
Over 65% of the Group’s staff is aged above 46. All FHLBIBA6TET o am Al ~ S W
employees are remunerated fairly, regardless of gender, il PR B THHMEE 2 A FH

age or nationality.

The annual turnover rates categorized by different PR EHRRIRAE MR FE 4R Rt E
gender, age group and geographical region in the SN FEREMKLLERNT :

Reporting Period are as follows:

EMPLOYEE TURNOVER RATE BY GENDER
BN S HNRERKLLR
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5.2

itted to complying with relevant
rds and employment laws and regulations
are applicable to our business. During the
porting Period, no material and significant disputes
occurred between the Group and the employees.

Health and Safety

Promoting Health and Safety

As the Group is principally engaged in offering
Cantonese dining service and banquet service in Hong
Kong, employees’ health and safety is a paramount
concern of the Group and is vital to the operation of
the Group's banquet restaurants. As such, the Group
has accordingly formulated a series of personnel
management policies to provide employees with
a healthy, safe, positive and motivated working
atmosphere.

The Group’ s risk management system involves the
identification, prevention and management and
mitigation of risks and hazards throughout the Group’s
offices and restaurants as well as strict follow-up
procedures for accidents or personal injuries that have
occurred during the operation of the Group.

66  welfe Technology Limited 4 /14 ERHS A RAT

5.2

FEBRHBTEARKFAEBHERH
B ITREARERERER -NERSHA
FEBRRBEEZHABRELEREREX
A5 o

BESRE

(EERFHZD

MR AEEEFEZNEBRHEABTHNR
BREGRE BENBERZEAE
BEREAONBE BAEEEGEEZNK
EEFEE R AEBHE-—RIA
FEEHRR REIRMHER 22 %
BRERNITIERE-

FEBNERERSESEH |/
EENHERERRAERBZNER
REE UEMAERCEBRETEEDN
EHRHNABBEMRNERETIERF -




Environmental, Social and Governance Report

In addition, the Group maintains an internal record
and reporting procedures as regards work injuries
to ensure that the work injuries cases are properly
addressed and handled by the Group’s management.
During the Reporting Period, the Group had complied
with the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance
(Chapter 509 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The Group
did not record any accidents that resulted in death or
serious physical injury. No material non-compliance with
laws and regulations relevant to health and safety of
employees were identified.

Occupational Safety and Health (“OSH")

The Group is highly aware that employees’ safety and
health is of paramount importance to our operation
and therefore, the Group is determined to attaching
great importance to a healthy, comfortable and safe
working environment for our employees which protects
them from potential occupational hazards, health
and safety risks, in order to achieve zero tolerance of
accidents and injuries. The goals of our OSH policy are
highlighted as below.

° The OSH management system aims at
identification, prevention and management of
risks and hazards throughout the workplaces as
well as follow-up actions for accidents or personal
injuries;

° The OSH management system defines appropriate
objectives and targets on a regular basis;
. Zero tolerance of accidents and injuries;

. Promotion of a safety culture among employees;

o Commitment to the provision of a safe and
healthy working environment for the employees;

° Commitment to human and financial resources
for the OSH management system;

o Communication of our health and safety
performance with stakeholders and seek their
involvement wherever applicable;

o Encouraging contractors to align with our OSH
standards and develop an OHS management
system based on hazard analysis and risk
assessment of their projects or operations; and
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e with applicable laws and regulations
lation to occupational safety and health.

To achieve the goals of our OSH policy, the following
measures are adopted.

o Installing air purifiers in relatively crowded areas;

o Prohibiting smoking and abuse of alcohol and
drugs in the workplace;

o Providing clean and tidy rest area such as corridors
and pantry;

o Ensuring sufficient ventilation and lighting system
in the offices and workplaces;

o Providing adjustable chairs and monitors for eye
protection;

o Setting up posters of proper working postures and
lifting method accessible on the intranet and at
appropriate locations in offices;

o Organizing daily cleaning procedures by internal
employees and engaging external cleaning
companies to provide regular services such as
pest control, garbage collection, carpet cleaning,
aquarium cleaning, grease tank cleaning and air-
conditioning systems;

o Conducting fire drills to raise the staff's awareness
of fire prevention;

o Improving the fire evacuation plans by providing
first aid kits and fire extinguishers in workplace in
response to emergencies;

o Assigning competent and skilled staff to handle
works with critical hazards or impacts related to
OSH;

o Promoting the safety culture through various
communication channels such as safety
campaigns, discussion and sharing sessions;

o Requiring contractors or sub-contractors to assist

in the implementation of policies, procedures and
practices related to OSH at work;
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o Organizing induction programs and safety training
programs to new employees such that they can be
familiar with our corporate policies in relation to
health and safety matters as quickly as they can;

o Conducting review on the performance of the
OSH measures on a regular basis so that their
effectiveness and reliability can be maintained,;
and

o Our OSH measures include conducting daily
inspections, formulating emergency response
plans, conducting risk assessment and refining its
accident investigation mechanism so as to ensure
legal compliance and minimize risks associated
with OSH.

During the Reporting Period, the Group complied
with the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance,
by ensuring that the employees are working in a safe
environment in respect of health, hygiene, ventilation,
gas safety, building structure and means of escape.
The Group did not record any accidents that resulted
in death or serious physical injury. No material non-
compliance with laws and regulations relevant to
accidents, health and safety of employees were
identified during the Reporting Period. Summary of
work-related fatalities and injuries are shown in the
table below.
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No. of Work-Related Fatalities

Rate of Work-Related Fatalities

No. of Employee Suffered from
Injuries at Work

Lost Days due to Injury at Work

FY2025 FY2024 FY2023

202584 IEEE 202484 BUEE 20230 HEE

EITETHE 0 0 0

EIFETHXR 0 0 0
BETITE#%E

7 4 6

EATEHEBEANTIEAH 202 176 474

To reduce work-related injuries, the Group commenced
investigations and filed detailed records of each
accident along with follow-up action. The investigation
results enabled the Group to improve the content of
occupational safety training, to increase employees’
safety awareness, to improve the workplace safety and
to remove potential hazards at source.
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5.3 Development and Training

Talent Management

The Group acknowledges and highly value continuous
staff training and development. Therefore, the Group
takes a proactive approach to expose employees
to different types of opportunities to advance their
careers. On-the-job training is provided to all employees
through day-to-day operation regarding the updates on
Hong Kong Corporate Governance Code, Employment
Ordinance, financial reporting, financial management,
property technology, fire regulations, prevention control
measures for COVID-19 and etc. In addition, employees
are encouraged to attend internal and external training
courses to be updated on the latest guidelines and
information on market and industry development
and requirements to improve their performance and
encourage their self-developments as well as maintain
their competitiveness within the industry.

Internally, the Group offers its restaurant employees
comprehensive training programs to ensure that they
possess the appropriate qualities and adequate skill-
sets when serving the Group's customers. Such qualities
and skill- sets may include thorough knowledge of
their work, good etiquette and manners, effective
communication, welcoming personality and willingness
to serve. The Group offers a multitude of training
programs that focus on different areas, including
specific service skillsets development, corporate culture,
health and safety, business ethics and corruption
prevention. The Directors believe that these training
programs not only boost the sustainable development
of the Group, but also facilitate the career prospects of
individual employees.

Apart from training courses, the Group values the
long-term career development of employees. As such,
a standardised internal promotion scheme has been
established to provide clear promotion guidelines for
employees. At the same time, the Group is committed
to supporting employee career development with
systematic training plans to improve their personal
value and talent pool building. Specific measures
include internal chef training which is intended to train
kitchen staff such that they can master the knowledge
and skills required as a chef, and seeking potential
managerial candidates through special training and
career guidance.
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Training, Induction and Continuing Development
of Directors

Each Director receives comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/
her appointment so that he/she has appropriate
understanding of the businesses and operations of
the Group and that he/she is fully aware of his/her
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant regulatory requirements.

The Group is committed to arranging and funding
suitable training to all Directors for their continuous
professional development. Each Director is briefed and
updated from time to time to ensure that he/she is
fully aware of his/her responsibilities under the Listing
Rules and applicable and regulatory requirements and
the governance policies of the Group. All Directors also
understand the importance of continuous professional
development and are committed to participating in
any suitable training to develop and refresh their
professional knowledge and skills.
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Hours of Training

The Group strives to provide training to the staff to help
them to keep abreast of the latest trend in the industry
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Hours of Training

EMPLOYEE TRAINED BY EMPLOYEE CATEGORY

BRETENAPHNZINIET

80%

60%

40%

20%

0%

Frontline Middle Senior
Staff Management  Management
AIRET FRERE EREEE
Employee Category
BT4E5

AVERAGE TRAINING HOURS PER
EMPLOYEE BY EMPLOYEE CATEGORY
BETHENESNEM8 T PIEIIEE

16.0
12.0
8.0
4.0
0.0
Frontline Middle Senior
Staff Management ~ Management
A ET RREIRE SREIRE
Employee Category
BT 45

FAEBRANB/E TR UBHER
TENRNBERERHSENERE-



5.4

5.5

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Labour Standards

Prohibiting Forced Child and Labour

The Group condemns any form of child exploitation or
forced labour and is aware that these practices violate
human rights and international labour conventions.
In this regard, the group strictly prohibits the
employment of any child labour and forced labour. To
prevent the aforesaid, the Group explicitly states the
age requirement of its employees in its recruitment
advertisements and new employees are required to
declare on their documents that they have provided
true and accurate personal data when they join the
Group. The Group's recruiters are also required to
strictly screen and review entry documents of the
Group's employees, including medical examination
certificates, academic certificates and identity cards.
During the Reporting Period, no child labour, illegal
labour or forced labour was reported.

To prevent forced labour practices, the human resources
management functions would ensure sufficient rest
days would be given to employees. Two specific
measures will be explicitly states the age requirement
of its employees and perform Identity Cards Control
under Labour Ordinance. No employee is made to work
against his/her will or work as forced labour, or subject
to corporal punishment or coercion of any type related
to work.

Supply Chain Management

Upholding High Procurement Standards

Supply chain management has always been one
of the key aspects of the Group's operation. The
Group encourages all its business partners to adopt
sustainability practices during their operations
thoroughly to facilitate sustainable development.

To ensure the quality of food and service, the Group
has established a rigorous and regulated system of
food procurement and processing. The selection
procedures and criteria of the Group’s suppliers largely
emphasise product quality and consider environmental
and social risk control. The Group regularly evaluates
the performance of its suppliers, strengthens the
management of environmental and social risks
and promotes the sustainable development of the
enterprise.
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5.6

During the Reporting Period, the Group had
approximately 150 suppliers located in Hong Kong
and the PRC. The supply chain management team
conducts an annual evaluation on the Group’s approved
suppliers to ensure that their suppliers meet the Group’s
requirements. The regular assessment includes on-site
inspections of the hygiene condition of the Group's
manufacturing facilities, the production control of the
Group and the Group's implementation of its quality
control system. With more than 10 years of operation,
the Group has maintained good relationships with its
suppliers, with an emphasis on a steady supply of fresh
and quality food ingredients.

The Group also implements the Category management,
which is a retailing and purchasing concept in which
the range of products purchased by a business
organization or sold by each restaurant is broken down
into discrete groups of similar or related products; these
groups are known as product categories (examples
of grocery categories might be: frozen food, sea
food, pork meat, vegetables, fruits, tinned food, and
beverage etc.).

Product Responsibility

Ensuring Good Service and Product Quality

In discharging its responsibility to provide quality
food and service, the Group ensures that the food
ingredients are safe, fresh and of good quality upon
delivery, in storage and during processing. The Group
purchases ingredients that are the most suitable for
dining service and banquet service in Hong Kong and
strictly implements a high standard of procurement to
select diversified quality ingredients for its customers.

As a responsible catering service provider, certain
measures have been implemented by the Group,
including, but not limited to the following:

o Adopting standardised hygiene control procedures
in the restaurants; and

o Engaging external consulting companies for
freshness checks.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has also
complied with the relevant laws and regulations relating
to advertising, such as the Trade Description Ordinance
(Chapter 362 of the Laws of Hong Kong), by ensuring
that there are no false and misleading messages in its
advertisement and promotional activities.
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Quality assurance process and recall procedures
Measurements obtained at the “performance moment”
of a food product are based on consumers providing
sensory responses. At this critical step, feedback is
necessary to ensure quality requirements are met and
customer expectations exceeded.

Food Test audits will provide valuable information.
They are typically conducted on products retrieved at
the point of purchase, but they also may be done at
locations throughout distribution, through a three-step
process:

Develop a plan for a thorough product examination.
Elements to consider are product display; presentation,
rotation (FIFO), age, availability, and package condition;
damage, seal integrity, legibility of code dates,
weight, and product analysis; label claims, physical
characteristics, nutritional analysis, taste testing,
palatability, and shelf life; and many other performance
indicators. Therefore, we have regular Quality Sampling
Testing recorded by Purchasing Department or taste
testing verified by Top Management and available
food quality audit can gather as much information as
desired.

Intellectual Property Rights

The Group is committed to compliance with relevant
laws of intellectual property right by valuing and
protecting its intellectual properties through periodic
trademark renewals. Violation of the above regulations
may result in disciplinary actions including immediate
termination of employment without any compensation
and notice. No material non- compliance in relation to
intellectual property rights laws and regulations was
recorded during the Reporting Period.

Confidentiality

Customer data protection

In the course of its operations, the Group is engaged
in developing and strengthening its data mining
and analytical capabilities to enhance the catering
experience of its customers. As such, the Group was
engaged in collecting and retaining of its customer’s
information.
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dertakes to strictly comply with relevant
d regulations in relation to privacy to ensure
at all the data in relation to its customers is securely
kept in the Group’s internal system with access control.
The Group also sets out data privacy requirements in its
corporate policies, under which customer data would
be used exclusively for matters relating to the Group's
operation. The Group strives to ensure that all collected
data kept is free of unauthorized or accidental access,
processing, deletion or other use.

Complaints Handling

The Group has set up various complaint and feedback
channels, including guest comment cards, telephone
hotline, social media channels, emails and food critic
websites (e.g. Openrice), to collect suggestions and
advice from the Group’'s customers. The customer
feedback is compiled daily in the restaurants and are
further reviewed by the relevant personnel.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not receive
any material complaints and no material claims were
made against the Group's food, nor were the Group's
restaurants subject to any investigation with respect to
food hygiene by any government authorities or relevant
customer protection organisations.
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RE -EFHHRERTHAL (HIM
Openrice) » MNEAEBELANERX
EZ-BESSHREERENRE WHE
AN BiE— S =R -

RBREHN FEB T BEREEHERR
FoTERERAERENRREHNEXR
REG AEEBVER O ARZ EMEAIEATER
FIRERE R REARNBRFERE

FY2025
202581 BUE 2
%
Percentage of sold/shipped products/services A2 kEREAMIRNEE BT
recalled due to safety and health reasons BER/RBENEDLL 0
Percentage of complaints received about the BREEERZEMEEEANESR REN
products/services related to health and BREZFEST
safety issues 0
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5.7 Anti-Corruption

Commitment to Anti-Corruption

The Group emphatically affirms its zero-tolerance
stance regarding corruption, fraud, and all other
behaviours that severely violate professionalism and
work ethics. The Group adheres to a high standard
of integrity, transparency and accountability in its
operations. As stated in the staff handbook, without
prior permission from the Group, employee shall not
be engaged in any work or be involved in any business
either alone or jointly with any other person or persons,
or with a company directly or indirectly related to the
reward or receipt of commission or fee from the Group.
Employees are not allowed to solicit or accept any
advantage in money or in kind from any parties having
business relations with the Group for their personal
benefit. Employees are also prohibited to invite any of
the parties having business relations with the Group to
attend their personal banquets, dinner parties and/or
personal gathering.

The Group has set up an effective whistleblowing
policy to encourage employees for reporting of fraud,
corruption, bribery, extortion and money laundering
when it occurs. In case of suspected corruption or other
criminal offences, a report will be made to the Hong
Kong Independent Commission Against Corruption
("ICAC") or the appropriate authorities in the PRC. Any
employee in breach of this regulation is liable to be
summarily dismissed and may render himself or herself
liable to prosecution under Section 9 of the Prevention
of Bribery Ordinance of the Laws of Hong Kong.

The Group encourages honesty, integrity and fairness
in all aspects of its business and upholds a high
standard of business ethics and prohibits any form
of bribery and corruption. As a result, the Group
has developed a series of anti-fraud and anti-bribery
policies. Also, the Group conducts regular systematic
fraud risk assessments and continues to monitor the
effectiveness of risk control while addressing any
deficiencies and enforces its fraud mitigation policies
through collaboration with external parties. Apart
from the anti-bribery and anti-corruption policies, the
Group also encourages all its employees and business-
related parties, including customers and suppliers, to
proactively report any suspected misconduct issues to
the Group.
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B g RERERE
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5.8

Regarding the training provision, the Group conducts
regular assessments on systematic fraud risks, continues
to monitor the effectiveness of risk control while
addressing any deficiencies and enforces its fraud
mitigation policies through collaboration with external
parties.

Apart from the anti-bribery and anti-corruption
policies, the Group also encourages all its employees
to participate other professional association to explore
the practical issues of corporate governance and
risk management in a company. Through content
and case study, participants will be able to gain
the understanding and experience to recognize the
problems and difficulties of applying the best practice,
and judgments and decisions that company leaders and
managers will have to make while facing a variety of
situations and contexts.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had complied
with the relevant laws and regulations relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering, which
have an impact on the Group, as well as the corporate
policy of anti- corruption. No cases of corruption had
been reported during the Reporting Period.

Community Investment

Contributing to the Welfare of Society

The Group is highly concerned with the issue of
food waste that the industry is commonly facing in
Hong Kong. To further promote the awareness of the
community on food waste reduction, the Group, during
the Reporting Period, was actively involved with the
“Food Wise Hong Kong Campaign” organized by the
Environmental Protection Department as part of the
Group's effort in “building a sustainable environment’
and ‘serving the community”.

Going forward, the Group will continue to foster the
culture of active participation in community services,
encouraging our staff members to be actively engaged
in voluntary services and join hands together to
disseminate the spirit of services in the community
where we all depend. Further, the Group is actively
committed to advancing society through its active
involvement in the community.
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The Group uses its best endeavour to help local
communities and those in need through volunteer
work, donation programs and social enterprise
support systems. The Group actively cooperates with
charitable organisations to organise social activities to
support public welfare and charitable projects so as to
establish a good corporate image while fulfilling social
responsibilities.

During the Reporting Period, the Group actively
cooperates with charitable organisations to organise
social activities to support public welfare and charitable
projects. Through actively participating in multiple
meaningful charity events such as Pok Oi fundraising
event organised by the Pok Oi Hospital, in which
the Group contributed a donation of approximately
446,000 of the reputable charity organizations in Hong
Kong, Pok Oi Hospital 2024/2025. The Group continues
to support the organization’s provision of quality
medical, educational and social services for the needy
of our society. Overall, it could help establish a good
corporate image while fulfilling social responsibilities.

Lastly, so as to build a better society, we also
active involved and partnered with local non-profit
organizations to organize and take part in a variety
of charitable activities and actions such as health
education and action, poverty relief action, children,
elderly, underprivileged groups, animal welfare and
environmental protection. We put the best effort
and resources in helping the local communities and
people in needs through multiple channels including
community services and sponsorship programs,
including but not limited to the following:

. Liens Club of New Territories East Limited

. Association for the Welfare Services of Elders
(Hong Kong) Limited

o The Association for Hong Kong Catering Services
Management Limited
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Subject Areas,
Aspect, General

G REPORTING GUIDE

6. IRIF-HEREBHKSIESIRSI

Disclosure and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
FEHE -EEH —RIKE

KRR AR Fi:pa =8 BH

Aspect A1: Emissions

BEA1 - HEl

General Disclosure

—RIREE

KPI'AT.1

BB AE RIS 1RATT

KPI'A1.2

RREMIEIRAT.2

KPI'A1.3

RRREMIEIRAT3

KPI'A1.4

FREMIEIRA1.4

80

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,

discharges into water and land, and generation of

hazardous and nonhazardous waste.

BRBERKRERBERN  MAKREI MBS -BE

REEEEYVNELESN

(@ BR; R

(b) HEFHETABEARZENEBERRRAN
#ho

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

AR R R ARRRHE I B o

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG
emissions in total (in tonnes) and intensity.

Bi (#E) REREE EE2) AERBHRES
(UMEETE) RBEE -

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and
intensity.

FIEEBEEREEYEE CUEHE) REE-
Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and

intensity.

FREEEERERYEE LUEE) RBE-
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Emissions — Governance on Air
and Greenhouse Gas ("GHG")
Emissions; Air Emissions; GHG
Emissions; Measures to Mitigate
Emissions; Waste Management;
Go Green Initiatives

s -—=mMEERE (TR
EREE) FFRER  ERIFL
BEREHEN ; B BEREIHE
i BERYER ; BAITEH

i

Emissions — Air Emissions; GHG
Emissions;

Waste Management;

Go Green Initiatives

e — =R
RERBHIN ; BEWER;
AR ITITERRE

Emissions — GHG Emissions

B —RERBHEK

Emissions — Waste
Management

(Not applicable — Explained)
B —BEEYER

T BR-ERE)

Emissions — Waste
Management

R -ERYER
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B g REREmS

Disclosure and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
TEHE -BEm —REE

K EASRAE M IEIR Ei::pus =8 BH

KPI A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken GHG Emissions; Measures to

A MIEIRALS

KPI'A1.6

FREMIEIRA1.6

to achieve them.

MR B R BERBRMRIA L 5 -

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, reduction target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.
HRUAEEEERBREEEY FIRATEERS
EIRBERMRE 5 o

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BHEA2 : ERER

General Disclosure
— AR EE
KPI A2.1

BB AR S 1RA2.1

KPI'A2.2

RREMIEIRA2.2

KPI'A2.3

RREMIEIRA2.3

KPI'A2.4

RREMIEIRA2.4

KPI'A2.5

AW IEIRA2.5

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including
energy, water and other raw materials.

BRERER (BEER KR EMERMED) AR

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in
total and intensity.

BRENSSNERR SHBERREEREE

Water consumption in total and intensity.

FEKBEREE -

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.

PR ERER M B R A BERERM
REXHY S BR o

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose, water target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.

HSREGE AR I BEABEE PR AKER
EABHRBEMEXERN T -

Total packaging material used for finished products (in
tonnes) and with reference to per unit produced.

Ry P A B M EINEE (UEEE) &
FEEEMGS

Mitigate Emissions; Waste
Management; Go Green
Initiatives

mERRHIN
BOBERBIETE ; BEEYEIE
AREAITERRE

Emissions — Waste
Management; Go Green
Initiatives

B —BEYER ;
AREAITERRE

Use of Resources — Minimizing
Energy Consumption
BREA-BER A IEREE

Use of Resources — Minimizing
Energy Consumption
BREA-BER A IEREE

Use of Resources — Minimizing
Energy Consumption
BREA-BER A IEREE

Use of Resources — Minimizing
Energy Consumption; Energy
Use Efficiency Initiatives
BREA-BERDEERM
¥ BERE AN mstE

Use of Resources — Water Use
Efficiency Initiatives

BERER - AKX st &

Use of Resources — Packaging
Materials (Not applicable)
BREA-—8EME (FER)
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Subject Areas,
Aspect, General

Disclosure and KPIs Description
FEHR -EE-—RESE

KRR AE M IERR Ei::pu

Section/Declaration

0 L

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BEA3 : IRIERXAER

General Disclosure Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact
on the environment and natural resources.

— iR E BRETAHRERRARAEREHNEAZENER
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on

the environment and natural resources and the actions
taken to manage them.

BB RS 1RA3. T HHHIRB R R ARERENERT ENEE KT
A B R FE o

Aspect A4: Climate Change

EEAS . RIEEE

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant
climate- related issues which have impacted, and
those which may impact, the issuer.

—RiREE BRIEA R BEEF BN T ERHITANEAR
RAERA R R R EUR ©
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues

which have impacted, and those which may impact,
the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.

R B AR WIS 1RA4N HWBE BN R ER T ANERRBEHRFEZE
K2 R ER Y B IR 45 ©

Aspect B1: Employment
BB : B1E
General Disclosure Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, antidiscrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.
—RiREE BRAFMRERE BEREA LR KRB TFE
BE Lt REGRUREMFEREN !
(a) HHR; &
(b) BETFHETABEAXENBRERRBRAN
Bhto
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The Environment and Natural
Resources — Aiming to Minimize
Impact on the Environment
BRERRABER-EEREESH

RIGHRE

The Environment and Natural
Resources — Aiming to Minimize
Impact on the Environment
BRERRABER-EEREESH

RIGHRE

Climate Change — Addressing
the Climate Change Issue

RREE-FRREEICEE

Climate Change — Addressing
the Climate Change Issue

RREE-FRREEICEE

Employment and Labour
Practise

EBEREIER



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Subject Areas,
Aspect, General

Disclosure and KPIs Description
FEHB -EEH-—RIKE
KRR AR A

B g REREmS

Section/Declaration

0 L

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

[EmEB2 : RFEHEZZ

General Disclosure Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing

a safe working environment and protecting employees

from occupational hazards.

— RN ER ERREY2 I ERERFEREEHPRELERE
By :
(@) B &
(b) BETHBITABEATERNERERRIBHIMN

Aspect B3: Development and Training
[EmEB3 : & ERiE
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills
for discharging duties at work. Description of training
activities.
BRIEFAEB BT TIEB &R 3 A F BERYEER © #
MBS o

— IR EE

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

[EmEB4 : ¥ T %8|

General Disclosure Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

—ARINER BRAMIEE T aisRH %5 TaY ¢
@ HBR;k
(b)) BTFTHETABBEAZENEREREKRRIN

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EMEBS : HAEHEEIE
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of
the supply chain.

— AR EE EEMEENIRERTERMBRBER-

Health and Safety

Development and Training

= K E

Labour Standards

Supply Chain Management

HEREEE
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Subject Areas,
spect, General
Disclosure and KPIs
FEHR -EE-—RESE
KRR AE M IERR Ei::pu

Description

Section/Declaration

0 L

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[E@EB6 : EREIE

General Disclosure Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling

and privacy matters relating to products and services

provided and methods of redress.

BRI ERNBRBNRREAZE  BE BB KX

TAREE U R AR

(a) HHR; &

(b) BTFHETABEAXENBRERRBRAN
Hhto

—RIREE

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

[BmEB7 : R&ES

General Disclosure Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money

laundering.

BRIFEEE - 15 BREF R R B 82AY ¢

(@ H&E; &

(b) BETFHETABEAXENBRERRBRAN
B}

—RIREE

Aspect B8: Community Investment
[BEBS : ttEKE
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

BTS2 HERTHREEETAMTLERTEMN
BERREHIHGEBHLRAENOBR-

—RIREE
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Chu Pui Him

Mr. Chu, aged 37, graduated from Hong Kong Shue Yan University
with a Bachelor of Commerce (Honours) degree in Accounting.
He had worked in an international audit firm as an assistant
audit manager. He then worked as a senior project manager in a
listed company in Hong Kong and was responsible for corporate
management matters such as project management, finance and
fund-raising arrangement. Mr. Chu has extensive experience in
corporate management and operations of both listed and unlisted
companies.

Mr. Leung Yin Cheuk

Mr. Leung, aged 38, has over 10 years of trading experience in the
consumer electronic products industry. He is now actively involved
in local catering and related businesses.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Fok Siu Keung

Mr. Fok, aged 65, has over 40 years of experience in the catering
and banquet service industry. He has worked in renowned hotels
and government institutions in Hong Kong, gaining extensive
experience in catering services.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Che Sang

As advised by Mr. Wong, Mr. Wong, aged 72, has more than
50 years of experience in the catering and banquet industry. He
has worked in various famous hotels and eateries in Hong Kong
and mainland China, acquiring senior and rich experience in
management and operations of catering and banquet services.
Mr. Wong is also active in industry associations and organizations.

Ms. Zhao Ming

Ms. Zhao, aged 43, holds a master's degree in accountancy and
a bachelor’s degree in accountancy from South China University
of Technology. She has worked for a number of companies listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and was mainly
responsible for finance and mergers and acquisitions. She has over
17 years of working experience in finance, accounting, taxation,
treasury and listed companies in Hong Kong and the PRC. She is
currently the investment director of a private enterprise group in
the PRC.

Directors and Senior Management
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aster's degree in civil and commercial
iversity of China, a bachelor’s degree in
m Beijing Normal University, and is a fellow
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
as worked for several companies such as multinational
corporations and accounting firms. She was mainly responsible
for finance, auditing and mergers and acquisitions. She has over
12 years of working experience in finance, accounting, taxation
and treasury in Hong Kong and the PRC.
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B &30 F A R
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF WELIFE TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of Welife Technology Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 94
to 179, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2025, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including material accounting policy
information.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the
matters described in the “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion”
section of our report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion
on these consolidated financial statements and as to whether they
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

As disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements,
the executive directors of the Company (the “Existing Directors”)
were unable to locate: a) certain books and records and the
corresponding supporting documents of certain subsidiaries,
namely, the Eternal Grand Developments Limited and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Eternal Grand
Group”) and Global Gourmet Catering Services Management
Limited and its subsidiary (collectively referred to as the "Global
Gourmet Group”) (the “Lost Records”) and b) certain supporting
documents of the books of account of the Company (the “Lost
Supporting”).

Independent Auditors’ Report
Yo ST AZ BT
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Independent Auditors’ Report
J N AZ B S

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (Continued)

The Existing Directors advised that, as of the date of approval of
these consolidated financial statements, despite their repetitive
attempts to contact the previous directors, who were responsible
to maintain proper books and records for the Group (the
“Previous Directors”), the Existing Directors were unable to reach
any of the Previous Directors to locate the Lost Records and the
Lost Supporting. As a result, the Existing Directors were unable to
provide complete and adequate accounting books and records and
supporting documents for us to perform our audit in relation to
the Company, Eternal Grand Group and Global Gourmet Group.
We were therefore unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to ascertain the following:

(i) The potential impacts on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group arising from the Lost
Supporting

a. The potential impacts of the Lost Supporting on

the financial statements of the Company

We were unable to ascertain as to the occurrence,
accuracy, completeness, cutoff, classification and
presentation of the transactions of the Company
have been presented in its statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income and the valuation,
existence and completeness of the related items have
been presented in its statement of financial position in
accordance with HKFRSs. Since the financial statements
of the Company form part of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group, the inability to perform
sufficient audit procedures on the Lost Supporting
results in the same limitation on our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (Continued)

()

The potential impacts on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group arising from the Lost
Supporting (Continued)

b.

The potential impacts of the Lost Supporting on a
business development consultancy agreement

As disclosed in Note 37, on 10 March 2025, the
Company received a winding up petition filed by an
independent third party (the “Service Provider”)
against the Company, pursuant to a business
development consultancy agreement entered into
between the Company and the Service Provider
with a contract amount of RMB9,400,000 during
the year ended 31 March 2024 (the "Consultancy
Fee"). The Existing Directors have appointed a legal
counsel to handle the ongoing legal proceeding and
seeking evidence for the services rendered by the
Service Provider and the validity of the agreement and
concluded that the Consultancy Fee should not be
recognised in the consolidated financial statements for
the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2025 of
the Group.

However, due to the lack of sufficient appropriate audit
evidence arising from the Lost Supporting to ascertain
the nature and details of the Consultancy Fee, we
were unable to carry out audit procedures necessary to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to ascertain
the occurrence, accuracy, completeness, cutoff,
classification and presentation of the transactions
on how and whether the Consultancy Fee should be
recognised by the Group in accordance with HKFRSs.

Independent Auditors’ Report
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (Continued)

(@
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The potential impacts on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group arising from the Lost
Supporting (Continued)

C.

The potential impacts of the Lost Supporting on
debts claimed by petitioners

As disclosed in Note 36, the directors of the Company
received a petition dated 27 October 2023 (the
"Petition”) from certain creditors (the "Petitioners”)
filed in the High Court of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, which claimed that the
Company may be wound up by the High Court on
the grounds that it was unable to pay its debts due to
the Petitioners of HK$13,604,000 (the “Debts”). A
settlement was reached on 10 July 2024 between the
Company and the Petitioners. Based on the result of the
settlement, the directors of the Company recognised
a litigation loss and provision of approximately
HK 13,804,000 (the “Litigation”), in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 March 2024 and the
consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2024 of the Group, respectively.

Due to the unavailability of sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to audit the financial information of the
Company arising from the Lost Supporting, we were
unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to satisfy ourselves as to the validity, commercial
substance, legitimacy, occurrence, completeness,
accuracy and classification of the Litigation. Our audit
opinion on the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2024 was modified accordingly.
Our opinion on the current year’s financial statements
is also modified because of the possible effect of this
matter on the comparability of the current year's figures
and the corresponding figures.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (Continued)

(ii)

The financial impact to the Group’s consolidated
financial statements due to the Lost Records

As disclosed in Note 34, on 16 September 2024 and
28 August 2024 (the "Disposal Dates”), the Group disposed
the Eternal Grand Group and the Global Gourmet Group
to an independent third party respectively, which resulted
in a gain on disposal of subsidiaries of approximately
HK$2,193,000 recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 March 2025 (the “Gain on Disposal”).

Due to the unavailability of the books and records and
sufficient appropriate audit evidence arising from the Lost
Records to audit the financial information of the Eternal
Grand Group and Global Gourmet Group as mentioned
above, we were unable to carry out audit procedures and
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence necessary to
satisfy ourselves as to the completeness, existence and
valuation of the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities
of the Eternal Grand Group and the Global Gourmet Group
as at the Disposal Dates and the occurrence, accuracy,
completeness, cutoff, classification and presentation of the
transactions of the Eternal Grand Group and Global Gourmet
Group for the period from 1 April 2024 to the Disposal
Dates. Since the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities
of the Eternal Grand Group and the Global Gourmet Group
affect the determination of the Gain on Disposal, we were
also unable to determine whether adjustments to the Gain on
Disposal might be necessary to be made in the consolidated
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 March 2025.

Any adjustments found to be required may have
consequential significant effects on the elements in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2025 and the comparative figures for the
preceding year and hence on the assets and liabilities of the
Eternal Grand Group and the Global Gourmet Group as at
the Disposal Dates and 31 March 2024 and the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the Eternal Grand Group
and the Global Gourmet Group for the years ended 31 March
2024 and 2025.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (Continued)

There were no other satisfactory audit procedures that we could
adopt to obtain sufficient evidence regarding the matters as set
out in items (i) and (ii) above. As a result of these matters, we were
unable to determine whether any adjustments might have been
found to be necessary in respect of the items as set out above, and
the elements making up the consolidated profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of financial
position, and the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS OF THE
COMPANY AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors of the Company determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group's
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA and
to issue an auditors’ report solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
However, because of the matters described in the “Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion” section of our report, we were not able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for
an audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Mr. Shek Lui.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Shek Lui
Practising Certificate Number: PO5895

Hong Kong, 27 May 2025
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evenue W #
Other income HAWA
Other gains or losses, net Hihm s 1855
Cost of inventories consumed Fr¥ERFE M A
Staff costs BT A
Property rentals and related expenses MEMRERAEMMAS
Utilities expenses REZFAS
Depreciation of property, M RE KRR EITE
plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEITE
Other expenses Hifx
Finance costs UECINEN
(Loss)/profit before tax BRIAT (B548) aF]
Income tax expenses FrEMAX

(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to ENBVEE ANEHER

owners of the Company (8518) & #
Item that may be reclassified subsequently — B & B 55 E #7748 E 18 75 15
to profit or loss: EH

Exchange differences arising on translation &SN EFEELENER

of foreign operations =%
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal K~ H & i &8 A 5 1 R R E R
of subsidiaries E1E
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive R (BB EMNREE
(expense)/income for the year BEx2) IR A 4B%E
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive ENBEE ANELER
(expense)/income for the year attributable (&8 HER R
to owners of the Company 2@ () WA LLzE
(Loss)/earnings per share K (BB /&7
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) —E AR EE GBI
94  \welife Technology Limited 414 ERHS A RAT

11

13
12

15

227,632 421,309
4,367 5,191
141 7,789
(55,727) (102,207)
(115,748) (146,614)
(15,622) (22,423)
(11,389) (21,502)
(4,358) (7,808)
(26,913) (45,137)
(32,062) (52,676)
(2,224) (6,777)
(31,903) 29,145
(69) (300)
(31,972) 28,845
= 131
(171) S
(32,143) 28,976
(32,143) 28,976
(2.8) 2.5




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RS LRy RIS

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

Notes
M =
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME--BERKE 16
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17
Deposit placed for a life insurance policy LEASRERE 19
Rental deposits HEEE 20
Current assets RENEE
Inventories 58 22
Trade and other receivables 85 kEMEWIE 20
Tax recoverable A [EIFR I8
Time deposit with maturity over three monthsZl 88 H 818 =18 3 B9 E HifF =X 23
Bank balances and cash IRTTAER RIRE 23
Current liabilities i =R
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENTIE 24(a)
Contract liabilities HHEE 24(b)
Bank borrowings IRITIE 25
Lease liabilities HEEaE 17
Tax payable FETHRIE
Provision for reinstatement costs B8 R A1 26
Net current liabilities mEEEREE
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTEAE

2024
20244
HK$'000
FHET
2,844 9,589
9,168 36,567
16,651 16,414
1,950 17,133
30,613 79,703
1,253 1,040
24,580 24,641
80 =
= 2,000
22,744 76,289
48,657 103,970
44,973 45,292
12,165 18,630
= 14,448
7,039 47,623
396 300
= 776
64,573 127,069
(15,916) (23,099)
14,697 56,604
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FRBEE

urrent liabilities

Lease liabilities HEaE

Contract liabilities HEHEE

Other payables H MR8

Provision for reinstatement costs 118 Bl A i

Net assets BEE

Capital and reserves B KRB

Share capital [N

Reserves i

Equity attributable to owners TATEE ANEGER

of the Company

The consolidated financial statements on page 94 to 179 were
approved and authorised for issued by the board of directors on 27
May 2025 and are signed on its behalf by:

CHU Pui Him
EE
Director

EF
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17 4,932 11,971
24(b) 167 133
24(a) 48 878

26 850 2,779

5,997 15,761

8,700 40,843

27 11,500 11,500
(2,800) 29,343

8,700 40,843

FUEEFITIBEMNGE S BRERAEZEEFT TH2025
FSA27AMAERBETIZERBEUTALIRAESE

LEUNG Yin Cheuk
REH
Director
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For the year ended 31 March 202

25F3H31HILEEE

E“ﬁ::_‘_

At 1 April 2023 1202354810 11,500 135,967 24,510 (160,110) 11,867
Profit for the year FREH - - - 28,845 28,845
Exchange differences arising on BEBIMEBELNERE

translation of foreign operations ko] - - 131 - 131
Profit and total comprehensive EREHREZENR G AR

income for the year - - 131 28,845 28,976
At 31 March 2024 and 1 April 2024 122024538318 K $20245

4B1H 11,500 135,967 24,641 (131,265) 40,843

Loss for the year FREE - - - (31,972) (31,972)
Release of exchange reserve upon ~ RHEMBARBEBRESR

disposal of subsidiaries # - = (171) = (171)
Loss and total comprehensive FRBEEREZERT AR

expense for the year - - (171) (31,972) (32,143)
At 31 March 2025 12025934318 11,500 135,967 24,470 (163,237) 8,700

Note: Other reserves represented (i) the difference between the aggregate
amount of issued and fully paid share capital of the subsidiaries
acquired by the Company and the nominal amount of the shares
issued by the Company in exchange for the entire equity interests in
the subsidiaries as part of the group reorganisation; (i) the difference
between the consideration for the acquisition of a subsidiary and the
fair value of the subsidiary acquired from the common shareholder
of the Company; (iii) deemed contribution arising from the listing
expenses borne by the controlling shareholder of the Company and
waiver of the need to reinstate the premises for a restaurant rented
from the controlling shareholder upon end of the lease term; and (iv)
exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations.

Mzt HitEESEOERABDRBNBATNEETR
EHRRABERARRT] BIRE B RS 2B AE
(FREREEN—D) METHRNEEZME
BYZERR (VB —RNBADNREBREARAT G
BRERREENNBADNATFEZHEHELE ;
(B E X EE N AAREERRRAENR
EHE  URERRRR—BEEEZRBNRS
REBEZEEFLOHBR ; UR(VREBINER
EENERER-

F
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

e B RER

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #Z202583831HIEFEE

Operating activities
(Loss)/profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Impairment loss on right-of-use asset
Impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment
Interest on lease liabilities
Loss on written off on property, plant and
equipment
Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Gain on lease measurement
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net
Premium and handling charges on a life
insurance policy
Interest on bank borrowings
Unwinding of discounting on provision for
reinstatement costs
Reversal of provision for reinstatement cost
Bank interest income
Exchange gain
Imputed interest income on rental deposits
Interest income from deposit placed for a life
insurance policy

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

(Increase)/decrease in inventories

Decrease in trade and other receivables

Increase in trade and other payables

Decrease in contract liabilities

Provision for reinstatement costs utilised

Cash generated from operations
Income taxes refunded

Net cash generated from operating activities

98  welife Technology Limited 4 714 ERHS BRAE]
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2024
20244

HK$'000

FET

(31,903) 29,145
26,913 45,137
4,358 7,808
446 =
352 320
1,392 5,436
596 560
(65) -

= (8,669)
(1,470) =
310 298
725 1,297
107 44
(2,995) (1,645)
(842) (1,578)
(1) (M
(445) (253)
(546) (533)
(3,068) 77,366
(213) 383
14,615 123
2,427 13,745
(6,431) (13,037)
= (391)
7,330 78,189
= 140
7,330 78,329




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
sroReie

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #ZE202583831HIEFE

Investing activities

Interest received

Net cash outflow from disposal of subsidiaries

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Placement of time deposit with maturity over
three months

Withdrawal of time deposit with maturity over
three months

Proceeds from sales of property, plant and
equipment

Net cash generated from/(used in) from
investing activities

Financing activities
Repayment for lease liabilities
Repayment of borrowings
Interest paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the year

REES
BIFE

HEWB AR ERL FE

WEEBY S BB Rkt

FAZHEHBE=EAKN
EHTFR

REZSEHBE=EAKN
EHTFR

HEWE BB MR FERFRIE

REZBHEE (A 8
RERHE

MEES
EEHREAR
EEER

BENHE
MEFFMRAREFE

RERBREEBEWRLFE
FNRERFEZFEY

ERBHNYE

FEXRRERFEEEY

2024
20244

HK$'000

FHET

842 1,578
(112) =
(1,386) (1,599)
(2,000) (60,000)
4,000 58,000
1,438 =
2,782 (2,021)
(48,484) (71,689)
(14,448) (22,934)
(725) (1,297)
(63,657) (95,920)
(53,545) (19,612)
76,289 95,797
= 104
22,744 76,289
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—ARE

pany was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on KABR2018F6B7HEHEHEREMAE

une 2018 as an exempted company with limited liability BELEAMRIAERRER AR RERN
under the laws of Cayman Islands and its shares have been H2019F 2B 15HEREEMERZMMAERR
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong B (B RPRY) TR EH o AR A B EMIMEE R
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 15 February TEESEMBNH AN RO A B ER
2019. The address of the registered office and principal place FEo

of business of the Company are disclosed in the Company'’s
information section to the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company and its KRB A —RREZER RS ENBRABEEE
subsidiaries are principally engaged in Chinese restaurant RERBEBRFPEARHENE GEARSEMS -
operation in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China FEEEBVEMREE) (MPE)) &EhE
(for the purpose of this report, excluding Hong Kong, Macau 1o

and Taiwan) (“PRC").

The Company is held by Brilliant Global Assets Limited and R/ B)HABrilliant Global Assets LimitedszHappy
Happy Century Global Limited which are directly owned by Century Global Limited$¥75 > 225/~ B HERER 3R
Mr. Chen Sugiang (“Mr. Chen") and Mr. Lo Chor Cheong s (TBREE)) REBHREE (BEEN) B
Colin (“Mr. Lo") and has been regarded as the controlling BHEABIEWAAREENZEREER ((RERK
shareholder of the Group (“Ultimate Shareholder”) with H]) 0 B2023F 11 H24HEEE M - ARG B &
effect from 24 November 2023. Prior to the share transfer gl > 223 fWonderful Cosmos LimitediT A »
which took place, the Company was held by Wonderful Mz AR HERELE (BAE) EEER-
Cosmos Limited, which is directly owned by Mr. Tam Kar Wai B2 RAN AT HAAR2024F1818HHIR
("Mr. Tam"). For details, please refer to the announcement £o

of the Company dated 18 January 2024.
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong FeMBRERMET (Bx) 25 MATIR

Kong Dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency BRNBZINEEG K
of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I S R M

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the
first time, which are mandatorily effective for the current
period for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants

Supplier Finance Arrangements

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 7
and HKFRS 7

The application of the amendments to HKFRS in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
wr e SR M R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Amendments to the

and HKFRS 7 Classification and
Measurement of Financial
Instrument?
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture'
Amendments to HKFRS Annual improvements to HKFRS
Accounting Standards Accounting Standards —
Volume 113

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements*

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2025.

. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2026.

. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2027.

The directors of the Company ("Directors”) anticipate
that the application of all new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I S R M

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis at the end of each reporting period,
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16 Leases, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS
36 Impairment of Assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
wr e SR M R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 3. FREERBEATHHEERE ®
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value SN B EM S RIBATFESEHA
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based HEN T RREE B ABBYERATES
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value ENEEY RTEAEADERE IR FH2
measurements are observable and the significance of the RENEE3MR > HAMU S -

inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active e  FIMWARE IEERUNSIE2HEN
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity BHEREESEEREEDHNRE
can access at the measurement date; (RESFHEE) 5

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices o 2R AR IERFEVRPIEIENRE
included within Level 1, that are observable for the S EENEENEZEEIEREA
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and g &

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or o  FE3MWMARE EEENEENTAH
liability. R

The Group incurred a net loss of approximately BE2025F3B831BIEFE  AERELEE

HK$31,972,000 during the year ended 31 March 2025 HEA%Y31,972,0008 0 B EZ H > AERERB

and, as of the date, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded BEBHEREEEL15,916,00058 7T (2024

its current assets by approximately HK$15,916,000 (2024: £ 123,099,000 7T) °

HK$23,099,000).

The directors of the Company have reviewed the Group's AAREECERNEEERENAEEIRERM

cash flow projections prepared by the management. The EEA -RBERETFARE GHETEILELR

cash flow projections cover a period of twelve months from SMBRExBBES+ ZEB AR &5t kT

date of approval for issue of these consolidated financial XAt B RIEHE  BER A KEEE

statements. They are of the opinion that, taking into account ERCEEET R HEETL BITHEMET

the plans and measures as stated below, the Group will BWEEGMBREH AR+ ZEA N EH

have sufficient working capital to finance its operations and NHBEF AL EEHEM UFEKSEEE

to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due UGS HZRRBEHE -

within twelve months from date of approval for issue of these
consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, the directors
are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I S R M

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Notwithstanding the above results, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis,
the validity of which is dependent upon the success of the
Group's future operations, its ability to generate adequate
cash flows in order to meet its obligations as and when
fall due such that the Group can meet its future working
capital and financing requirements. Also, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group will be able to
finance its future financing requirements and working capital
based on the following considerations:

1.  Financial support from a shareholder

Mr. Lo Chor Cheong Colin, a shareholder of the
Company, has currently and continuously provide
funding to the Company so as to enable it to meet its
liabilities when they fall due. In addition, Mr. Lo will
not demand for any repayment from the Group within
twelve months from date of the consolidated financial
statements.

2. Cost control

The Group is taking measures to tighten cost control
with an aim to attain cash flow from operations.

3. Additional financing arrangement

The management is currently soliciting other financing
arrangements and fund-raising alternatives to further
support the funding needs of the Group.

Should the Group be unable to continue to operate as a
going concern, it may be unable to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.
Adjustments would have to be made to write down the
value of assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for
any future liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities
respectively. The effect of these adjustments has not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

On 17 May 2024, Mr. Tam Kar Wai and Mr. Hu Zhi Xiong
(“Previous Directors”) resigned as Executive Director and
Non-executive Director, respectively.

Following the resignation of the Previous Directors,
the executive directors of the Company (the "Existing
Directors”) were unable to locate certain books, records,
and corresponding supporting documents of certain
subsidiaries, namely, Eternal Grand Developments Limited,
Eternal Grand (Hong Kong) Limited, Wui Fung Limited, Ek
BREEWXREENETEERAR BENMENBESREE
BERAB BNTENABEREERRRAFIINES D
& (collectively referred to as the “Eternal Grand Group”),
Global Gourmet Catering Services Management Limited,
and Global Gourmet Catering Services Management (H.K.)
Limited (collectively referred to as the “Global Gourmet
Group”) (the “Lost Records”), and certain supporting
documents of the books of account of the Company (the
“Lost Supporting”).

The Eternal Grand Group and Global Gourmet Group's
financial position as at 31 March 2023 are used for preparing
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the years
ended 31 March 2024 and 2025 as these are the latest
financial information available to the Existing Directors.

Mr. Yeung Ka Ho was appointed as Executive Director on 22
May 2024 and resigned on 29 November 2024. Mr. Chu Pui
Him and Mr. Leung Yin Cheuk were appointed as Executive
Directors on 29 November 2024. During the management
transition, they successfully handed over the Company’s
books and records since 22 May 2024. The Existing Directors
have been gathered all relevant information by their best
effort to prepare the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2025.

The Existing Directors attempted to contact the Previous
Directors, who were responsible for maintaining proper
books and records for the Group. As of the approval date of
these consolidated financial statements, they were unable
to contact any of the Previous Directors to locate the Lost
Records and Lost Supporting.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I S R M

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

3.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions

Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration
test, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities
and assets is not a business. The concentration test is met if
substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired
is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group of
similar identifiable assets. The gross assets under assessment
exclude cash and cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and
goodwill resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities.
If the concentration test is met, the set of activities and assets
is determined not to be a business and no further assessment
is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
financial assets/financial liabilities at the respective fair values,
the remaining balance of the purchase price is then allocated
to the other identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis
of their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a
transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase
gain.

Business combinations

A business is an integrated set of activities and assets which
includes an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
acquired processes are considered substantive if they are
critical to the ability to continue producing outputs, including
an organised workforce with the necessary skills, knowledge,
or experience to perform the related processes or they
significantly contribute to the ability to continue producing
outputs and are considered unique or scarce or cannot be
replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay in the ability
to continue producing outputs.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

108 welife Technology Limited 4 714 ERHS BRAE]

REUBEREAGHBERER @

EBaHNEEWRRE

A EEFERIE FE A
FEEFEERSEISRANEENEDTE
A BB — R REERSLIFE
BETHCH G - HABABEERENANE
BERFEHETETE—AIHHEER—HEBE
B#pEE AR EETERS FENEE
METUEREAESEBY) ELREEE
URRABEERBEEEEMELENEE  H13
GEFEAS MZELSNEEREEAIL
EEB BEE—IHMG

BEWE
EXEERRE-EIEBREBNEEREGR
FEEGHARBBERZANEESEES
MEE tHaE BrUEEERRERKRE
HENBEHARBEIREAMA HAEEK
B 18 > LU B S FE ST P W 8 RO B 5! = 38! B
RETAENERE -BRRXZIEEELHENZ
BB W

EHAH
E—AEBREECE—BERRAR—E
BEBR MAEHAEELNENEEAS
B BIBR—BEBCMKERRH BT E
EHNENEMEES 1 AFRKENRA B
BB T 2B R2 A 5 TR RO ~ S AR BR
AEREB AHTEEEELNENEEA
EE B A BES R NE RS AN
T BHWEEE EEL AN HIRILENIER
FRATEA 0

WEEEB R EAIR - REBSHPEEN
REURRBESE ARBERZAEEMR
HEEE HAEREBREES 2R AT
EENE R AL RS RER IR EE 75 Y|
RMmETHNRENKRERIRQ A EEBME
H-HWRBBERIMA—RENELERNED
HhiEsd o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I S R M

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
must meet the definitions of an asset and a liability in
the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (the
“Conceptual Framework”) except for transactions and
events within the scope of HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, in
which the Group applies HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 instead
of the Conceptual Framework to identify the liabilities it has
assumed in a business combination. Contingent assets are
not recognised.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 at
the acquisition date (see the accounting policy below);

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard; and

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases
for which the lease term ends within 12 months of the
acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low
value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of
the lease when compared with market terms.

3.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any)
over the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after
reassessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business (see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or group
of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

110 welie Technology Limited 4 714 ERHS BRAE]

REUBEREAGHBERER @

EBaHNEENRE (®
EBEH (B
BHEZEEEANE NERWESEAIFE
Rt ot < 2B R W 75 2 AT A AR WS 73 PR s B
WA NAnBEENBHENEERRENR
BRI A B E R AAERERB R B o i (1§
EMFEBR) CRBIHNEERERES
BRFRBHEERAE HNREBESEMIE
ERBEEA SRR UWIE TS Z AT RIS 5 PR Fr
I (WNA) R ABEEN > BHE D RIE R
BRI SREBE WD -

e

]

FWE-—BXFEENBENDRRBERER
R A (R L& 5HEER) MR SHREBE
nA) 58k

MBENEAMS  mENEERPRaNEH
WRMENTEBRSREELSE N (HIFEE
FEBUAER) >  MZ B EAARIEMAE
EENEERENREKFEREFRNEE

DEBe

ENRBENREELENU (R REEEE
MR EEFETHENS  HRNEBAHIRA
FERE R FETERTMAE - MR ERE
HEAKBEENBEMS  BOEBENER
TEEEN HREEEBMUMAR) HNEREH
RETETRER - W& DR EIRE
B AREEEREE D RURETAEEN
FREE HEREEM (RREEBUAR)
NEEEENREEZADEEREMEE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I S R M

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of
the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-generating
units, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
When the Group disposes of an operation within the
cashgenerating unit (or a cash-generating unit within a group
of cash-generating units), the amount of goodwill disposed
of is measured on the basis of the relative values of the
operation (or the cash-generating unit) disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-
generating units) retained.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e I S R M

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Revenue from restaurant operation is recognised at a point in
time when the catering services are provided to customers.
Receipts in respect of services that have not been rendered
are deferred and recognised as contract liabilities. Upon
confirmation of cancellation received from customers and
expiration of the date of deposits received for the relevant
catering service, the corresponding deposit received is fully
recognised as forfeiture of deposits received.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised at a point in time
when control of the goods has been transferred, being when
the goods have been delivered to the customers.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services
to a customer, the Group determines whether the nature
of its promise is a performance obligation to provide the
specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal)
or to arrange for those goods or services to be provided by
the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
or service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service by
another party. In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another party before
that good or service is transferred to the customer. When the
Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount
of any fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled in
exchange for arranging for the specified goods or services to
be provided by the other party.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a present obligation arising from past
events but is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an
obligation, the part of the obligation that is expected to be
met by other parties is treated as a contingent liability and it
is not recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I S R M

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Contingent liabilities (Continued)

The Group assesses continually to determine whether an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits has
become probable. If it becomes probable that an outflow
of future economic benefits will be required for an item
previously dealt with as a contingent liability, a provision is
recognised in the consolidated financial statements in the
reporting period in which the change in probability occurs,
except in the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable
estimate can be made.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “other income”.

Sponsorship income from utility companies

Sponsorship income from utility companies is recognised
in other income when there is reasonable assurance that
all attaching conditions are complied with the subsidies
received. Where the subsidies relates to an asset, the fair
value is credited to a deferred income included in trade
and other payables and is released to profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalment.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and
deferred income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from (loss)/profit before tax as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e I S R M

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary difference between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of the
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e W s R I

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 requirements to the lease liabilities, and the related
assets separately. The Group recognises a deferred tax asset
related to lease liabilities to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised and a deferred tax
liability for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e I S R M

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Leasing

Definition of a lease

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception
of the contract. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components, including contract for acquisition
of ownership interests of a property which includes both
leasehold land and non-lease building components, unless
such allocation cannot be made reliably.

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate non-
lease components from lease components, and instead
accounts for the lease components and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of properties that have a lease term of
12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option. Lease payments on short-term
leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or
another systematic basis over the lease term.

116 welfe Technology Limited 4 714 ERHS BRAE]

REUBEREAGHBERER @

HE

HEHNESE
FEBRRBEEBMBREENF16RNEE
REnNGERTIEZaNREE A EENESHE
E-RIFENNBERRIFEERHIRES &
AIERAEHNR AT ENTE

FEEFEBEABA
BB B E AT EIAE RS A 77
MBAHERD UK —RNZHEIIMEENIF
HEBONEGNMES  ~EBEREEEIRDH
BB IERRIFEESONBBILERRKS
WNEBESEERHEERSY  SBRE—BYX
(BEAE LR IFAERFEMEBD) BIFR
BEREDNGAR RIFE AT RIFHZDE -

AEMEARTRERS AR IFEEHEME D
EEEHEMED DR MREEMEME D RIE
WAERIF BB D E S BE —THE AR 7
ABRe

ZHIHE
AEERBEREERIARERANYENE
B FEEENASS BN EET @R
U THEETBEREEEER - EHEENE
BENMEEPRARRERE RS — R E R
oA SZ H o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I S R M

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease
term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are considered
as additional lease payments and included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e I S R M

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or
a rate are not included in the measurement of lease liabilities
and right-of-use assets, and are recognised as expense in
the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I S R M

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review, in which
case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

. a lease contracts modified and the lease modification is
not accounted for as a separate lease.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based
on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-
of-use asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e I S R M

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that
period, in which case the exchange rates at the date of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of other reserve (attributed to

non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Exchange differences, arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Employee benefits
Retirement benefits costs

Payment to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) is recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
The Group operates a MPF Scheme under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme, the assets of which are held in separate

trustee-administered funds.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, with the employers’
contributions subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$30,000. The Group’s contributions to the scheme
are expensed as incurred and vested in accordance with the
scheme’s vesting scales. Where employees leave the scheme
prior to the full vesting of the employer's contributions,
the amount of forfeited contributions is used to reduce the

contributions payable by the Group.

120 welife Technology Limited 4 714 ERHS BRAE]

REUBEREAGHBERER @

(EENR &S
FRBfER A HEE RN B RS e

hhiEs

MEIGEHBREMS  AREEXEBNEE
RBEHREREHRNBTERREREE
EH25 8% B8 - MAKRZHERTZ
ZHEZ FHERETRE  BRIFERIZH
P IR AR BRI (E R &R FEUEIB R T 2 Al
RARRZEAZEXR -FRELERZE (N
B) REMEERARNEDRIEEMBEEERET
PR RENIFERED (HEE) -

EEERHEBNENTREERREMEEZE
RER RHEEERBREmPES -

BEEF

BIRIEFIEZ

maRH Mt ARE S E (BAREHE) FHRAH
TR EERBEREEEZERBHRBRS
R hE 50 A S o A BIRIBRHIME QIR 5T E
AR ERE(EBRENRG) EAEANTE
RERMHBE S5 - RIEE 58 R E MM
SR HEEDUBUZEEEATSRA -

RippEEstd BEREESEAREER
U AS%BILERIE R MEEHMNE
BERAUA LR #530,0005 7T o A< @ ¥ 5t &
BY AR B AR 15 5 B B B9 58 B A1 1F H 5 57 B B =
HeMEENBEMHNEEFBAIA L SE
PR R W Ak < BR S AR SR D A S B B A RO 13

=+
o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I S R M

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Retirement benefits costs (Continued)

The retirement benefits scheme contributions arising from the
MPF Scheme charged to profit or loss represent contributions
paid or payable to the funds by the Group at rates specified
in the rules of the schemes.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.

Long service payment

For LSP obligation, the Group accounts for the employer
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) contributions expected
to be offset as a deemed employee contribution towards
the LSP obligation in terms of HKAS 19.93(a) and it is
measured on a net basis. The estimated amount of LSP
obligation is determined after deducting the negative service
cost arising from the accrued benefits (being projected and
attributed to periods of service) derived from the Group’s
MPF contributions that have been vested with employees and
would be used to offset the employee’s LSP benefits, which
are deemed to be contributions from the relevant employees.

Property, plant and equipment

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

(@) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no
longer meeting the definition of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months
or less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash
equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-
term cash commitments rather than for investment or
other purposes.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management. Such
overdrafts are presented as short-term borrowings in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Costs include any costs directly attributable to bringing the
asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group's accounting policy. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss (if any).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (Continued)

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of
the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group
of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset
is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro
rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-
generating units. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

3. “BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 3. REBERSEAGHHEER @

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment ME -BERZEARERAEEERERE
and right-of-use assets (Continued) G)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying MR EGEERERL IEE (HREELE
amount of the asset (or the cash generating unit) is increased fiD) Z BREEIS E BT 2 st rl KBl =58
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so MRS M REENSBBRZEE (HIREE
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the FEA) RBEFETRERRERIEMERE
carrying amount that would have been determined had no ZEREE A EREERNEEPEIRRER A
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or the cash WA ©

generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised as income immediately in profit or loss.

Separate financial statements BRIMBRER

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less B AR 2 BT U AR E AR - A&
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of BEREZEEBEEERA - HWBABEETIH
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for RABZBEW R EWR B AR

by the Company on the basis of dividend received and

receivable.

Inventories 78

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable FERRARATERZFENREET R -FE
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in, first- B AR IE S AEE 2R FENART
out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated BN HEBRRETA R EFTENM A
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of HIFR B Gt A o SER S E TS BRI A B 45
completion and costs necessary to make the sale. Costs AEERBENIEENIEENAN KA EBETH
necessary to make the sale include incremental costs directly EEEENIEEEM Ao

attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated FEMBRRRMEINRERIBEEENE

statement of financial position include: &

(a) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand (@ R GEFERSRGZHERETE
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to EREERFIBEFABREREEEN
requlatory restrictions that result in such balances no IRITARER 5 &

longer meeting the definition of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term by REZEY 0FEH @EBREIEHH
(generally with original maturity of three months R=ZEAUT) SERS B OIFERE
or less), highly liquid investments that are readily BABHNESERENEE BEHEEED
convertible to a known amount of cash and which are BB KIBEEBYHAMERRRSE
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash AEMEE MIFARKREREMAR-

equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-
term cash commitments rather than for investment or
other purposes.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents (Continued)

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management. Such
overdrafts are presented as short-term borrowings in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 3. FREERBEATHHEERE ®
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) I E #)

Financial assets EHEE

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial THEENSERAEEE

assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are RETIHRENSMEEZRBIZEERA G

subsequently measured at amortised cost: £

e the financial asset is held within a business model s FTMBEDNUETEURNEGNREREN
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and EREAFE &

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to EHNBRANIEEEHESANRSREM
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and BAZAREEREKRFE
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Amortised cost and interest income B EE A R F] B WA

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest HzmgiEpsst2NSnE 205 BBA S
method for financial assets measured subsequently at RABRAEZED -FEWMARTHEENRE
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying REETHERANXAE  EREZLEEER
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount BENEREERID HRNBEZELEEREN
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have SWMEE A BEWARNR TERS B LR
subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets ﬁﬁﬁ’]%ﬁﬁﬁi$ﬁﬂ%?|@‘ﬂ?ﬁ§§uOﬂJﬁ’*IE
that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest ERENEMIEANEERRENS URZS
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate & ETETTETH@’E‘J%'JE!H&]\&%]‘?E
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next MEENEHMEEERENBLREERER
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired ZIREHAMBE EREERBERMZET U
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset MRS

is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset is
no longer credit-impaired.

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment IRIFE B P53 & 2R 9% E 1T (B 5T HY
assessment under HKFRS 9 BHEERE

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected FEERERAEEEE (FRHEERSE) 2
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including trade NHBIBEES BB RS ELFEIFEFRAEDN
receivables, deposits, other receivables, deposit placed for a THEE (BEESEREIE %  HEW
life insurance policy and cash and cash equivalents), which RE-HEASREREBEUNRERIREEE
are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount of M) ETREN G - B EEHESENERE
ECL is updated at the end of each reporting period to reflect HAR B URREE AR B RN
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. o
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. Assessment are done
based on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting period as well as the forecast of
future conditions.

The Group always recognise lifetime ECL for trade receivables
without significant financing component. The ECL on
these assets are assessed individually for credit card trade
receivables and collectively for corporate customers using a
provision matrix with past due status grouping.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument at the end of
the reporting period with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; or

° an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Definition of default

The Group considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

. the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

o it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

REUBEREAGHBERER @

T A (&

Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment IRIEE BRI 7R 5 ZE R 95 1T (B AT E HY
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued) B ERE ()

Write-off policy MWEEEER

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is EEBEMNBRRZHEFHFAEBREYERNER

information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when
the amounts are over 2 years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-
off constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

WHERBRAWEESR Al EXZHFH®K
BENCEARERF RN E 5 B IKRIE
MmE  MRBBRBENE UBRBEHEES
%) AEEMEZEREE - RIBEAEE KA
BEFILEEEEEZRZ WER) @ =MEEMH
BISEN R BIHUE TR ENBIAIIR o MEH 1B A AR LE T
SBEIE R R B OIT B ST ©

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

AR E EE1RRY 5T 8 RS

FRHE ERIENE BRAEOXR EXNEIE (R
BHOREIEAR/N) RENR R ORIRE &
MR RENBRBRNENRELEIERAEEE
BHEST S - TRERE B IR PV (A5 R IR E (R BE K
BRMEREER HRESEEEAENRR
NS EMEE

Generally, the ECL is estimated the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in BN ESNRES s AEEBERWEIR
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the SREZRENERE RYTHIBEETHNER
Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest FIZBLIR) o

rate determined at initial recognition.

—RME > BGEEBEARBESNENEE

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are considered R BB R REEEEER Wa YR
on a collective basis taking into consideration past due ARl > IR ERHEEEE T B S ERE
information and relevant credit information such as forward B2 HRTaEA = 8518 o

looking macroeconomic information.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For collective assessment, the Group takes into consideration
the following characteristics when formulating the grouping:

. Past-due status;
. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar
credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit-impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, lease
liabilities and bank borrowings) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value is material).

Provisions for the costs to restore leased assets to their
original condition, as required by the terms and conditions of
the lease, are recognised at the date of inception of the lease
at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure that would
be required to restore the assets, Estimates are regularly
reviewed and adjusted as appropriate for new circumstances.

Deposit placed for a life insurance policy

Deposit placed for a life insurance policy is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost adjusted
for interest income and service charges, less impairment
losses, if any.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

3. -BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 3.

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

REUBEREAGHBERER @

Ak
FEUTREHATHRR R LA ER BRI

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@ NMEUTHRANALTRERERSRFH
PN = i

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(b)

(i)
(ii)
(iif)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group'’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); or

the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group's parent.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services
or obligation between the Group and a related party,
regardless of whether a price is charged.

Close family members of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that
person in their dealings with the entity.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTIES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the Directors are required to make
judgement, estimates and assumptions about the amounts
of assets and liabilities, revenue and expenses reported and
disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainties

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period and have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets

The Group's management assesses impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of an item of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets may not be recoverable. The recoverable
amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of
its fair value less cost to disposal and its value-in-use.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTIES

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets (Continued)

The calculations require the use of judgements and
estimations, particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event
has occurred that may indicate that the cash-generating
units (“CGU")/assets may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the
carrying amount of the CGU/asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted using
an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected by
management in assessing impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets, including the estimated
revenue growth rate, operating costs and discount rate
adopted in the cash flow projections, could materially affect
the recoverable amount and amount of impairment loss and
as a result affect the Group's financial position and results of
its operations.

As at 31 March 2025, the carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets are approximately
HK$2,844,000 (2024: HK$9,589,000) and HK$9,168,000
(2024: HK$36,567,000) respectively, after taking into account
the impairment loss that have been recognised respectively.
Details of the impairment are disclosed in notes 16 and 17
respectively.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remained unchanged during both years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,
which includes bank borrowings, net of bank balances
and cash, and equity attributable to owners of the Group,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure periodically. As part
of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on the
recommendation of the Directors, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the issue of new shares,
raising of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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6. ERITH

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

(b)

Categories of financial instruments

(a)

TWMEE

Financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial liabilities EREE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial risk management objective and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include rental
deposits, deposit paid for a life insurance policy, trade
and other receivables, time deposit with maturity over
three months, bank balances and cash, trade and
other payables, bank borrowings and lease liabilities.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in
the respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

BRBEN A ENTREE

REBIHNASHENERAR

(b)

SR TEER
2025 2024
20254 20244
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
65,314 133,851
55,392 103,148
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objective and policies
(Continued)

Market risk

(1)

(i)

Currency risk

The Group has foreign currency transactions
settled in United States dollar (“USD"”) and
Renminbi (“"RMB"), which expose the Group to
foreign currency risk.

Since HK$ is pegged to USD, the historical
exchange rate fluctuation on USD is insignificant.
Thus there is no significant exposure expected on
USD transactions and balances. Hence, the Group
does not have any material foreign exchange
exposure.

The Group monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise. At 31
March 2025 and 2024, the Group assess the
exposure to foreign currency risk is insignificant
to the Group. Accordingly, no sensitivity is
presented.

Interest rate risk

The Group was exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate time deposit with
maturity over three months and lease liabilities.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to its bank balances which carry
prevailing market interest and certain bank
borrowings (see Note 25 for details). The Group
manages its interest rate exposures by assessing
the potential impact arising from any interest
rate movements based on interest rate level and
outlook.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (the “HIBOR") arising
from the Group’s bank borrowings.

The Group's exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to bank balances is minimal as
these balances have a short maturity period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objective and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk(Continued)
Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis to cash flow interest rate
risk below has been determined based on the
exposure of the Group’s bank borrowings to
interest rates at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year. A 100 basis points increase or decrease is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates has been 100 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group's profit after tax would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$121,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2024.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting period with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objective and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables mainly represent receivables from
financial institutions in relation to the payment settled
by credit cards of which the settlement is normally
within 3 days from transaction date. The financial
institutions are primarily reputable and creditworthy
financial institutions and have strong financial position.
The management considers the credit risk is low.

In determining the ECL for trade and other receivables,
the management of the Group has taken into account
the historical default experience and forward-looking
information and concluded that credit risk inherent in
the Group's outstanding trade and other receivables
are insignificant. The management of the Group has
assessed that trade and other receivables have not
had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and probability of default is low.

For the deposit paid for a life insurance policy, the
credit risks are limited because the counterparty
is financial institution and there was no history of
defaults. ECL is expected to be insignificant.

The Group applies the simplified approach to assess the
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision
for all trade receivables. Based on historical experience,
majority of the trade receivables were settled within
credit term, hence the expected loss rate of current
trade receivables are assessed to be close to zero. The
loss allowance provision for these balances was not
material as at 31 March 2025 and 2024.

The credit rating of other receivables and deposit paid
for acquisition of subsidiaries was performing. The
Group has considered that these receivables are low
credit risk. Thus, no loss allowance provision under the
12 months expected losses method was recognised
during the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024.

The management of the Group considers time deposit
with maturity over three months and bank balances
are deposited with financial institutions with high
credit rating to be low credit risk financial assets. The
Directors consider that the probability of default is
negligible on the basis of high credit-rating issuers and
thus no loss allowance was recognised.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

6. ETRITH®

(b) Financial risk management objective and policies (b) HMBEKREEEEREE &)
(Continued)
Credit risk (Continued) EEEE (&)
Liquidity risk B EZ R

The Group’'s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from banks to meet their
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
Management believes that there is no significant
liquidity risk as the Group is able to generate net cash
inflow from operating activities and to satisfy its future
working capital and other financing requirements from
its operation cash flows and available bank financing.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of
the Group’s financial liabilities and leased liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on current rates
at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest
date the Group can be required to pay. Specifically,
bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the earliest time band regardless of
the probability of the banks choosing to exercise their
rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates:

AEBIBREEHEREf KA
MBBETRR BAREREHRSFEER
BIRTTES RN AGEMBRE LU E S
HREHASESR R - EEEMRE
MR AEEEHBKETHELRERN
AFBRRUHEEERTRER ISR
TREREHAREEESRAMME
BRoBUEEBARBES AL

»EERBET AR ANEEEIERER
EEERAEHNRERFEEZEBY KX
o RAEENEERNVES  AERE

MEBRBPRE-

TRAMAEBVREPRNEREE
EAEEEZBRTEOEHA HER
BHARMRIRERE (BEFEHSHOFE
X (EAEE) PREPRZIBITH E
B2HEXH) MAEEBELSRZREH
Ho BfEmM s M IREREERRNIE
TEARDIIARENEFBERE > MAEE
IRITEIBITE AR AT BEME o Efth3EST
SEMEENEBHANURENERH
FAAEZE

More than More than
Weighted  Repayable on 1yearbut 2 years but Total
average  demand or less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate  within 1 year 2 years 5 years cash flows amount
e BEX BiB1E e cp)d BRER
moRE  RMEREE  BORNE fBhRsE REhE REfE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn TR Tin
At 31 March 2025 12025634318
Non-derivative financial liabiities Fikemas
Trade and other payables BB REMENTE - 43,421 - - 43,421 43,421
Lease liabilities HEGE 3.18 7,253 4,998 = 12,251 11,971
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TS (Continued)

management objective and policies

quidity risk (Continued)

6. EMTH®

(b)

MBERERBRREE (@
THEZmEE B

12024538318

At 31 March 2024

Non-derivative financial liabilities FhteRar

Trade and other payables B 5 REMENTE

Bank borrowings IR 5.60
Lease liabilities HESR 384

Bank loan with a repayment on demand clause was
included in the “on demand or less than 1 year” time
band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 March
2024, the principal amount of this bank loan amounted
to HK$14,448,000. Taking into account the Group's
financial position, the directors of the Company did not
believe that it is probable that the bank will exercise its
discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment.
The directors of the Company believe that such bank
loan will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled
repayment date set out in the loan agreement and the
principal and interest cash outflows according to the
scheduled repayment date are set out as follows:

29,106 = = 29,106 29,106
14,448 = = 14,448 14,448
43,554 = = 43,554 43,554
49,499 7,253 4,998 61,750 59,594

M#EEREREEERNIBITERGAL
MEEAH DA R E R I D 51 ) R
BE P - R2024F3831H  ZIRTTEMR
ARG EEA14,448,00058 70 0 E BB A&
BN BRI A AR ERERARITAKR
AT EBNBREEKRRER - AAT
EERE ERRTENEREER WS
Fr& st 8B HEAEE  RiEctBERA
BN AE KA BIREREENDOT

12024538318
BITER 5.60

At 31 March 2024
Bank borrowings
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost at the end of each reporting period
approximate to their corresponding fair values.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's revenue represents amounts received and
receivable from the provision of catering services and sales
of goods, net of discount. Information reported to the
executive directors of the Company, being the chief operating
decision maker, for the purpose of resources allocation
and assessment of performance focuses on the operating
results of the Group as a whole as the Group’s resources
are integrated and no discrete operating segment financial
information is available. Accordingly, no operating segment
information is presented.

All of the Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong.
The Group’s revenue from external customers and all of
its non-current assets are located in Hong Kong based on
geographical location of assets.

No revenue from individual external customer contributed
over 10% of total revenue of the Group for both years.

6. TRTHR®

(0 ATE
BE2RA RNERERLGBIER AR
HEmEEKRSME SRR EHEEHAE
FEATFERE -

DERE R
FEENWRDERHERRTMIHEERME
Wk FEURRY 88 (FHERITI0) - MERD AR T
RTEAERDRTES BIEEEZRRE)
BENENERRATEBNVERKEEER )
AR AEENEREEESRIEEREED
BIBER - FIL > WEZFEE DA E K -

FEBFABEEFHIUNEEL - AEBKBE I
ERNRmREMAIFRBEENEERMIE
UEMEHUREE-

W B E B 2R B AR SN R T R R (G A &
B 4B 10%L ke
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8. WrmREHMUA

2025
20255
HK$'000
FHT

Revenue &

Chinese restaurant operations (Note a) FIUEEEE (Psta) 226,631 419,730

Sales of food (Note a) EmHEE (fsta) 1,001 1,579

227,632 421,309

Other income Hihg A

Government grants (Note b) B #ERL (I 5Eb) 90 454

Forfeiture of deposits received (Note a) BB WZE (ista) 537 741

Sponsorship income from utility companies B /AR A SR EBIURA 991 1,097

Exchange gain bE 2 I 2 1 1

Advertising income B WA 140 164

Sundry income I A 775 370

Imputed interest income on rental deposits & IZEMLHEF BUA 445 253

Interest income from deposit placed for KEASREREN

a life insurance policy FEUA 546 533

Bank interest income RITH BUWA 842 1,578

4,367 5,191

Notes: Mzt :

(a)  Revenue derived from Chinese restaurant operations, sales of (@) R FEIELE -BRNERBREKIES
food and forfeiture of deposits received are from contract with EANKESNEEREANSY TR EER
customers and recognised at a point in time. TEREET o

(b) During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group (b) EZE2025F3B31HIEFEE AEEERHA
recognised the subsidies of approximately HK$90,000 (2024: HEBENTHRERNFEREES TI2MH
HK$454,000) related to SME Export Marketing Fund provided W EOTEHEESHABEREEY
by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative 90,0003 7 (20244 : 454,000387T) ©

Region under the Anti-Epidemic Fund.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I S R M

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (Continued) 8. WEKRHEMIA @
Transaction price allocated to the remaining PEREFEANRRBAEZHNRZER
performance obligation for contracts with customers
The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance FR20255 5202438310 DEEZERGFEL
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 £ CREITHH D KET) WX Z B RTEET
March 2025 and 2024 and expected timing of recognising WA FESRBRF R -
revenue are as follows:
Chinese restaurant operations
RTlEIEEE
2024
20244
HK$'000
THET
Within one year — &R 54,788 73,842
More than one year but not exceeding BiE—FERBEMmE
two years 1,028 1,289
55,816 75,131
All sales of foods are for a period of one year or less or are FFrERmifENHRE A —FRER > iR
billed based on time incurred. As permitted under HKFRS 15, EENNESE RIBESBUBIMEERE15
the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts RHRE DEEZERBTEANKZ BRI
is not disclosed. RIFEE o
OTHER GAINS OR LOSSES, NET 9. Hfthzsoksi8%%
2025 2024
20255 20244
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THET
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FREEERMEBERE (446) =
Impairment loss on property, MEHEKRREBRERE
plant and equipment (352) (320)
Gain on disposal on property, HEYE BB &K ERE
plant and equipment 65 =
Loss on written off on property, EE Y2 ~ BB M R E RS 18
plant and equipment (596) (560)
Gain on lease remeasurement HESEHTE2Wa = 8,669
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AW E 1,470 =
141 7,789
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e I S R M

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND INDIVIDUALS WITH

HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

(a)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The emoluments of directors and chief executive (“CE")
for each reporting period were as follows:

Year ended 31 March 2025
Non-executive directors

Mr. Hu Zhi Xiong (Chairman) (Note xii)

Mr. Fok Siu Keung (Note xiii)

Executive directors
Mr. Tam Kar Wai (CE) (Notes vii & xii)

Mr. Chu Pui Him (Note vii)
Mr. Leung Yin Cheuk (Note vii)
Mr. Yeung Ka Ho (Notes xiii & vii)

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen (Note xiii)
Mr. Wong Che Sang (Note xiii)
Mr. Chui Man Lung Everett

(Notes xiii & vii)
Ms. Zhao Ming (Note v)

(a) EFRITBUEHME

10. EFERREHMALINE

BEERTEAH (TTHEAH) RERE

HARIRYBN 2T

Re

Other
benefit

tirement
benefit
scheme

Fees Salaries in cash  contributions Total
BRET
ik it HtREEN HE G HH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TERT TET TERT TET
HZ20255F3031HILEEE
FHTES
B () (ki) 46 - - - 46
B (i) 103 - - - 103
HiTES
ERELE ((TBESR)

(Pt Evii Baxii) 46 - - - 46
KR ( shvii) 41 = = - 41
RESLE (ki) M - - - 41
BRZ A (M skxiiRvii) 63 - - - 63
BUEHTESR
EHBLE (i) 155 - - - 155
BEELE (i) 103 - - - 103
BxEELE

(Pt SExiii Bevii) 9% - - - 94
LT (zEy) 1 - - - "

703 = = = 703
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For the year en

10. DIRECTORS’ AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 10. EF A&
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERITHEEMS @)
(Continued)

Year ended 31 March 2024 BE04F3[1NALEE
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Hu Zhi Xiong (Chairman) (Note xii) ~ EJE3AR4LLE (£/8) (Miahii) 360 - - = 360
Mr. Fok Siu Keung (Note xiii) BRI (Wskxii) S = = - -
Executive directors T
Mr. Cheng Man Cheong (Note vii) BRELE (i) 120 - - = 120
Mr. Tam Kar Wai (CE) (Note xii) ERBEL (THA)

(B3Exii) 360 = > = 360
Mr. Tan Jian (Note x) ERES (x) S = - - -
Mr. Chu Pui Him (Note vii) FomsEL (stii) S = - - -
Mr. Leung Yin Cheuk (Note i) REEHE (i) S = - - -
Mr. Yeung Ka Ho (Notes xiii & vii) BRERE (M xiilKvii) - - - = S
Independent non-executive directors BikynEzs
Mr. Leung Chun Kin (Note x) REREE (5x) S = - - -
Mr. Wang Xiang Long (Note x) TR (W) S = = - -
Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen (Note xii) ~ E 8B4 (HizHii) S = - - -
Mr. Wong Che Sang (Note xii) BESEERL (ki) - - - = S
Mr. Chui Man Lung Everett (Notes i & vil) 7324 (MY hiiiRvi) - - - = S
Mr. Wong Tat Keung (Note xi) BEREE (M) 78 = S - 8
Mr. Wong Wai Ming (Note ix) BREEE (i) 52 - - - 52
Mr. Tang Tsz Tung (Notes vii & xi) P HEE (Hadviikod) 78 - - 5 78

_— 0



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
wr e SR M R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND INDIVIDUALS WITH
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The executive directors’ remuneration shown
above were for their services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company
and the Group. The independent non-executive
directors’ remuneration shown above were for
their services as a director of the Group.

During the years ended 31 March 2025 and
2024, no retirement benefits payments or benefits
in respect of termination of directors’ services
were paid or made, directly or indirectly, to the
directors; nor are any payable. No consideration
was provided to or receivable by third parties for
making available directors’ services.

During the years ended 31 March 2025 and
2024, no significant transactions, agreements
and contracts in relation to the Group's business
to which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company had material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted.

During the years ended 31 March 2025 and
2024, there were no loans, quasi-loans and other
dealing arrangements in favour of the directors,
or controlled body corporate and connected
entities of such directors.

Ms. Zhao Ming was appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 10 March 2025.

No director fees were paid to these executive
directors in their capacity as executive directors
of the Company and no emoluments were
paid by the Company to the executive directors
as an inducement to join the Company, or as
compensation for loss of office during each of the
years ended 31 March 2024 and 2025.

Mr. Chu Pui Him and Mr. Leung Yin Cheuk were
appointed as executive director, Mr. Yeung Ka
Ho was resigned as an executive director and
Mr. Chui Man Lung Everett was resigned as
an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 29 November 2024.

148  welite Technology Limited 4 714 ERHS BRAE]

10. EERESHMALTINE @

(a)

EFRITHARME (8

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

EHFRFIATEROFNEARNES
TABRAEEEEEFRE KR
FiARE o LAPRIIVBILIFAITES
BN RN EFRETSEREERM
BYBR 754 R o

REE2025%F %2024F3831H 1k
EECBEMKLEIEEREMER
HEFEAESZ N A RBERRAK
BRFHIBNEF ; IMEEARUE
YRR @ F FRIE S/ H) o B A Rt
ENEZEERBEMAE = HIRHEAE
B = A RUE MR E -

B E20254 &2024%E38318 LEFE
B AN ET L AREREETR
BREABAXRRABAINA MARE
EEREPBEFEEAANG (FHmHE
BYMEE BFEENAEANEAR
S EREN

B E20254F K2024%F383180 LEFE
E #BBEUEEAZSEETNZE
FEENRAEERATZEANE
FEERREMZ G2

HIELZ 7202538100 EEHE
ABUIERITES

B E2024%F K2025%3831H &
FE > BMEREARRBNAITE
EMAZERNTEEZNESHE
AR BRERNITE S I
O EAMARRABIIERE RIEA
BER 1B o

R2024FE11 8290 » SR s E K
RESREEZEIARNTES 15
RELEFREINITES > MHRXEE
REREARABBILIENITES-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
wr e SR M R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 10. EEREEMMALTME @
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments () EFRITHAHME B

(Continued)

(viii) Mr. Cheng Man Cheong was resigned as an (i) BRESLEF2023F88 11 HEHE
executive director on 11 August 2023. HITESo

(ix) Mr. Wong Wai Ming was resigned as an (ix) EEPELER2023FE8B 140 BT
independent non-executive director on 14 August B IEHTESE
2023.

(x)  Mr. Leung Chun Kin and Mr. Wang Xiang Long (x) F2023F8B14H  RERERES K
were appointed as independent non-executive THELEESTABIIIENTE
director and Mr. Tan Jian was appointed as B U RERLEEZIALRANT
executive director of the Company on 14 August HITE S WHHR2023F10825H
2023 and resigned 25 October 2023. EE{To

(xi) Mr. Tang Tsz Tung and Mr. Wong Tat Keung were (xi) BR T AR LA R SR A 20234
resigned as an independent non-executive director 108250 BB I IEHTES o
on 25 October 2023.

(xii) Mr. Hu Zhi Xiong was resigned as an non- (xii) 22024458170 » HHEEEE S E BT
executive director and Mr. Tam Kar Wai was EHTES HERELERITH
resigned as an executive director on 17 May &=
2024.

(xiii) Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen, Mr. Wong Che Sang (xii) H2024FE58228  BEFRLEE S
and Mr. Chui Man Lung Everett were appointed EE RGN ESIAE
as independent non-executive director, Mr. Fok TIEHITESE BERLEERT
Siu Keung was appointed as an non-executive AIEHTES BERSLEES
director and Mr. Yeung Ka Ho was appointed as FEARANTHTES
an executive director of the Company on 22 May
2024.

(xiv) Ms. Yin Shilu was appointed as independent non- (xiv) BEBLZTHR2025F58140E S
executive director on 14 May 2025. EABIIIEHITESE -

(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) HLBREEFHMAL

The five highest paid individuals include nil director IZESHMNATEIEEL (2024F 1 &

(2024: nil) whose remuneration are set out in note Z)VEE HEM O E LK@ B TR

(a) respectively. Details of the remuneration of the 2 (2024 AR L IEANTEENES

remaining 5 (2024: 5) highest paid individuals, who are A TBIE B ORI

not directors of the Company, are analysed below:

2024

2024%F

HK$'000

TERT

Salaries, allowances and other benefits e EMREMER 38,793 20,872
Retirement benefits schemes contributions 3R RFEF] 5T &I H X 167 135
38,960 21,007
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
wr e SR M R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 10. EEREEHMALME @
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) HHAESHMMAL @&
The emoluments of the remaining individuals fell within HpALTZHMENFUTEHE -

the following bands:

2025 2024
20254 20244
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THETT
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 2% 1,000,000 7T 2 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T E
2,000,000 71 - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 E
2,500,0007 71 - 2
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 E
4,000,0007& 75 2 -
HK$14,500,001 to HK$15,000,000 14,500,001 E
15,000,00078 75 - 1
HK$29,000,001 to HK$29,500,000 29,000,001 TE
29,500,000 75 1 -
5 5
During the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024, no BE2025F /2024F3A31BIEFE » &
emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors, EEMERES ITHES KIS RS
CE and the five highest paid individuals to join or upon A LIS 1ERRS R EMBEARE
joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office. ESinia®E 2 5LE) > SURER fRE o
11. FINANCE COSTS 1. MR
2025 2024
20255 20245
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET
Interest on lease liabilities HEafEME 1,392 5,436
Interest on bank borrowings RITETAE 725 1,297
Unwinding of discounting on provision for  {&18 A~ 5 5 B IR 3% 0] (B9 5E26)
reinstatement costs (Note 26) 107 44
2,224 6,777
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
wr e SR M R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

12. FRIEHRFAX

Current income tax — Hong Kong:

Current year provision NEERE
Over-provision in prior year BEFEEBRERE

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years. For the year of
assessments 2023/24 and 2024/25, a two-tiered profits tax
rates was introduced of which one subsidiary of the Group
can elect 8.25% tax rate for its first assessable profits of
HK$2,000,000.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"), the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

The income tax expenses can be reconciled to the (loss)/profit
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as follow:

BIEAFFIS I —& A !

2025 2024
20254 20244
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
110 300
(41) -

69 300

EARAF BRI IE M EEEN G ERRER
16.5% 5t 5 © 182023/244F % 2024/25E B E
B 5| AFERMARG > A& B0 — KB
NE) AR E FER MR EF) E2,000,00078 T EE1E
8.25% AR X o

REFSHENABERRES (RBERR
BB WRRARRG cEEBREHEHE
R B T R B B ENE RIS

P Al G iEm R E M2 E W@ R
HiRRAT (B18) R FHRNT ¢

2025 2024
20255 2024%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
(Loss)/profit before tax BriET (B518) /& A (31,903) 29,145
Tax at the domestic income BRAMPTIERREI6.5%HEZ
tax rate of 16.5% HIE (5.264) 4,809
Income tax at concessionary rate REBEMIABEZMER - (165)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for STERERNEILRZ
tax purpose S MBEEE 1,285 11,734
Tax effect of income not taxable for FEMRERTERR
tax purpose WAL E (4,461) (13,819)
Utilisation of tax losses not recognised BRI IBEE - (3,289)
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBIEREE (41) -
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERAINRERERE o RBEEE
differences not recognised (353) (452)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRIEBEMBEE 8,905 1,485
Tax reduction TRIFR % (2) (3)
Income tax expenses for the year FRNFFERES 69 300
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efore tax has been arrived at

Directors’ remuneration

Other staff costs (excluding Directors’
remuneration):

Salaries, allowances and other benefits

Provision of/(reversal of provision of) long
service payment

Provision of unutilised annual leave

Retirement benefits scheme contributions

Total staff costs

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Cost of inventories consumed

Donations

Auditors’ remuneration

Premium and handling charges on a life
insurance policy
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13. FRRAD (B548) it

after charging/ BRIGAT (B538) &AM Bk GHA) THIRIE:

EEHM

HMBTaA (FEEEEHM) :

e B R HEMER

RERBRE (BOEE)

REBFRER
RIRBA 5B HR

e

n éljﬁzk
EREEEES
ME B ERREITE

HEFEMAE

B

12 BB i A
AERENRERTEE

703 1,048
113,058 142,348
12 (23)

3 119

1,972 3,122
115,045 145,566
115,748 146,614
26,913 45,137
4,358 7,808
55,727 102,207
2,140 468
960 1,220
310 298




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I S R M

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

14. B2

14. DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed by the Company during
the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024, nor has any
dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting
period.

15. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of (loss)/earnings per share attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

15.

AT ENE E2025%F K2024FE3H31H 1E
FERNHEZRNGRKRE > BRELHREE
BRI EAKRE o

ik (B518) EBF)
AABEA NELER (58 BRDRET
SR :

(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to KATEB ANELER
owners of the Company (F18) &H)

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basic (loss)/
earnings per share

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share is the same as basic (loss)/
earnings per share as there were no dilutive potential
ordinary shares outstanding during both years.

BReAESRER (BB BN
BEERINETISHE

2025 2024
20254 20244
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
(31,972) 28,845
The TR

000 ‘000
1,150,000 1,150,000

R mEFEI R EAETEINEEEES
B HekEE (B8 BIEASKRER (&
B /'mFER -
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Cost

At 1 April 2023
Additions
Write-offs

At 31 March 2024 and
1 April 2024

Additions

Disposal

Disposal of subsidiaries

Write-offs

At 31 March 2025

Depreciation and impairment

At 1 April 2023

Charge for the year
Impairment loss
Elimination on write-offs

At 31 March 2024 and

1 April 2024
Charge for the year
Impairment loss
Elimination on disposal
Disposal of subsidiaries
Elimination on write-offs

At 31 March 2025

Carrying value
At 31 March 2025

At 31 March 2024

D EQUIPMENT

(D%
$2023F481H
W=t

11202438311
F2024F4818

hE

HE

W BT B AR

6=

#2025%3831H

ERRE
R2023F481H
ERk
RERRE

12024438318
20244818
ESAE]S
RERRE
HER
HEMBEAT

#2025%3831H

IREE
#2025%3831H

R20245%3831H
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16. ME - -BER

=

73,169 69,001 1,906 144,076
430 1,794 = 2,224
(5,379) (7,124) = (12,503)
68,220 63,671 1,906 133,797
786 600 = 1,386
(6,707) (18,322) = (25,029)
(14,576) (14,050) = (28,626)
(14,244) (9,392) = (23,636)
33,479 22,507 1,906 57,892
64,261 62,730 1,032 128,023
4,330 3,138 340 7,808
230 90 = 320
(5,303) (6,640) = (11,943)
63,518 59,318 1,372 124,208
2,327 1,692 339 4,358
254 98 = 352
(5,713) (17,943) = (23,656)
(14,270) (12,904) = (27,174)
(14,099) (8,941) = (23,040)
32,017 21,320 1,711 55,048
1,462 1,187 195 2,844
4,702 4,353 534 9,589
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17.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I S R M

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates or
useful lives per annum:

Over the shorter of the terms
of the lease or 5 years

Leasehold improvements

Furniture and fixtures and 20%
equipment
Motor vehicles 30%

For the restaurants with poor financial performance, the
Group determined recoverable amount based on fair value
less disposal cost and recognised an impairment loss of
HK$Nil and HK$320,000 on right-of-use assets and property,
plant and equipment respectively for the year ended 31
March 2024.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, impairment loss of
HK$446,000 and HK$352,000 recognised on right-of-use
assets and property, plant and equipment respectively on
the basis of decline on the recoverable amount which was
below the carrying amount due to continuous weak financial
performance of the restaurant.

LEASES
(i) Right-of-use assets

16.

17.

YE - BERRE @

LR BE R E T U E R TEE
o A R A AR B -

HEEE RS E 2 AR E
RE-BRERRERE 20%
RE 30%

MYV BRIBAENBIEMS  AEBRQATFE
BELERAEBEIU OISR WKEE2024
FEIF/NHIEEEDMERAEEEURY
2 BB SR BB EREE BT %320,000
BIT e

REE2025F3831HIEFEE ANEEFE
FEEMFHERR JWESBEENEIDE &
RILREE R SMEREEEURYE -RE
K2 5% HE SR R B B518446,00078 75 52352,000748

7T|:o

HE
0 EARHEE

Leased restaurants HERE
Warehouses BE
Office premises R NE |

The Group has lease arrangements for leased
restaurants, warehouses and office premises. The lease
terms generally ranged from one to seven years (2024:
one to seven years).

Extension options are included in certain leases of
restaurants. Certain periods covered by extension
options were included in these lease terms as the Group
was reasonably certain to exercise the option.

2025 2024
20254 20244
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FEBT
36,153

= 191

= 223

9,168 36,567

AEBEJEHERE - EERBAEY
ENHEZH -HEH—RNF—ZELtE
(20244 : —Et4F) o

ATEBHEETEIEREEE ANE
EEGERETEZIERR SERERE
BERENETHEEMAZSZHEESR
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(i)

17. HHE @)
of-use assets (Continued) (i) FREEE @)
the year ended 31 March 2025, additions/ HZE2025FE3831HIEEE BN

modifications to the right-of-use assets including BEBENAG WAE ERERRE
capitalised lease payments, present value adjustment HE (BEEXMCBEENHR AJREES
of refundable rental deposit and provision for BEZRERBEREBERANER) A5
reinstatement costs amounted to approximately 183,000 7T (20244 : 5,072,000 7T) °

HK$183,000 (2024: HK$5,072,000), due to new/
renewal of leases of restaurants.

Details of the impairment assessment are disclosed in BRIRETENFFIRERH 160
note 16.

Lease liabilities (i) HEAR

Lease liabilities payable: HEBBRMMIE

Within one year —F R 7,039 47,623
After one year but not exceeding two years —&EL _F - BRBEME 4,932 7,039
After two years but not exceeding five years MEM F BRBBAE - 4,932
11,971 59,594

Less: Amount due for settlement within B ERHEEZY12EAR

12 months shown under current EENENRIE

liabilities (7,039) (47,623)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 1218 3 % 4% & BY FE (4 =18 4,932 11,971
The weighted average incremental borrowings rates FERATIAEaENMNEFSREEGERF
applied to lease liabilities range from 2.94% to 4.59% RAF294%FE459% (20244 2.75%
(2024: 2.75% to 7.09%). £7.09%) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I S R M

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

17. LEASES (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Amounts recognised in profit or loss

17. A8 @

(iii)

Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets

ERREENITERX

— Leased restaurants —HERE
— Warehouses —BE
Expense relating to short-term leases FRHAMREM

Expense relating to contingent rent not
included in the measurement of the lease
liabilities (included in property rentals and
related expenses)

)

The leases of restaurants contain variable lease
payment terms that are based on sales generated from
the relevant restaurants and minimum annual lease
payment terms that are fixed. These payment terms are
common in restaurants in Hong Kong where the Group
operates.

Others

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the total
cash outflow for leases amount to approximately
HK$52,133,000 (2024: HK$73,273,000). The amount
includes payments of principal and interest portion of
lease liabilities, variable lease payments and short-term
leases. These amounts could be presented in operating
and financing cash flows.

(iv)

AEtAREA R EREARTA
X GtAYMEHETRA

RIBR RN TIE
2025 2024
20254 20244
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
26,722 43,906
191 1,231
26,913 45,137
3,265 989
384 595

BIBEABBEREA R ERE L/
EEEEE T EEE I RIFR R E E BY
RIEF EHEE N RIRR 5% F N RRIFRIE
B8 (FEEKEXEFMAEM) BBESR
PR E IR

Hith

BHE2025F3831HIEEE - HENIRS
TR 4B A4 /452,133,000 7T (20244F
73,273,000870) c ZS EEERESE
HAE R BRI E2HEENRK
e ZEEHEINKERRERS

MEBHRET
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19.

T —
02553831 HIELEE
18. BHE

Cost %N
At 1 April 2023, 31 March 2024, 7R2023F481H ~2024%F3831H ~2024F481H

1 April 2024 14,561
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHRBAT (14,561)
At 31 March 2025 1£2025%3831H =
Accumulated impairment KEHBE
At 1 April 2023, 31 March 2024, 72023F481H~2024%F3831H ~2024F481H

1 April 2024 14,561
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHRBATE (14,561)
At 31 March 2025 1£2025%3831H =
Carrying value REE

At 31 March 2025 and 2024

DEPOSIT PLACED FOR A LIFE INSURANCE
POLICY

In January 2016, the Group entered into a life insurance
policy with an insurance company to insure Mr. Chan, a
director of the subsidiaries. Under the policy, the Group is
the beneficiary and policy holder and the total insured sum
is USD4,000,000 (approximately HK$31,200,000). The Group
has paid an upfront deposit of USD1,906,502 (approximately
HK$14,855,000). The Group can terminate the policy at any
time and receive cash back based on the cash value of the
policy at the date of withdrawal, which is determined by the
upfront deposit payment of USD1,906,502 plus accumulated
interest earned and minus the accumulated insurance charge
and policy expense charge (“Cash Value”).

In addition, if withdrawal is made between the first to
nineteenth policy year, there is a specified amount of
surrender charge.

The insurance company will pay the Group an interest of
4% per annum on the outstanding Cash Value of the policy
for the first year. Commencing in the second vyear, the
interest will be at least 2% guarantee interest per annum.
The guarantee interest rate is also the effective interest rate
for the deposit placed on initial recognition, determined by
discounting the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the insurance policy, excluding the financial
effect of surrender charge.
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19.

20254 K2024F3H31H _

RBASFRERE

R2016F1 B REBR—BREBEATTILA
ERE -UARBARNEERAEERRF RE
RE > AEBASHEAKRREFBEA > MS
R4E%8724,000,000%E 75 (4931,200,0005%8
70) o AREBEBE L IFE[NIEE1,906,5025 7T (89
14,855,000/ 7T) o AEE 0] BRI IELREKRE
RiER AN RERSEEKEIRS  ARIR
STEN RS ER1,906,5023= T MNP B AL 2
FRE BRFREEANRRERIWEETE
(TR&EEE)) -

ESh > i 7S S 1 =1 9B R B SF R HR AN > A BRUR A
EZENRFETFEE -

REBABRNRESEFEFEMRIENREEE
M AER ST FEFERI%HFE - BB ZFie>
FERBRDEERENE2%  REF RIS
R R EFRERNBEEREMNER THiRERE
TR ARG SRR WRRAE R METE
ETHRERTFEENMHREE-
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20.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I S R M

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

DEPOSIT PLACED FOR A LIFE INSURANCE
POLICY (Continued)

The Directors considered that the possibility of terminating
the policy during the 1st to 19th policy year was low and the
expected life of the life insurance policy remained unchanged
since the initial recognition, accordingly, the difference
between the carrying amount of deposit placed for a life
insurance policy as at 31 March 2025 and 2024 and the Cash
Value of the life insurance policy is insignificant.

The deposit placed for a life insurance policy is denominated
in USD, a currency other than the functional currency of the
Group.

At 31 March 2025 and 2024, the life insurance policy has
been pledged as security for banking facilities granted to the
Group.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

19. BKBASRERE @

BEERE RBE1E1VEREBEELRIEFRENT
FEMER > BASRENTEIAFER B P HEREE
HRFAE FAIb KB ASHREMRENR20255F
F2024F383 1 HREEBEEANSHRENIRE
BEZENEBETAEAC

BRBASREFREUETHE ETht&EH

HEE G LISM G

20254 K2024F3H831H  ASREDIKIA
AT AREBNIRITRE 2 IR

20. B5REMEWRIEA

2024
20244
HK$'000
TFATT
Current ENEA
Trade receivables B 5 EWEIE 1,251 2,602
Prepayments SERNEOEE] 611 2,626
Rental deposits (Note) e (HsE) 20,562 29,299
Utility and other deposits rREEEREMEZEE 3,006 4,971
Other receivables HAE R IE 1,100 2,276
26,530 41,774
Less: Non-current portion W SEBDHERER
— Rental deposits (Note) —ME%E () 1,950 17,133
24,580 24,641
Note: B 5T
Detailed movement of rental deposits during the years are as follows: HERENFRNEEHFBENT
2024
20244
HK$'000
FAET
At 1 April ®4818 29,299 30,518
Addition RE 112 -
Exchange alignment PE R sR R - (18)
Refund B[O (8,745) (1,454)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMNE AT (549) =
Imputed interest income HHEMBWA 445 253
At 31 March M3831H 20,562 29,299
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)  20. B 5 KR EMFEUGRIE @)

21.

Note: (Continued)

The Group does not hold any collateral over the above
balances.

The Group’s sales are mainly conducted in cash or by credit
cards of which the settlement period is normally within 3
days from transaction date. The credit period granted by the
Group to its corporate customers ranges from 0 to 30 days.

The following is an ageing analysis of the trade receivables
presented based on the invoice date, which approximates
the respective revenue recognition dates, at the end of the
reporting period.

ﬁﬁ Di <1|E)

AEBI EL AR A E AR R

FEENPHETEZURENERAFET BB
H—RBEXZ HRE 3N -cEBRAEAT
ZEREHNEERNF0E30H

UTARBEHARBHRERDN (A *EE%HSZE
HESSH RS 271 ’]%%TH& IRARES AT ©

2025 2024
20254 20244

HK$ 000 HK$'000

FHET FHBT

Within 30 days 30H® 1,251 2,602

No loss allowance of trade receivables was recognised as at
31 March 2025 and 2024.

DEFERRED TAX

The analysis of deferred tax is as follows:

#2025F K2024F3831H WEMTI B R E
WA IEES R B o

EIEFRIBRI D ATA0T

2025 2024
20255 20244
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TFET

Deferred tax assets RERIEE E
Deferred tax assets are recognised for available tax losses
to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through future taxable profits is probable. As at 31
March 2025, the Group had tax losses of approximately
HK$168,600,000 (2024: HK$167,479,000) and other
deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$14,835,000 (2024: HK$28,545,000). Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately HK$nil
(2024 HK$1,489,000) with expiry dates as disclosed in
the following table. Other losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.
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ZEHENBEERERNKRENZRIESSE
RIREREN BIREF  IRIER IE;FH%EZ
FEER o 12202538310 AEBMNRIEE B K
Han a0 & R =28 51 2 49168,600,00078 7T
(20244 167,479,000 7T) K 4914,835,000
HBIT (20244 © 28,545,0005E 7T) © RFEDIIE
BEEEBIBAZE T (20244 © 1,489,00078

7o) BB B T RINE o HMt 5B ol E R R4S
$¢Io
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 21. RERIE @
2025 2024
20254 20244
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
2028 20284 - 1,489
As at 31 March 2025, the Group did not recognise R2025F3A31H AEE T BN IESEE K
deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses of approximately A0 BRF = 2B 9 U£9168,600,00078 7T (2024
HK$168,600,000 (2024: HK$167,479,000) and deductible £ 1 167,479,000 7T) K& #914,835,0003% 7T
temporary differences of approximately HK$14,835,000 (20244 : 28,545,000/ 7T) HERIEIERIEE
(2024: HK$28,545,000) due to the unpredictability of future B Th AR RIREFREATER
profit stream.
INVENTORIES 22. 78
2025 2024
20254 20244
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Food Bm 1,253 1,040
BANK BALANCES AND CASH/TIME 23. SRITHERKRIAE I RBIB=E

DEPOSIT WITH MATURITY OVER THREE
MONTHS

Bank balances carry floating interest rate based on daily bank
deposit rates as at 31 March 2025 and 2024.

Included in cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March 2024,
there has an amount denominated in Renminbi (“RMB")
of approximately RMB103,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$111,000). Remittance of RMB out of the PRC is subject to
exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC government.

As at 31 March 2024, time deposit over three months carry
interest at 4.15% per annum.

BHIEHRTER

20254 K2024FE3H831H > tR1T45 R E R
IRITEFAAMEIHFXFFE o

2024383 HNRERIREEEBY T &
FE—S AR TARE)) stHENHIESEELY
AER1103,0007c (FEEHA9111,00087T) © A
EELFEBET PEBNTS 2 INEE SR
[R o

R2024F3831H BB =@ BN EREFEIRIL
FRNFKAN5%ET B o
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 24. BEREMEMARIERENEE
CONTRACT LIABILITIES
(a) Trade the other payables (a) EBZREMENRIEA
2025 2024
20255 20244
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Trade payables B Z R RIE 3,454 6,666
Accruals (Note a) FESTER (Mska) 17,152 21,341
Deferred income EIEU A 207 1,780
Amount due to a shareholder B — 2R 278 21,588 =
Amount due to a former director B —%pIESE 2 HIE 1,227 1,099
Provision for litigation (Note b) SREA SR (M3 5ED) - 13,804
Provision for long service payment RIRBESHE 21 9
Provision for unutilised annual leave KRB FERER 1,372 1,471
45,021 46,170
Less: Non-current portion B FERNERER

— Deferred income —IRIEUR A 48 878
44,973 45,292

Notes: MI5E -

(@  Included in the balance as at 31 March 2025, there was
approximately HK$2,946,000 (2024: HK$2,338,000)
remuneration payable to the Directors.

Included in the balance as at 31 March 2025, there
was approximately HK$119,000 (2024: HK$784,000)
accrued rent.

(b)  Details of provision for litigation refer to Note 36.

Payment terms granted by suppliers are generally within
50 days from the relevant purchases are made. The
Group has financial risk management policies in place
to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit
time-frame.

Amount due to a former director and shareholder are
unsecured, repayable on demand and interest-free.

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables

presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period:
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(@) M2025%F3B31AMEERT > BIEREN
B EHEINA2,946,0005 7T (20244 :
2,338,00058 7T) ©

2025F3831HWAE RS BIEES
FAE#9119,000% 7T (20244 © 784,000
BT °

(b) BRAFABENFEIEESHN360

MR RHB AR — RIS EH AR R
BRSORAM -AEEREMFH AR EEH
R I RPTAE B RN EERRAE
fte

BN - EFERRRZRBERERER
BREREERRE

UTFARREHRZEZTAHR2IINE
I TRIREREE D47
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #Z2025F3831HIELEE

24. BRREMEBARERSNEE @

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Trade the other payables (Continued)

(a)

B 5 REMEARE (@)

2025 2024

20255 20244

HK$'000 HK$'000

FAET FAET

Within 30 days 30HA 3,454 6,666
Contract liabilities (b) EH&EFE

2025 2024

20255 20244

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Banquet services Z2ER% 12,036 18,064

Cash coupons REH 296 699

12,332 18,763

Less: Non-current portion B FERNERER 2 167 133

12,165 18,630

As at 1 April 2023, contract liabilities amounted to
HK$31,600,000.

Deposits received from customers for banquet
services

The payment terms are by installments stipulated in the
banquet contracts. The deposits are non-refundable.

Cash coupon

The Group issued the face value of cash coupon and
the cash coupon are non-refundable and is expired
within 12 months (2024: 12 months).

The following table sets out the revenue and other
income recognised that was included in the contract
liabilities balance at the beginning of the year:

1R2023F4818 > 5498 184%31,600,000
ABITe

HEFECIRE KR E

TRERBEG TP REN DR
B RERTAIRM

B #H

AEBDETREEFEE BEH5A10
BTEM2EB R (20244 128 8) 18
HH o

TREIFARFIHNENEREEHRN

Banquet services EERE
Cash coupon REH

BRI R E AU -

2025 2024

20254 20244

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

17,263 26,065

699 1,071

17,962 27,136
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pased on schedule repayment dates set out in the
agreements) shown under current liabilities:

Within one year —FR

Carrying amounts were carried as follows:

. $RTTERR

BEREREBEERNEBNREE RERD
EFTENRBAEIR TRt EER A HS
8]):

2025
20254
HK$'000
F#ET
= 14,448
= 14,448

SREEZRNTRRGR

2025
20254

HK$'000

Interest rate Fl =
— Floating rate —Z A=

As at 31 March 2024, the bank borrowing carried floating
interest rate of 1 month HIBOR plus 1% per annum. The
effective interest rate on the bank borrowings is 5.60% per
annum during the year ended 31 March 2024.

As at 31 March 2024, the bank borrowings and credit
facilities available to the business cards are secured by the
Group's deposit placed for a life insurance policy amounting
to approximately HK$16,414,000 and guaranteed by a
Director of the subsidiaries.
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FET

= 14,448

122024538310 RITERIZVERERIRTT
FEFEMFRI%MNFHMESFE -REE
202453831 B ILFE - RITERHNERER
F#35.60% ©

R2024F38318  IRITERAEHE KA
B EERMERLAERNEBASREREYN
16,414,000 B TR R AR BIMNB A —%E
EER
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27.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

PROVISION FOR REINSTATEMENT COSTS

26. {E1EmAEEE

At 1 April P41 H

Reversal (o]

Addition nE

Unwinding of discount (Note 11) ALIREEE (FHEE11)
Payment for reinstatement costs BB R A2

At 31 March 38318

Current portion BOEA SR 5>
Non-current portion JERNEAEE

At 31 March 38318

Provision for reinstatement costs is recognised at the net
present value of costs to be incurred for the reinstatement
of the leased property used by the Group for its operations
upon expiration of the relevant lease.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of authorised and issued share capital of the
Company are as follows:

2025 2024
20254 20244
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
3,555 4,556
(2,995) (1,645)
183 991
107 44

= (391)

850 3,555

= 776

850 2,779
850 3,555

BENARBERMAERMEEECRNEE
MEEEREE AR BRBEAERFFER
BFESS

27. g7

FATEERBEETRAFBNT

Number of Share
shares capital
KRH&E g 2
‘000 HK$'000
T i THTT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each LB ER0.017ETT
Authorised: ERE -
As at 1 April 2023, 31 March 2024, 72023FE481H~2024F3H8318
1 April 2024 and 31 March 2025 20245F 4818 52025%3831H 5,000,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTREHARE :
As at 1 April 2023, 31 March 2024, R2023F481H ~2024F3831H0
1 April 2024 and 31 March 2025 2024F 4818 52025538318 1,150,000 11,500
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25F3H31HIEFEE

SH TRANSACTIONS

ears ended 31 March 2025 and 2024, the Group
ered the following non-cash transactions:

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group
had non-cash additions/modifications to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities of approximately HK$183,000
and HK$nil (2024: HK$5,072,000 and HK$4,081,000)
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for leased
restaurants. The modification of right-of-use assets
included HK$183,000 (2024: HK$991,000) adjustment
on provision for reinstatement costs.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group
had non-cash remeasurements to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities of approximately HK$7,949,000
and HK$16,618,000 respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for leased restaurants.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, an utility
company provided a cash incentive of HK$150,000
and property, plant and equipment with a total value
of approximately HK$625,000 to the Group. The
Group has recognised the amount as deferred income
(included in other payables) upon receipt of such
incentive.
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28. FEIFRERS

B E2025F 2024383 1HIEEE  KEH
BEITUTIERERS

(a

HZE2025E38310EEE  AEEMA
EEENHEZHNIERESARE BN
FREEENEEARED R A%183,000
BT REHEIT (20244 : 5,072,0005 7T
K24,081,000787T) - EREREEERRE
183,0007 7t (20244F : 991,00078 7T) BY{E
ERAEEARE

BE2024F3831HILFE > AEERE
EEENEEZHNIFREEMEME
RREEMEEAEDH##%77,949,000
H715216,618,0007& 7T ©

BE2024F3A31HLEFE  —RAHR
HA B e A S B 1R 3R 5 50E) 150,00078
TR ABEE4625,0008 T - BB

R 1 o A5 B U 5% 55 B0 B B R B 5
FLRBIEIEWA Gt AHMBERRIR) o
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #Z2025F3831HIELEE

29. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 29. KBRS ZHNAEEHIR

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-

TRV AEEXREMELITNERES &
RRERIFRcEH REMELIHNERER

cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are HEREBR S ARREERERNGEREM
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, BERNDEAMBEHMFRREERENEE

classified in the consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.

Non-cash changes
FREEH
Finance
Financing cost
2024 cash flows incurred

1 April

Disposal of 31 March
subsidiaries 2025

2024F4A10 RBEHRERE EBELMBMS LERBAT 20258438318
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET TET FET
Bank borrowings RITE 14,448 (14,448) = - -
Interest payable EAFE - (725) 725 = =
Lease liabilities HEaRE 59,594 (48,484) 1,392 (531) 11,971
74,042 (63,657) 2,117 (531) 11,971
Non-cash changes
FREEY
Finance
1 April Financing cost Lease Lease Exchange 31 March
2023 cash flows incurred  modification  remeasurement alignment Others 2024
03F4F1H MERSRE BELMENE HEEY BESHGE ERHZ Hftt 202438318
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TiEn T TET TET TET TR
Bank borrowings BIRER 37,382 (22,934) = = = = = 14,448
Interest payable FEfIFIS - (1,297) 1,297 - - - - -
Lease liabilities RERR 138,593 (71,689) 5436 4,081 (16,618) 9 (200) 59,594
175,975 (95,920) 6,733 4,081 (16,618) (9) (200) 74,042
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SE e MBS R M E
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #Z2025F3831HILFE

30. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME 30. EBAEFIEE

The Group contributes to a Mandatory Provident Fund
(“MPF") scheme under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The scheme is a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee
and is available to all employees. The MPF is funded by
payments from employees and by the Company, and provide
benefits linked to contributions and investment returns on
the scheme. Contributions to the scheme are recognised as
an expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in the year to which the
contributions relate.

The employees employed in the subsidiaries established
in the PRC are members of the state-managed retirement
benefits schemes operated by the PRC government. The PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll to the retirement benefits schemes to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefits schemes is to make the required
contributions under the schemes.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss for the year
ended 31 March 2025 of approximately HK$1,972,000
(2024: HK$3,122,000) represents contributions payable to
these plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the
plan.

During the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024, the Group
had no forfeited contributions under the MPF Scheme utilised
to reduce the existing levels of contributions. As at 31 March
2025 and 2024, there was no forfeited contribution under
the MPF Scheme which may be used by the Group to reduce
the contribution payable in the future years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I S R M

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group entered into transaction with related
parties as follows:

(a) Compensation of key management personnel

During the year ended 31 March 2025 and 2024, the
remuneration of the Directors and other members of
key management are as follows:

31. BB AR5

B S BRESERBES  AEE R
ST

(a) FEEEASHM

K8, E2025F &2024%3831HIEEE »
BEERTEEEBHEMEMNFBUT

2024
20244
HK$'000
FAET

Short-term benefits ZHAE R

Post-employment benefits

32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Group as at 31
March 2025 and 2024 are as follows:

3 A gl

703 1,048

703 1,048

32. FEMBATIEE
AEEN2025F K2024FE3831 BT E T &
B ABMEBEN T ¢

Effective interest held as at

RUTEERENRRED

Place of Issued and
incorporation and Date of fully paid 31 March 31 March Principal activities and
Name kind of legal entity ~ incorporation share capital 2025 2024 place of operation
EAREAMMIL BETR 2055 20045
1 WERERER A E BRRE 38318 3A31H TEEBREEHE
Directly held subsidiary
ERRENNEAR
Wonderful Brocade Limited BVI 9 November 2017 UsD100 100% 100% Investment holding
PHRERAT ABHARES 2017511898 100%7C REZR
Indirectly held subsidiaries:
RAERENREAR
Al perfect Limited Hong Kong 19 December 2014 HK$1,000,000 - 100% Chinese restaurant
operation in Hong Kong
EXERAT & 2014128198 1,000,000 REBLERLER
As Great (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong 10 January 2019 HKS1 100% 100%  Chinese restaurant
operation in Hong Kong
% (BB ERAT &4 2019518108 %7 REBLERAER
Barry Investments Limited Hong Kong 27 November 2015 HK$1,000,000 - 100% Chinese restaurant
operation in Hong Kong
BNRERRAT & 20158118278 1,000,000 7 REBLEDAER
Better Winner Limited Hong Kong 16 December 2011 HK$1,000,000 100% 100% Chinese restaurant
operation in Hong Kong
HAARAT & 2011F12516H 1,000,007 100% 100% REBLEHLER
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Earn Billion Limited Hong Kong
ERERAT &
Good Lucky Investments Limited ~ Hong Kong
HEREBRAT &
Pacific Energy Limited Hong Kong
MmEERAE &%
Palace Group Management Hong Kong
Limited
EREEARAT &B
Full Prestige Limited Hong Kong
HABRAR &B
Wui Fung Limited Hong Kong
SBERAT &

Guangzhou Duxiaoyue Catering ~ PRC
Management Co., Ltd.*

ENTENBERERERAT &

New Fashions Group Limited (Note) Hong Kong

New Fashions Group Limited (¥f5) &3

*  For identification purpose only

10 March 2017
201735108
29 May 2008
200855290
22 February 2008
200852A220

16 December 2015

2015£128168

14 June 2019
201968 14H

5 August 2020
2020%8A5H

21 July 2014

2014F7821H

24 September 2024

2024F9824H

Note: The Company is acquired on 1 November 2024.
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HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 7
HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 7
HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 7

HK$10,000

10,000% 7

HK$1
1R

HK$10,000
10,000%7

RMB1,000,000

ARﬁ%moo,mp

yin
HK$ 10

1087

*

31 March
2025
20256
3H31H

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

R

32. FEMMBLABTIBIEE @

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Chinese restaurant
operation in Hong Kong

Chinese restaurant
operation in Hong Kong

REBEENIER

Chinese restaurant
operation in Hong Kong

REREEDNER

Provision of management
and administrative
services to group
companies

AEBARREERRIT
Y%

Chinese restaurant
operation in Hong Kong

REREEDNER

Investment holding

RE#R

Chinese restaurant
operation in PRC

RoEEEhER

Chinese restaurant
operation in Hong Kong

REREEDNER

Mgk © AATF2024F 1181 B ULEE o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme was adopted pursuant
to the resolution passed on 25 January 2019 to give the
eligible persons (as mentioned in the following paragraph)
an opportunity to have a personal stake in our Company and
help motivate them to optimise their future performance
and efficiency to our Group and/or to reward them for
their past contributions, to attract and retain or otherwise
maintain on-going relationships with such eligible persons
who are significant to and/or whose contributions are or will
be beneficial to the performance, growth or success of our
Group, and additionally in the case of Executives (as defined
below), to enable our Group to attract and retain individuals
with experience and ability and/or to reward them for their
past contributions.

Eligible participants of the share option scheme include (a)
any executive director of, manager of, or other employee
holding an executive, managerial, supervisory or similar
position in any member of our Group, any full-time or
parttime employee, or a person for the time being seconded
to work full-time or part-time for any member of our Group;
(b) a director or proposed director (including an independent
non-executive director) of any member of our Group; (c) a
direct or indirect shareholder of any member of our Group;
(d) a supplier of goods or services to any member of our
Group; (e) a customer, consultant, business or joint venture
partner, franchisee, contractor, agent or representative of any
member of our Group; (f) a person or entity that provides
design, research, development or other support or any
advisory, consultancy, professional or other services to any
member of our Group; (g) an associate of any of the persons
referred to in paragraphs (a) to (c) above; and (h) any person
involved in the business affairs of the Company whom our
board determines to be appropriate to participate in the
share option scheme.

The maximum number of shares issuable under the share
options to each eligible persons in the Schemes within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

33. RERRIESTE!

AT ERESTEIRIE2019F1B25HE#H
FIRAZRRMN EERSEM AT (W FEERT
W) I—RENRAABHEEEARENH S WE
REE N ERERAHEABEAEBNEM X
MER,/ R EBENE G TIZE UK
SIREEAMUEMS N EZEHAEFRRE
MEFRIIMSHBEER HESMEFR
FBENRAEBRRE EEIAIINEER
ANTHFEFESIFREG BEAEERS KR
BEKRKEINITHRAE EERE T &/
M EBENEERG TR

BRESINGERALTEEQEEREMM
ERFNEAATES CEHBRETE B
B -BEENEMBUNEMES - ERE2RK
FREESENEAECERTAREATRES
BEFRETEIAL OFERERNMEAR
NEFNEEES (BEBIFEATES) ;0
FEBEAMERATNERLEIZRE ()&
EEREAMELARNERIMBHERD ()&
EBEMREATNER B -EZHHSE
BH-mMBEE AGEH REBEARKE (HDBE
EBEMREARRMERE K FENH
> mBAE MR  EH  BEIHMBRSEH
ALTHER ;(9) EX(@ZFE(OBRAEMALAR
BMBA, RhWEFEEEREESABRES
B BE2HEARTEBNERNAL-

PRAERERREA AZSFAENSETERA
ITREBREMD TETRONDERSHERN
FERERABDERITRMOII% FE—TEK
BRI REERERE  BEANRRAE L
RERRERALE -
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granted to a director, chief executive or
al shareholder of the Company, or to any of
ir associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive Directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director of the Company, or to
any of their associate, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the closing price of the securities at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

No share options have been granted since the adoption of
the share option scheme and there are no share options
outstanding as at 31 March 2025 and 2024.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 31 March 2025
(i)  In April 2024, Barry Investments Limited, a subsidiary of

the Group, was disposed to an independent third party
at a cash consideration of HK$10,000.

33.

MBI HEETE @

RIAQBDEF - FBTHRABRTEREN
EARENBEANBRERCBIIIFNTE
SERAE I REMI2EARBRTE
AR EERFRIBIIFRTESTNEDREFN
BMBEANTORERE SBBTANKREEAF
BEITRMI01%NBEEE FREL BRZ
FH U T E T H) #87#15,000,00058 75 HE K
RIREAE EERE# -

BIRMBERR ST B LU I EIRHERE -
20255 &20244E3831H » BB R IET
@o

HEHRBAT
BZE2025F3A31HLLEE

() ZAEEF2024F48L010,0008 THIRS
REBLEEF—RBNBARENKER
RABT—RBIE=Fo

Cash inflow arising on disposal and cash
consideration received

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was
lost:

HEEENRERAKR
BWEBRENE 10

BREEHRNEERGED !

Property, plant and equipment ME-BEREE 1,452
Trade and other payables 85 Kk HEAENRIE (101)
Deferred income RIEWA (582)
Net assets disposed of T EEEFLE 769

Loss on disposal of a subsidiary:

HE—FERBARER :

Cash consideration HERE 10
Net assets disposed of T EEEFE (769)
Loss on disposal HERE (759)
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34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 34. HEMBA
For the year ended 31 March 2025 (Continued) £ E2025F3831H LLEE (@)

(ii)

For the year en

In September 2024, All Perfect Limited, a subsidiary of (iy AEBEPR2024F98 LB THNIRESRE
the Group, was disposed to an independent third party HEEF—BHBABEEERAETF
at a cash consideration of HK$1. —ZBME=TF
Cash inflow arising on disposal and HEELENRERAK

cash consideration received BUWEIREHE =
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was BREETIENEEREEDN
lost:
Trade and other payables 85 K A ENRIE
Net liabilities disposed of PR EaEFEE (36)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—BRNBARNE :
Cash consideration HeRE
Net liabilities disposed of T Ea & 36
Gain on disposal HE W= 36

_— 0



ARIES (Continued) 34. HEMBAE @
31 March 2025 (Continued) £E2025F3831HLLEE @)

tember 2024, Eternal Grand Developments (i) ANEBEPR2024FE9B8 UHSETHIREN
imited and its subsidiaries, subsidiaries of the Group, BHEWBARRZZERBRAIAKRE
were disposed to an independent third party at a cash WEBABF—RBIE=F-
consideration of approximately HK$8.

Net cash outflow from disposal of subsidiaries: HEWBABRIRE M FEE -

Total consideration received B E4EEE —*
Less: bank and cash balances disposed of B FTHERITTRIRE &% (121)
Net cash outflow from disposal of subsidiaries HEW B R BRIRE T F 58 (121)
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was BREEFIRNEERBEDN

lost:

Trade and other receivables 85 REMBEWTIE 666
Bank and cash balances R1TRIRE 4R 121

Trade and other payables B 5 Kk HME R (2,830)
Lease liabilities HEaE (152)
Net liabilities disposed of T Ea&FEE (2,195)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HEHRBASRUE !

Cash consideration HeRE =
Reclassification of cumulative exchange reserve on  FAHEMB AT REHDERST

disposal of subsidiaries PE R B 171
Net liabilities disposed of FrHE&aEFEE 2,195
Gain on disposal HE W 2,366
3 Less than HK$1,000 * L721,00078 75
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For the year ended 31 March 202 25F3H31HIEFE
%hhhﬁm
34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 34. HEMBAS @
For the year ended 31 March 2025 (Continued) £ E2025F3831H LLEE (@)
(iv) In August 2024, Global Gourmet Catering Services (iv) ZEBR2024FE88 UAISHB THIREA

BH E B A EGlobal Gourmet Catering
Services Management Limited &z ELff B A
BF—RBUE=F-

Management Limited and its subsidiaries, subsidiaries of
the Group, were disposed to an independent third party
at a cash consideration of approximately HK$8.

HEWBRABRIREMEIFE :

Net cash outflow from disposal of subsidiaries:

Total consideration received BUWREERE
Less: bank and cash balances disposed of B TR ERTTRIRE & (1)
Net cash outflow from disposal of subsidiaries HEW B R BRIRE T 358 (1)

EREEHNENEEREED

lost:

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was

Right-of-uses assets FREEE 223
Trade and other receivables 85 & EMERRIE 328
Bank and cash balances RITRIRE AR 1
Lease liabilities HEaE (379)
Net assets disposed of FTHEEEFRE 173

HERBARBE

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries:

Cash consideration REMRE
Net assets disposed of P EEEFEE 173
Loss on disposal HERE (173)

E Less than HK$1,000 .

D721,0007%E 7T




35. ZATMBRRE

2025
20254
HK$'000
FHIT
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—ERBABRZRE 4,909 4,901
Current assets RENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUL I B A B =18 1,724 1,724
Bank balances IRITHEER 26 19
1,750 1,743
Current liabilities mEBE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETI B AT = IE 4,129 7,129
Accruals and other payables FEST & AR HAEFRIE 33,465 24,082
37,594 31,211
Net current liabilities mEIBEFEE (35,844) (29,468)
Net liabilities =Rk (30,935) (24,567)
Capital and reserves BRRK#E
Share capital [ 11,500 11,500
Reserves (Note) HE (s (42,435) (36,067)
(30,935) (24,567)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I S R M

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note: Movements in the reserves during the years are as follow:

35. XABMFFRAR @

ik RERNREEBNT

Share Other  Accumulated
premium reserves losses Total
R iEE Hithfst e RitisiE st
(Note)
(P5E)
At 1 April 2023 1202354818 135,967 4,967 (158,796) (17,862)
Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year FRABEREERSZEE - = (18,205) (18,205)
At 31 March 2024 and 12024538318 K
1 April 2024 2024F481H 135,967 4,967 (177,001) (36,067)
Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year ENBEREARAXAE - - (6,368) (6,368)
At 31 March 2025 12025%3H31H 135,967 4,967 (183,369) (42,435)

Note: Other reserves represented (i) the difference between
the aggregate amount of issued and fully paid share
capital of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company
and the nominal amount of the shares issued by the
Company in exchange for the entire equity interests in
the subsidiaries as part of the group reorganisation and
(i) deemed contribution arising from the listing expenses
borne by the controlling shareholder of the Company.

36. LITIGATIONS LOSSES

The Company received a petition dated 27 October 2023
(the "Petition”) from Mr. Wang Lin under the Companies
(Winding Up and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance
(Chapter 32, Laws of Hong Kong) (“CWUMPO"), filed in
the High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (the “High Court”) under Companies Winding-
up Proceedings No. 478 of 2023. The Petition claimed that
the Company may be wound up by the High Court on the
grounds that it is unable to pay its debts.

The Petition was filed against the Company for allegedly
failing to repay its overdue bond under a bond certificate
purportedly issued by the Company in the principal amount
of HK$5,150,000 and accrued interest of approximately
HK$77,000. This amount was allegedly due for payment on
17 August 2023 and owed by the Company to Mr. Wang Lin
("Claim 1").

Mzt : HEth#EFEROERBWHERE QSR
BETKESRRABEALLT R
MENBAS 2 MRE (FREFEMR
B—&8)) METHRMEEBEZENE
8 KRB EHRAXEETRARTE
IRARERAIERIRIFHE

36. HFEARK

AR EIBEMAERB(AR (BEAHEIE
&30 1&45)) EAEEAIFE325) (HEBEGL) i°
SERFITHRESE AR (EEER) 22
2023F NEEBEERFA785IE N HEFA2023
FI10H27BNER (T25)) E2FBEHR &2
BRI RERENEEEEME S S AT ER -

EFENHHEAQBIRE  IEEERERERE
MHARBDETHNESSZZEELATES
5,150,00078 7t & FE 5T H] B 49 7377,00078 7T RV 8
HiME 5 o Z B FBE 202388170 T »
ThEARABRATEMIE (TEE1])) ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

36. LITIGATIONS LOSSES (Continued)

In April 2024, the Company received a legal letter from Mr.
Law Yuen Him, claiming that the Company failed to repay
its overdue bond under a bond certificate issued by the
Company in the principal amount of HK$5,205,000 and
accrued interest of approximately HK$469,000 and filed to
Court as a supporting creditor of the case. This amount was
allegedly due for payment on 30 November 2023 and owed
by the Company to Mr. Law Yuen Him (“Claim 2").

In June 2024, the Company received a legal letter from
Mrs. Zhao Li, claiming that the Company failed to repay
its overdue bond under a bond certificate issued by the
Company in the principal amount of HK$2,360,000 and
accrued interest of approximately HK$31,000 and filed to
Court as a supporting creditor of the case. This amount was
allegedly due for payment on 27 August 2023 and owed by
the Company to Mrs. Zhao Li (“Claim 3").

Claims 1 to 3 are collectively referred to as the “Bonds”.

In June 2024, the Company received a legal letter from JAN
Financial Press Limited and Ogier and filed to Court as a
supporting creditor of the case, claiming that the Company
failed to settle their professional fee billed of HK$280,000
and USD 4,142 respectively.

In order to dismiss the winding-up petition, a settlement
has been reached between the Company and the
petitioner regarding the Petition, totaling approximately
HK$13,804,000 (the "Settlement”), which was accounted
as litigation loss in consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31
March 2024. Following the Settlement, a consent summons
for the dismissal of the Petition was executed and filed with
the High Court of Hong Kong on 10 July 2024. The High
Court of Hong Kong ordered the Petition to be dismissed on
22 July 2024.

Despite that the settlement was made to the counterparties,
the Existing Directors are uncertain about the existence of
the Bonds. The Company is seeking legal advice and taking
procedures to confirm the validity of the Bonds. For more
details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 8
August 2024.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #{ZE2025F3831HIEFEE

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

On 8 July 2022, the Company has entered into a Business
Development Consultancy Agreement (the “Consultancy
Agreement”) with Jasons Holdings (Shenzhen) Company
Limited ZRER B CFRII) BRAR) (“Jasons”), pursuant
to which Jasons will be remunerated in the manner to be
agreed between the Company and Jasons.

On 14 July 2023, in relation to the remuneration for the
Consultancy Agreement, the Company entered into a
remuneration agreement with Jasons (the “Remuneration
Agreement”), pursuant to which the consultancy fee (i.e.
HK$9,400,000) (the “Consultancy Fee"”) to Jasons shall be
settled by way of allotment and issue of 45,000,000 shares
("Consideration Shares”) at the issue price of HK$0.227
for each Consideration Share. The application to issue the
Consideration Share had subsequently be withdrawn by the
Company on 17 November 2023.

On 28 June 2024, the lawyer of Jasons has issued a petition
to wind up the Company, on the basis of the alleged failure
by the Company to repay its debts amount of HK$9,400,000.
The winding up hearing of which shall take place on 16 April
2025.

On 10 March 2025, the Company received a winding up
petition filed by Jasons against the Company under the
Companies (Winding Up and Miscellaneous Provisions)
Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong) in the
High Court of Hong Kong, on the basis of the alleged failure
by the Company to repay its debts amount of RMB9,400,000.
The Petition was scheduled to be heard on 16 April 2025.
Subsequently, the hearing is adjourned to 11 June 2025.

As per the opinion from the Company's lawyer, given the
factual dispute as to the authenticity of the Remuneration
Agreement and the services provided by Jasons, it is unlikely
for Jasons to be able to wind up the Company without first
clarifying the factual issues. Therefore, the management of
the Company considered that the Consultancy Fee should not
be recognised in the consolidated financial statements for the
years ended 31 March 2024 and 2025 at this stage.

37. HAEE

12202257888 AR B ENR BIER CRII
BRAE (KRB ST — M EHERBRRBD
=& (TEERH S - REEZ W= AR EBRZRE
ARERNRBIHERTT VESF BN

R2023F 78148 > SEEBHBZENFMNM S > &
NEEARFRBET L HFNHE (EFEiRED) &
It > EERS & (B19,400,0005 T) (TEERGEE ) L
B0 8% K2 851745,000,0000% A2 15 (MAERR1S ) BY
AR ETEASKRRERN0.227E T
Hf RATR2023FE11 817 BHEZEITRE
BRIABIEREE o

R2024%F6828H  ARBNEMBIER G5
KAABNESH  BERAABREBEEGERE
%89,400,00078 7t - H/5 B IR s ER 2025543
16H#E T

R2025F38108 > A AB)WEI AR R BIRE
EBEPFENENT BB RBEIEE) EH
EEESE AR HARTRINBERER
EHRANBWIERECEHEHBEFHBARKE
9,400,0007T °c 258 EF2025F43 16 HES M o BE
% BREREBE202556811H

REAABRMANER AR HFWNRENE
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Revenue W3k 227,632 421,309 304,356 294,120 224,081
(Loss)/profit before tax a1 (B548) /& (31,903) 29,145 (6,940) (31,933)  (123,953)
Income tax expenses PR (69) (300) = (80) (316)
(31,972) 28,845 (6,940) (32,013)  (124,269)
Attributable to: FE{S
Owner of the Company KANBEB A (31,972) 28,845 (6,940) (32,013)  (124,269)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREBE
2025
20254
HK$'000
FET
Total assets 4nes 79,270 183,673 255,798 336,595 536,010
Total liabilities me (s (70,570)  (142,830)  (243,931)  (317,828)  (485,230)
Total equity M m 8,700 40,843 11,867 18,767 50,780
Equity e m
Equity attributable to KABIE
shareholders to the e LR
Company 8,700 40,843 11,867 18,767 50,780

The consolidated financial results of the Group for the years ended
31 March 2021, 2022, 2023, 2024 and 2025 are set out in the
Company’s annual report of the respective year.

The summary above does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.
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